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ADVANCED LIGHTING TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

' Mmaking @ visible difference




About the cover: Advanced Lighting Technologies, Inc. is the world's foremost developer, producer and marketer of metal halide lighting
products. Metal halide systems radiate a bright white light that is superior to older lighting technologies. The bulb - or lamp, as it is known
in the industry — depicted on the cover represents the Company’s most innovative metal halide product line, the Uni-Form® pulse start

family. These lamps feature a unique formed body quartz arc tube in the center for increased output of the highest-quality lighting.
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At-a-Glance

A Pioneer in the Lighting Industry

Metal Halide: Second to None but the Sun

Optical Coatings: Managing the Flow of Light

Social Responsibility: A Company That Cares

Making a Visible Difference ‘ v
Glossary of Terms l
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LIGHTIN

Metal Halide

Products Lamps

Lighting Systems
Materials

Power Supplies

Retrofit Systems
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Non-Metal Halide

Lamps
Materials
Power Supplies
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aAt-a-glance

OPTICAL COATINGS

Telecommunications

Fiber Assemblies
Micro-Optic Lenses
On-Fiber Filters
Thin-Film Filters

Long-Haul Systems
Metro Systems

Applications Airports Security Lighting
Big Box Retail Street Lights
Billboards Warehouses
FactoryMWarehouse
Gas Stations
Grocery Stores
Parking Areas
Security Lighting
Sporting Venues
Markets Commercial Commercial
Industrial industrial
Outdoor Outdoor
Metal Halide Non-Metal Halide

Advanced Lighting Technologies,
Inc. is a worldwide leader in

the design, manufacture and
marketing of a broad range of
metal halide materials, system
components and lighting systems.
The Company produces more
than 200 custom-blended
ultra-pure materials that are
used to provide different lighting
characteristics for numerous
applications throughout the
world. The components
produced can be sold separately
or as part of a complete lighting
system. They include lamp,
power supply, electronic controls
and switches. Metal halide
lighting reduces the drain on
scarce energy supplies and
offers longer life and dramatically
improved light quality.

On a selective basis, the
Company applies its advanced
technology to markets beyond
metal halide. Advanced
Lighting Technologies manu-
factures materials, components
and power supplies for
fluorescent and high-intensity

discharge lamps as well as thin-

panel illumination applications.

Telecommunications - Optical
Communication Systems

Telecommunications

The Conipany’s wholly owned
subsidiary, Deposition Sciences
Inc. (DSI), produces optical
products for high-technology
industries, including telecom-
munications, DSI manufactures
filters that manage the flow of
light through fiber optic cables.
The benefits of these advanced-
technology filters include
increased capacity of the cable,
. reduced insertion (optical
power) losses and bandpass

customization.
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Non-Telecommunications

Coatings
Deposition Equipment

Heat Management
Light/Wavelength Control
Light/Wavelength Reflection

Defense
Lighting
Ophthalmolic
Optics

Non-Telecommunications

The Company takes advantage
of selected opportunities to
apply its optical coatings
technology to areas beyond
telecommunications. Optical
coatings apph’cations serve
markets such as ophthalmolic
and lighting as well as govern-
ment military and aerospace.




J

1

27

7t
gy
7 O

Leacership in Ughting
Advenced Lighting Technolegies
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1. BJ's Wholesale Club
2. Purdue University field house
3. Columbia, S.C., airpert
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When you pump gas, kick the tires in an auto dealer’s lot
or watch a professional sports event at a stadium, it’s virtually
certain that metal halide lighting is illuminating your
activities. Wherever this superior-quality white light
shines, Advanced Lighting Technologies, Inc. has a presence.
Advanced Lighting Technologies is the only vertically
integrated company in the world focused on the design,
manufacture and marketing of metal halide lighting products.
As such, the Company serves customers that are also its
competitors. The giants of the lighting industry look to
Advanced Lighting Technologies as a trusted supplier
because they know the Company is the unquestioned
leader in metal halide technology:
> Advanced Lighting Technologies has a market share of
almost 100 percent in the United States and roughly
90 percent worldwide for the key materials used to
manufacture metal halide lighting products. An
Advanced Lighting Technologies subsidiary, APL
Engineered Materials, Inc., produces ultra-pure materials
known as salts for high-intensity discharge lamps
(bulbs), a category that includes metal halide.
> Advanced Lighting Technologies and its subsidiaries have
introduced 80 percent of the metal halide lamp types

used in the United States. The Company markets these

components under its Venture Lighting® brand.

> Deposition Sciences Inc. (DSI), a wholly owned sub-
sidiary of Advanced Lighting Technologies, has devised
much of the technology for optical coatings used n
high-tech industries such as telecommunications, the
military and aerospace. DSIis one of a select few
coating companies in the world that develops and
makes its own optical coating equipment.

Advanced Lighting Technologies’ global reach extends
to Europe, Asia, Australia and Canada. The Company
supplies materials to the lighting industries of six nations
overseas, sells its own brands in approximately 50
countries and maintains sales, marketing and production
facilities around the world. Its high-efficiency lamp
manufacturing plant in Chennai (formerly Madras),
India, is the fifth-largest metal halide facility in the
world and the largest in the Pacific Rim.

Nimble and rich in technical expertise, Advanced
Lighting Technologies has carved a niche among the largest
players in lighting by offering its customers unparalleled
innovation, product quality and energy efficiency. In
the process, the Company has changed the metal halide
lighting industry. The challenge now is to change the way

people think about lighting,
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Metal walide:

second to None but the sun

> Employee productivity on the factory floor is a funda-
mental measure of corporate success. Workers perform
more accurately, with higher-quality assembly, in
well-lit areas.

> Shoppers patronize stores where they feel comfortable.
Good lighting creates a hospitable retail environment
where merchandise appears more appealing.

> Individuals and communities function best when
people feel safe in public places. Appropriate lighting
in streets and parking lots deters ¢rime and increases
the sense of personal security.

> Most people older than 40 struggle with close tasks such
as reading and sewing. Ample, high-quality lighting
improves visibility and creates a homelike atmosphere.

For all the above reasons, customers care about

Advanced Lighting Technologies’ signature technology,

metal halide lighting, No other form of lighting comes

closer to simulating sunlight. In numerous applications,

no other form of lighting scores higher for performance,

energy efficiency, color quality or lamp lifespan.

Yet, traditional lighting patterns are slow to change.
Fluorescent lighting continues to dominate in offices,

while the majority of freeways are bathed in the

vellow-orange glow of high-pressure sodium lighting,
another member of the high-intensity discharge family that
includes metal halide. And homeowners still rely on the
130-year-old incandescent bulb, a familiar technology that
is easy to install.

But metal halide, the fastest-growing lighting technol-
ogy, is gaining ground on these older lighting systems in a
growing number of venues. It has established its firmest
foothold in the $7 billion commercial/industrial / outdoor
lighting market in the United States, where its share stands
at 15 percent and rising, Because of its radiance, metal
halide lighting is ideal for big box retail outlets, gas
station canopies, airports, factories, retail car lots, parking
garages, sports facilities, billboards and other large-scale
applications.

Compared with other forms of lighting, metal halide
requires far fewer lamps to illuminate a given space. A big
box retailer would need 6,000 fluorescent fixtures to
match the light output of 500 metal halide fixtures; a gas
station canopy would have to accommodate 360 four-foot
fluorescent tubes to equal the output of 30 metal halide
fixtures — in both cases, an impractical solution to customers’

lighting needs.
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ADVANCED LIGRIING TelRnNOLUGICS

1. Shaw Aero Companies
2. Harris Teeter grocery store
3. Eppco gas station canopy
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As the developer of 80 percent of the metal halide

lamps manufactured in the U.S., Advanced Lighting
Technologies is the driving force behind the technology’s
success.

In 1998, Advanced Lighting Technologies introduced
Uni-Form® pulse start, a line of second-generation metal
halide lighting products representing an investment that
exceeded $20 million. The second generation improves
on every aspect of its predecessor, offering enhanced
performance with better color uniformity, longer lamp
life, faster warm-up and restrike (time needed to relight
after power is turned off), and up to 30 percent more
energy efficiency.

Although installation costs are generally higher for
Uni-Form pulse start, operating costs are much lower over
the life of the system, given the energy savings and the
reduced frequency of lamp replacement.

Uni-Form pulse start has been a success story for
Advanced Lighting Technologies from the start. But the
second-generation technology received its biggest boost
three years after its introduction, when Advanced Lighting
Technologies brought to the market a unique advance: a
retrofit kit that enables users to upgrade their older metal
halide products conveniently and cost effectively, without
having to replace the entire lighting system.

The opportunity for hassle-free conversion to a

1. Saab auto dealership
2. Tower Automotive, Inc.
3. Dubai, United Arab Emirates, tennis stadium

higher-performing lighting system is a significant plus

for retailers, warehouses, assembly operators and other
customers with hundreds of lighting fixtures. Moreover,
some electric utilities have encouraged conversion as an
energy conservation measure, and they have offered
generous rebates to customers who purchase retrofit kits.
In an era of heightened energy awareness, metal halide
systems save on lighting costs.

Before the retrofit kit became available, most cus-
tomers acquired second-generation metal halide hghting
products as new installations. Now, customers can use the
retrofit kit to replace not only first-generation metal halide
lighting, but high-pressure sodium lamps as well.

Advanced Lighting Technologies has not previously
focused on the replacement market, which comprises
mainly older lighting technologies. As second-generation
metal halide products gain increasing acceptance, however,
support for these customers will become increasingly
important. They can replace a spent Uni-Form pulse start
lamp with a convenient phone call to HIDirect, Advanced
Lighting Technologies’ direct replacement lamp sales company.

As metal halide lighting grows in popularity, Advanced
Lighting Technologies continues to miniaturize the technology.
The ability to market smaller-scale lghting applications

is critical to making metal halide a mainstay of the 514

billion UL.S. lighting market.




AUVANCeED LIGHTING TECANOLOGHEDS

Retrofit Customers Multiply Savings
For a commercial customer with 400 fixtures, lighting costs add up quickly — but so can the savings that
come with upgrading to an Advanced Lighting Technologies system.

Suppose that same customer upgraded from a 400-watt first-generation metal halide lighting system
to a 300-watt Uni-Form pulse start (second-generation) metal halide system. For $100 per fixture, the
customer could purchase retrofit kits and have them installed. Assuming an energy rate of 10 cents per
kilowatt hour, and normal usage of 6,500 hours a year, the savings would equat:
> $7 per month per fixture
> A total $2,800 per month
> A total $33,600 per year

The customer would realize a full payback on the investment in 15 months.
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ADVANCED LIGHTING TECHNOLOGIES

optical couﬂn«gs:
M@Lmoquinq the rLow of thi{

> Multiple wavelengths of infrared light transmit
streams of information through a single optical fiber
in a technique known as Dense Wavelength Division
Multiplexing (DWDM). Welcome to the complex world
of fiber optic telecommunications.
Fiber optic networks have become standard as the

growth of the Internet has fueled demand for greater

bandwidth, or capacity to carry communications data.
Through its wholly owned subsidiary, Deposition Sciences ¢
2 A= o .
Inc. (DSI), Advanced Lighting Technologies has become a ST ™ ¢
B )
leader in developing highly specialized thin-film coatings B
for the passive optical components used in fiber optic ¢ -
)
. . i P /
telecommunications systems. T -
Advanced Lighting Technologies’ expertise in —

lighting is the foundation for its work in this field. Its
proprietary MicroDyn® sputtering technology, for ;\I
example, originated through DSI as a high-quality optical ‘ i
coating for halogen lamps.

Today, coating technologies such as MicroDyn and ‘
DSI’s IsoDyn™ are applied to manage the amount of light —— i

reflected and transmitted through optical components |

offering such performance enhancements as improved

capacity, increased transmission speed, reduced light

insertion losses and bandpass customization.
-~ Among these components are advanced-technology
DWDM filters that channel and direct the flow of light
through fiber optic cables. By filtering out ever-smaller
wavelengths of light, these products improve the efficiency
of fiber optic networks. In 2001, DSI demonstrated that it
could use the MicroDyn process to manufacture 100
gigahertz DWDM filters. Only a handful of companies
have the capability to make these leading-edge filters,
which are very difficult to produce with consistency.

1. DSI's IsoSphere™ ball lenses
2. Element of MicroDyn sputtering system
3. DWDM filter
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1. Electricity used in offices, stores and other
commercial buildings in the U.S.

2. SmartPac recycling container

3. Metal halide products save energy and
help preserve natural resources

Lighting is #1 Use of Energy

O lighting  [J all other uses of electricity

socral B@Sp@ﬂsibﬂﬁg:

A Company that cares

Advanced Lighting Technologies’” metal halide lighting
products improve the quality of life wherever they shine,
but their value extends far beyond enhanced visibility

and comfort. Metal halide lighting also offers singular
environmental benefits that make it the socially responsible
choice. With advances such as Uni-Form pulse start, the
second generation of metal halide lighting, Advanced
Lighting Technologies continues to provide customers

with opportunities to save on their energy costs and
protect finite natural resources.

Energy Conservation Through its subsidiary, Venture
Lighting, Advanced Lighting Technologies pioneered the
Uni-Form pulse start system, a line of lamps and ballasts
that uses a patented formed body arc tube. This quartz
tube is shaped to follow the curve of the light stream,
which allows more halides to be pulled into the stream.,
As a result, Uni-Form pulse start products deliver more
light and use less energy than the original metal halide
technology requires.

Compared with other lighting technologies, Uni-Form
pulse start again emerges as the highest-quality, most
energy-efficient light source. One 300-watt pulse start

lamp provides 15 times the light output of a 100-watt

page TEN

incandescent lamp or the same light as 12 32-watt
fluorescent lamps. High-pressure sodium lighting is the only
equivalent system in light output, but its dim yellow-orange
glow is far inferior to bright white metal halide lighting at
enhancing visibility on roads and expressways.

Lighting accounts for roughly 20 percent of all elec-
tricity used in the United States. A lighting system upgrade
delivers the quickest payback of any energy conservation
measure, With demand for energy-efficient products increas-
ing, Advanced Lighting Technologies’ retrofit kit stands out
as a timely innovation. The Company estimates that customers
who use the kit to convert their older metal halide systems
to Uni-Form pulse start lighting can save as much as $84
per fixture per year at 10 cents per kilowatt hour.

Environmental Protection Scarce, non-renewable
fossil fuels generate most of the world’s energy, and the
burning of these fuels releases harmful pollutants. Because
metal halide products generally consume less energy than
other forms of lighting, and because fewer metal halide
lamps are needed to illuminate large commercial,
industrial and outdoor spaces, use of the technology
reduces emissions from coal-fired power plants and

improves environmental quality.




ADVANCED LIGHTING TECHNOLOGIES
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Color Counts

Does the color of light make a difference? Unquestionably, yes. Metal halide lighting is ideally
suited to low-light conditions, in which it shows colors accurately, while high-pressure sodium lighting
distorts colors with an orange-yellow glow. With a nighttime level of illumination up to six times

higher than an equivalent high-pressure sodium system emits, metal halide lighting makes it easier

to see dark areas where hidden hazards may lurk.
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1. London’s Heath Street with high-pressure
sodium lighting, left, and metal halide lighting

2. Best Buy electronics store

3. A Microsun lamp makes reading a pleasure
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Muhing o visible difference

Metal halide has become the technology of choice for
many types of lighting projects, but its full potential has
vet to be realized. Advanced Lighting Technologies, the
only lighting company focused on metal halide products
and markets, is committed to showing that wherever any
other lighting system is used, metal halide lighting can
perform better.

On the Road High-pressure sodium (HPS) lighting
has become standard on roads and expressways. Highly
efficient yellow-orange HPS lamps have a life expectancy
of approximately four years, which first-generation metal
halide technology could not match. With Advanced
Lighting Technologies’ introduction of Uni-Form pulse
start, however, metal halide technology entered a second
generation that offers multiple advances, including extended
lamp life. Now, metal halide lamps burn as long as their
HPS counterparts.

With this improvement, metal halide appears as a
highly attractive alternative for roadway lighting, Metal
halide lamps are the safest solution for night driving

because, under low light levels, the human eye is most

sensitive to the blue spectrum, which is abundant in bright
white metal halide lighting, With enhanced visibility, drivers
can more quickly perceive and react to road hazards.

In another road-related application, luxury autos are
sporting xenon head lamps, which are metal halide
lights made from materials supplied by Advanced Lighting
Technologies.

in the Home In the $3 billion residential lighting
market, Advanced Lighting Technologies offers its
Microsun® product line, so named because nothing
comes closer to replicating sunlight. Customers buy
Microsun products direct from the Company, ordering on
the Internet (www.microsun.com) or by calling toll free
(1-800-437-0111). Through Microsun lighting, Advanced
Lighting Technologies is proving to homeowners that metal
halide shines in interior applications, easing close activities
such as reading and sewing,

America’s population is aging, and older people need
more light to carry out everyday tasks. When a user
switches on a Microsun table or floor lamp, it emits a

warm-up glow that progresses in approximately one
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Orglering Meadke Easy

When & metal halide lamp from Advanced Lighting Technologies burns eut, customers can reach for
the phone or geo te the Intermet to order replacement lamps direct from the Company. Every lamp

ithet Advanced Lighting Techneleglies makes carries & toll-free number (1-800-437-0711) for effortless
erdering. Alternately, customers can eall up the Company’s Wb site (www.adlt.com) and link to !

sulesicliary sites (wamw.micresun.com, www.hidirect.com) to place ercers.

minute to a full brightness. Moreover, a Microsun lamp
consumes only 68 watts of energy while producing more
light than a 300-watt halogen lamp, with virtually no
emission of heat.

For some, the issue goes beyond improved visibility.
These people crave the healing effects of light, especially
during the short days of winter when the form of depression
known as Seasonal Affective Disorder (SAD) strikes 4 to 6
percent of the population. In response to this need,
Advanced Lighting Technologies manufactures Microsun
light boxes that provide 150 watts of luminous white light.
Daily exposure to this high-intensity radiance can help
restore a sense of personal well being. No technology
harnesses the therapeutic power of light as effectively as
metal halide.

At the Mall Although metal halide lighting is preferred
for large-scale retail applications such as big box stores,
supermarkets and car lots, it is less effective in smaller
commercial and retail spaces, where energy-inefficient
halogen lighting reigns because it is a smaller light package
and shows merchandise to good advantage.

To serve this large lighting market, Advanced Lighting
Technologies has partnered with Fiberstars, Inc. in the
development of fiber optic lighting, which channels
Uni-Form pulse start metal halide lighting into fiber optic

cable. Key to this embryonic technology is the division and

distribution — or “miniaturization” — of metal halide lighting
into light packages sized for smaller retail stores.

Fiber optic lighting is easy to maintain, and it elimi-
nates negative effects of halogen lighting such as the

release of heat and harmful ultraviolet light rays.

In the ongoing work to efficiently couple metal halide
lighting with polymer cable, Advanced Lighting
Technologies is applying the expertise of its subsidiary,
DSI. The MicroDyn and IseDyn optical coating technologies
that DSI developed are integral parts of the fiber optic
lighting systems that are emerging to bring out the best
in retailers’ displayed goods.

Fiber optic lighting has vet to be fully developed.
Today, however, shoppers are exposed to many other metal
halide applications. Metal halide lamps, for example, light
the way in parking lots and garages, deterring crime and
increasing the public’s sense of security. In supermarkets,
home centers and other large, high-ceilinged retail areas,
metal halide lighting brightens the setting and makes the
shopping experience more pleasant.

In both open and intimate settings, metal halide light-
ing is becoming an integral part of people’s lives. As the
technology grows in popularity, Advanced Lighting
Technologies will continue to lead the way, improving
on existing applications and developing new ones so that

customers everywhere can see a visible difference.
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1. Cleveland Browns Stadium concourse
2. Auckland, New Zealand, Sky Tower
3. MGM Grand Detroit casino parking garage

—
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The business of Advanced Lighting Technologies is technically complex. As customers, media and the investment

community learn more about the Company and its capabilities, the following definitions may be helpful.

Arc Tube — a completely sealed quartz or ceramic tube in which

an electrical discharge (arc) occurs and generates light.

Ball Lens — a spherical optical lens that serves to collimate
(focus) light entering or departing an optical fiber.

Ballast — a device that aids in controlling the current, voltage
and waveform to the required values for proper lamp start-up

and operation.

Bandpass Filter — a particular type of thin-film filter that is
used in the multiplex and demultiplex functions of telecommu-

nications systems.

Color Uniformity — consistent lamp-to-lamp color temperature
and appearance, achieved by heating the halides at the same

temperature in every arc chamber,

CPC — dual compound parabolic reflector; improves light collection
efficiency and light distribution for fiber optics and general lighting,

Demultiplexer — an optical device that separates out the various
wavelengths of light.

DWDM — Dense Wavelength Division Multiplexing; a technique
that allows greater amounts of information to be transmitted on
a single optical fiber by using multiple wavelengths of light to

carry different information streams on the same fiber.

Fiber Collimator — a device that terminates a fiber optic cable
and provides a focused beam of light from the optical fiber.

Fiber Optic Lighting — a technique of transmitting light via
flexible, transparent fibers and cable.

Formed Body Arc Tube — a precisely reproducible shaped arc
tube formed by Venture Lighting’s quartz sculpting process for

improved lamp-to-lamp color consistency and faster warm-up.

HID Lighting — high-intensity discharge lamps, including metal
halide, mercury vapor and high-pressure sodium, that produce
light by striking an electrical arc across tungsten electrodes
housed inside a specially designed inner glass tube.

Insertion Loss — a ratio of output power to input power, used
to measure the loss of optical power caused by a particular

device or series of devices in an optical system.

page

Long Haul — telecommunications systems that are designed to
send information over significant geographic distances, up to and

including transcontinental and intercontinental systems.

Metal Halides — ultra-pure materials belonging to the salt family
of elements that are heated at high temperatures in an arc tube
to produce a distinctive form of HID lighting,

Multiplexer — an optical device that combines many wavelengths
of light into one fiber.

Optical Coatings — thin films of solid materials that are applied
to optical components to change the amount of light reflected
from the components’ surface. The numbers of layers, materials
and thicknesses are chosen to maximize the transmission of
some wavelengths of light and minimize the transmission of

other wavelengths.

Pulse Start Lamp — a specially designed metal halide lamp that
uses a ballast with an ignitor for starting, which creates improved

operating characteristics.

Restrike — time needed to reignite the arc of an HID lamp after

the power has been turned off.

Short Hau! — telecommunications systems that are designed
to send information over short distances, typically within a

metropolitan area or even within a single building,

Systems — general term used to describe lamps and ballasts that
work together to produce light; could also describe a complete

lighting fixture.

Thin-Film Filters — devices with specialized optical coatings that
selectively transmit certain wavelengths of light and reflect other
wavelengths. Thin-film filters are widely used in DWDM, WDM

and other optical telecommunications systems.

WDM —Wavelength Division Multiplexing; a technique identical
in principle to DWDM, with the difference being a matter of
degree. WDM systems are usually considered to support up to
four different light wavelengths. WDM systems allow transmission
of phone, television and Internet service over one fiber optic

cable, essential for short-haul applications.
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PRODUCT INQUIRIES

Advanced Lighting Technologies, Inc.
32000 Aurora Road

Solon, Ohio 44139

Phone: 440-519-0500

ADVANCED LIGHTING TECHNOLOGIES FACILITIES

North America

Solon, Chio

Urbana, Illinois

Santa Rosa, California
Ambherst, Nova Scotia, Canada
Mississauga, Ontario, Canada

Other

Draycott, England

Chennai (Madras), India

Wantirna South, Victoria, Australia
Mitcham, Victoria, Australia

SUBSIDIARIES

Venture Lighting International
www.venturelighting.com

Phone: 440-519-0500

E-mail: venture@adlt.com

Deposition Sciences Incorporated
www.depsci.com

Phone: 707-573-6700

E-mail: sales@depsci.com

APL Engineered Materials, Inc.
Phone: 217-367-1340
E-mail: inquiries_apl@adlt.com

Design & Writing: Dix & Eaton
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TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

32000 Aurora Rd.
Solon, Chio 44138
440-519-0500

www.adlt.com
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Please date, sign and mail your
proxy card back as soon as possible!

Annual Meeting of Shareholders
ADVANCED LIGHTING TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

April 24, 2002

{7 Please Detach and Mail in the Envelope Provided ‘5

A X Please mark your r

votes as in this

example.
FOR all nominees WITHROLD
listed at right AUTHORITY
(except as marked to to vote for all nominees
the contrary below) listed at right FOR AGAINST ABSTAIN
1. Election Nominees: Wayne R. Hellman 2. To approve and ratify the adoption of the
of : Company’s 2001 Employee Stock
Directors Theodore A. Filson Purchase Plan.
Instruction: To withhold authority to vote f James E. Mohn
instruction: To withhold authority to vote for any 3. To ratify the appointment of Grant
',?:,',“';d#ﬂ'is?g?",'.{;ﬁ strike a line through the nominee’s Thomton LLP as independent auditors of
the Company.
PLEASE YOTE, SIGN, DATE AND RETURN THE PROXY CARD
USING THE ENCLOSED ENVELOPE.
Signature Signature, if heid jointly DATE: , 2002

NOTE: Please sign exactly as names appears hereon. When shares are held by joint tenants, both should sign. When signing as attorney, executor, administrator, trustee or
guardian, please give full title as such. If @ corporation, please sign full corporate name by President or other authorized officer. If a partnership, please sign in
partnership name by authorized officer.
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ADVARCED LIGHTIRG TECHNOLOGIES, ING-

32000 Aurora Road
Selon, Ohio 44139

THIS PROXY [S SOLICITED ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The undersigned hereby appoints Wayne R. Hellman and Steven C. Potts as Prosxies,
each with the power to appoint his substitute, and hereby authorizes them to vote as designated
on the reverse, all the shares of Common Stock Advanced Lighting Technologies, Inc. held
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Vhis presy when preoperly exeecuted will be veted In the manner directed hereln By
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WILL BE VOTED FOR ALL NOMINEES FOR BIRECTOR, PROPOSAL 2 AND
PROPOSAL 3.

- (TO BE SIGNED ON REVERSE SIDE)




ADVANCED LIGHTING TECHNOLOGIES

Dear Sharcholders:
Fiscal year 2601 was the toughest vear in 2

decade for the metal halide lighting ind
gaing

and the first vear in the historv of Advanced

Lighting Technologics (AD_]) that we did not
achicve top-line growth. Yet, even as we felt the
I g

effects of a weak cconomy, we continued to

nvest in two major initiatives that position the
Company for future growth and proﬁtabihtv:

1.

oreed our

In metel halide lighting, we retr

g
technical leadership with the expansion of

o enerov-ell vt TTmil T e ofart
our energy-etcient Uni m puise start

line, which represents an improved second

generation of metal halide lighting products.
ghung |

With this innovative technology in place, we

launched our unicue retrofit k_t wlhich enables

customers to upgrade their first-generation

g without havir ng o
replace the entire lighting system.
in

in ootical coatings, we progress M to i

T g 1

a \CLCLL nand of manufacturers with the

capability to produce high-tech filters for
telecommunications systems. These high-
quality, cost-cffective filters manage pulses

of light that fiow through fiber optic cables

Their development by our telecommunica-
tions subsiuiar}', Deposition Sciences Inc.
{I81), builds on our technical expertise in
metal halide lighting,

These investments, coupled with an ongoing

restructuring of our business, will allow us

to focus more intensely than ever on our core

capabilitics. As a result, I firmly believe that

the fiscal year ended June 30, 2001, will stand
as a turning peint. Going forward, ADLT

and our shareholders should realize the benetits

of the breakthrough initiatives that we under-

took this past vear in the primary arcas of focus

of our business.

Fiscal 2001 Financial Results

n fiscal 2001, ADLT had net income of
$271,000 and net Joss per dituted share after
preferred shares aceretion of 80,34, Sales

were $219.4 mi

n, a4 percent decline
from fiscal 2000. Adjusted income from

ion and amortization

operations plus depred
decreased slightly to $25.3 miliion, and
income from operations deercased by §2
million to §13.9 million.

Disappointing as these results were

f=d

A()I ()\\"‘g (S “P(:bl‘(l ‘VI‘ILL, \J,Lﬁ.‘\ U"()\\ U’l ()‘

41 pereent between fiscal 1995 and 2000, we r

were far from alone, The entire lightin

ig
industry, including metal halide, felt the sting .
- o SISV |F

. . L \ .
of a genceral cconomic siowdown. This
&

slowdown was reflected in our APL -
an?m-vr(‘d Materials business, which supplies
more than 90 percent of the kev materials

used in metal halide lighting products. After

experiencing a 29 pereent sales increase in s UL

[ZBE T BT 1Y L STE R o

fiscal 2000, APL han flat performance in
Net Sales

2001 duc to cutbacks in spending by its
s [DULLATN TN MILLTONS)

largest customers.
*Extluding one-tine reversal

Yot. our ovcra"I "rf()rmancc gives us of equipmont sales in fiscal 1699,

’ Hpe @ sales would have boen $211 millon
ot
&

cason to be encouraged. Although our metal
halide product sales for the full vear were
down nght cat §$163.7 million C()mparod
with fiscal 2000, we gained market share in
metal halide, rising from 12.2 percent to
14.2 percent, with no price crosion in

our business.

Furthermore, it's important to note that
our 2001 weakness stems in part from our
de-emphasis of two arcas that have accounted
for steadily decreasing percentages of ADLT’s
total sales: optical coatings for markets other
than telecommunications and lighting, and

certain non-metal halide lighting products.




.

.

Although we will continue to supply lighting
materials to non metal halide producers, we
are restructuring to increase our tocus on

metal halide Hghting, which already accounts
tor more than 75 percent ot our ]ighting sales.
This is the right direction tor ADLT Our
metal halide product fine iv the most profitable
segment of our business. With this sharpened
focus, we antivipate future increases in Qross
margins and pr()hmhi]it_\,

Metal Halide: A Visible Opportunity

Despite a disappointing vear tor the lighting
indu.str_\, metal halide remains the tastest

srowing lightin

& =

g technology, Largely hecause
of ADET. We mvented more than 8O pereent
of the metal halide hm[h used in the United
States todav, as well as the vast majority ot all
metal halide materials, We rank as the ()nl_\'
vertically intcgmml company in the workd
locused on the (Ir\lgn‘ manutad ture and

marketing of metal halide fighting products.

g
Metal halide ]xghnng represents U3 pereent
ot the domestic commercialZindustrial Foutdoor
market, but uni) 7 pureent of the entire
LS. thting market, lca\’ing plentitul room
for growth, It illuminates hig hox retail
outlets, airports, tactories, retaii car lots,
grocery stores, .\P()I‘t\ vonues, parking garages,
gas station canopics and billboards. In barely
tapped markets such as roadway s, retail shops
and homes, our eme rging tvrhnnlngim are
(h’i\'ing des c]npmcnt ot prndu(‘ti tailored to
capture countless gm‘.\lh opportunitics.

More than anv other lichtin

o
Pa hal

tn'a'hn()l()g}'.

metal halide simulates sunlicht and improves

o
=
visibility, fostering safety [)rmimli\il\ and
comtort. Its energy efficiency ensures signiticant
savings, As we continue to miniaturize metal
halide, producing it in smaller light packages,

I “make ¢ technical ad . 1
and as we make more technical advances anc
tind wavs to reduce the cost of installation,
wi will punctrate promising new markets,

One technical advaned that achiovad notable

sales success the past two tiscal vears was

{ni-Farm pulw start, the second seneration

of metal halide lighting,

As vou may know, we
invested three vears and more than $20 million
to develop and introduce the Uni-Form pulse
start line, which debuted in 1998 \With tiscal
2001 sales of 8462 million, a 39 percent
increase over prior vear sales, the second
generation is hllﬁ”ing our expectations as a
principal grow th driver for the Company.
More than 90 percent ot Uni-form Pulw
start sales this past year were in new installations.
Secking to expand beyond new construction
renovation to the replacement market, we
faunched our retrotit kit in April 2001 This
innovation, which ADLT alone otters, gives
awners of tirst-genceration metal halide products
the opportunity to quickly and cost effectively
upgrade to the second generation product
Second generation metal halide lighting
improves on every feature of carlier lighting
t(‘t‘hnnlngi(‘\, im'iu«ling first-generation metal
halide systems. The second generation offers
superior performance, with better color
uniformity, Tonger Tamp (bulb) life, and faster
warm up and restrike fimes. The product line
is also 30 pereent more energy ctticient than

fa

its predecessor, which translates to a quick

pavback in energy savings.

Optical Coatings:
Leading in Light Management
Al OFADETS businesses involse light
management. Retlecting this svnergy, aur DSI
subsidiary has pioncered for optical networks
a thin film coating technology that originally
was developed for the lighting industry.
Now this proprictary technologs, known as
MicroDyo', is driving production of advanced
tilters that Channel and direct the flow of
light through fiber optic cables, oftering the
telecommunications industry such ads antages
as increased speed of transmission, reduced
1ight insertion losses and enhanced overall
pertormance.

We are excited by the potential we seein the
MicroDyn process. ADET is committed 1o lwixlg

recognized as a top-tier provider of diber optic
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ADVANCED LIGHTING TECHNOLQOGIES

poy s En,

components for telecommunications, and we

believe cur investment of more than §15 million

o 3]

last year in D87 will greatly benefit us when the
} g

depressed telecommunications market rebounds.
As noted in last vear's sharehoider letter,

oo rati oy +ical tinoyg

we are separating our oprical coatings

businesses for lighting and telecommunications.

APL Enginecred Materials will gbsorb the

lighting portion and DSI will retain the

telecommunications busiress, allowing it to

fecus morc intenscly on the nroduction of

high-volume, low-cost filters and other passive

optical components.

A Strategy for Success

Ir the first cuarter of fiscal 2002, we announced
a worldwide restructuring designed to streamline
operations, increase profitability, and cnhance
ins in oUr COTC DUSINCSSTS,

1 3
sales and gI'OSS marg
1
1

1 ; e qrafl setd
The restructuring plan entais stail reductions
¢ ail levels 1 oyma iedaed £ ovor] H
at all ievess and consodadation of everaapping
! &

allgnmw*‘ we are consolidat

ing cur power supply manufacturing operations
< i S

land to our uxgr' cu'uunu '1":1:71 n

Chennai (formerly Madrasy, s newiv

expanded site, the fifth-largest metal halide

facility in the world and the 1argc>1 in the
Pacific Rim, will ceatraiize our nower supph
manufacturi ing and Pallow us to grow Uni-form

pulse start sales in key international markets.

Also in the first querter, the Company
signed a Ietter of intent to sell our fixture
businesses - Ruuc Lighting, Kramer Lighting
and Ruud Lighting Europe - to Alan J. Ruaud,

v nresiden 1 chiel onerati Fico
currently president and chief operating officer
of ADLT. T}

r

he sc.uir.g price for these businesses
is expected to approximate $38.3 million (of

which $6 million is in the form of 2 note from

the purchaser). As part of this transaction, a §9

ion mortgzge note will continue to be the

obligation of Ruud Lighting. The propesed saic
g34Ng

will allow us to reduce total debt by approxi-

mately $41 milion.

The fixture businesses have shown decreasing
sales and profitability in the last two vears due
to new competition from big box retailers that

previcusiy did net scll to our markets, as well

as imports that have eroded pricing. The sale of

these businesses will inercase our profitability
and climinate unnccessary competition with
the many fixture companies using our
advanced metal halide products. We expect to
complete the sale in the fiscal 2002 second
quarter ending December 31, 2001. Chief
Financial Officer Steve Potts and [ will assume
Alan’s responsibilitics,

These actions strengthen our core capabilitics.
We arc a pure play in metal halide technology.
Already, we have changed the metal halide
lighting industry woridwide through technical
advances such as Uni-form pulse start. We
will continue applving our unmatched expertise
and building market share by converting
traditional lighting systems, upgrading metal
halide users te the sceend generation, dcvcloping

and marketing new applications of this novel

S

g mu sV stem, a and *Lauung ’)L‘\Oh(i spguﬁgrs
to market ([iruclly to end users.

As we look ahead, we are fortunate to have
on board Steve Potts, who came to us {rom
General Dynamics Corporation. Thanks to
Steve’s skilled management, we achieved positive
cash flow from vperations in fiscal 2001, His
focus in the coming vear will be on leveraging
working capital to reduce debt and improve

our earnings. We have invested for the future,

at the sacrifice of short-term gains, and now
we are poised to reap the rewards,

In closing, [ want to thank our loval
harcholders. cus s and emslovees
sharcholders, customers and cmplovees.

With vour continuing support, we make a
visible difference in the way people everywhere

think of lighting,

Wayne R. Hellman

Chairman and Chief Exccutive Officer

§300

I

o G oo C

Uni-Form Pulse Start Sales
TDORLARS IN MIELLIONS T
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Report contains statements which constitute forward looking statements within the meaning of
Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
These statements appear in a number of places in this Report and include statements regarding the intent,
belief or current expectations of Advanced Lighting Technologies, Inc. and its subsidiaries (the
“Company” or “ADLT”), its directors or its officers with respect to, among other things: (i) the
Company's financing plans; (ii) trends affecting the Company's financial condition or results of
operations; (iii) continued growth of the metal halide lighting market; (iv) the Company's operating
strategy and growth strategy; (v) potential acquisitions or joint ventures by the Company; (vi) the
declaration and payment of dividends; (vii) litigation affecting the Company; (viii) the timely
development and market acceptance of new products; (ix) the possibility that any success at Deposition
Sciences, Inc. (an ADLT subsidiary) will not be reflected in the value of the ADLT common stock; (x)
the ability to provide adequate incentives to retain and attract key employees; and (xi) the impact of
competitive products and pricing. Prospective investors are cautioned that any such forward looking
statements are not guarantees of future performance and involve risks and uncertainties, and that actual
results may differ materially from those projected in the forward looking statements as a result of various
factors. The accompanying information contained in this Report, including without limitation the
information set forth under the headings "Risk Factors,” "Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations" and "Business," identifies important factors that could
cause such differences.

RISK FACTORS

You should consider carefully the following factors, as well as the other information that we include or
incorporate by reference in this report, in evaluating an investment in our securities. To make the
discussion of these factors easier to read, when we discuss the Company we refer to it as “we.”

If Metal Halide Lighting Does Not Gain Wider Market Acceptance, Our Business and Financial
Performance May Suffer

We derive a substantial portion of our net sales and income from selling metal halide materials, systems
and components, and production equipment. Revenues from metal halide products represented
approximately 75% of net sales in fiscal 2001 and 72% of net sales in fiscal 2000. Cur current
operations and growth strategy are focused on the metal halide lighting and telecommunications
industries. Metal halide is the newest of all commercial lighting technologies. Metal halide lamp sales
represented approximately 10% of domestic lamp sales in calendar year 2000 compared to fluorescent
and incandescent lamps which represented approximately 85% of the same market. We attribute our
success to the increased acceptance of metal halide lighting in commercial and industrial uses. Our future
results are dependent upon continued growth of metal halide lighting for these and other uses. However,
metal halide lamps are not compatible with the substantial installed base of incandescent and fluorescent
lighting fixtures, and the installation of a metal halide lighting system typically involves higher initial
costs than incandescent and fluorescent lighting systems. Metal halide products may not continue to gain
market share within the overall lighting market or competitors may introduce better lighting technologies,
displacing metal halide lighting in the market. As a growth company, either of these occurrences could
have a material adverse effect on our business and our results of operations and the value of our
securities.




General Electric Company’s Relationship with Us Could Limit QOur Ability to Grow

On October 6, 1999, GE made an investment of $20.6 million for 761,250 shares of our convertible
preferred stock and a warrant which GE has exercised to acquire 998,703 shares of our common stock.
Pursuant to the terms of the GE investment agreement, GE has the right, by converting its preferred
shares, to acquire approximately 3,000,000 of our common shares. GE now holds 1,429,590 shares of
Company Common Stock. The Series A Stock and the Common Stock represent approximately 17% of
the voting power and equity ownership of the Company at August 31, 2001. GE may get additional
rights in the future if we are unable to maintain a 2 to 1 ratio of earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortization to interest charges for a six-month measurement period. Measurement
periods are the six months ending on the last day of each fiscal quarter until September 30, 2010. We did
not maintain this ratio for the six months ended December 31, 1999, September 30, 2000 or June 30,
2001, but we did for the six-month periods ended March 31, 2061, December 31, 2000, June 30, 2000,
and March 31, 2000 . Due to amendments to our agreements with GE, GE waived its rights to obtain
shares as a result of our failure to maintain these ratios in the past. GE recently agreed to such a waiver
regarding our failure to maintain the ratio for the six months ended June 30, 2001. If we fail to maintain
the ratio in future measurement periods and we do not maintain the ratio in the three calendar quarters
immediately prior to the failure, GE would obtain the right to purchase and vote additional shares of our
stock and acquire voting control of our company.

On the first future failure, if it happens, GE would obtain rights to purchase and/or vote a number of
shares determined by a formula at the time of the failure. The number of shares owned or available to
GE at that time would be greater than 35% but less than a majority of our stock. At the time of the
second future failure, if it happens, GE would own or have the right to purchase and/or vote the number
of shares, which would be a majority of our stock. The existence of a large block of shares which could
effectively control our shareholder votes, or which could be sold in public or private sales, may limit our
ability to obtain financing in the future from other sources, including public offerings or private sale of
our common stock.

We intend to devote substantial resources to developing the telecommunications business of our
subsidiary, Deposition Sciences, Inc. (DSI). This will adversely affect our ability to meet the GE ratio
unless we maintain positive earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization at DSI. As a
result, the investment in telecommunications may negatively affect our ability to maintain the required
ratio under our agreement with GE. If we fail to maintain the required ratio, in the circumstances
described in the preceding paragraph, GE would obtain the additional rights to purchase and/or vote our
common shares as described above.

If GE or Another Investor Can Vote More Than 35% of Qur Stock, We May Have to Repay Loans

If GE, or any investor or group of investors, other than Mr. Hellman or his family, own or get the right to

vote and/or acquire, a total of more than 35% of our stock, our credit facility banks will have the right to

demand payment under our revolving and term loans, and we will have to offer to repurchase our 8%

Notes at a purchase price of 101% of the face amount, together with unpaid interest. These provisions 2
may make it more difficult for someone to take us over. We can’t be sure that we will have adequate

resources to meet our obligations relating to these loans and our 8% Notes if an investor gains a 35%

voting interest. Even if we can meet these obligations, if we have to repay the credit facility banks and

repurchase our 8% Notes, it could hurt our ability to finance operations and future growth.




General Electric Company’s Rights Could Strain Qur Financial Resources

In October 2004, GE has a one-time right to make us redeem their preferred stock, although we have up
to one year to arrange financing. GE also has the right to make us redeem their preferred stock if GE
does not get the necessary governmental approvals of their rights to acquire more of our shares in the
future, if we issue additional common shares, if any of our subsidiaries issue additional common shares
or if we borrow more than a total of $210 million. The existence of these limits may reduce our ability to
obtain financing in the future. If we have to redeem the preferred stock, our financial resources will be
reduced, and could cause us to default under the indenture governing our 8% Senior Notes Due 2008.
We are required to redeem shares of this preferred stock, which have not been converted to common
stock by October 2010. Although GE cannot make us redeem their preferred stock if a default results,
the failure to redeem GE’s preferred stock after GE makes a request for redemption could adversely
affect our relationship with GE.

Our Proposed Sale of Our Fixtures Businesses May Not Be Completed or May Not Be Completed
as Promptly as We Expect, Reducing the Benefits of the Transaction to Us

As we announced on September 21, 2001, we have signed a letter of intent to sell our fixture subsidiaries,
Ruud Lighting, Kramer Lighting and Ruud Lighting Europe, to an investor group led by Alan J. Ruud.

As we announced, the transaction is expected to reduce our debt by approximately $41 million and to
increase operating margins (the percentage of operating profit for each sales dollar). The transaction is
subject to certain conditions, including approval by our board of directors, approval by our lending banks
and completion of financing arrangements by the purchasers. We cannot be certain that we will get these
approvals or that we can get them promptly. If the transaction is not completed or if it is delayed, the
benefits of the transaction will not be realized or will be delayed. The failure to realize the benefits of
the Ruud transaction promptly could have an adverse effect on the operations and profitability of our
business.

Our Propesed Sale of Qur Fixtures Businesses Will Reduce Qur Total Assets and Total Revenues
and Qur Reduced Size May Make [t More Difficult To Get Financing

We have signed a letter of intent to sell our fixture subsidiaries because our management believes that by
reducing our debt and improving our operating margins, our stock will be a more attractive investment.
However, our total assets and total revenues would be reduced, and as a smaller company, we may have
difficulty attracting investors, even with improved operating results.

General Electric Company’s Relationship with Us Could Harm Qur Relationship with Other
Lighting Companies

Some of our significant suppliers and customers are also lighting companies. We have not experienced
any adverse impact from these other companies since the March 1999 public announcement of the
agreement in principle regarding GE’s investment. However, we do not yet know if this increased
investment will have an adverse affect on our relationship with other major companies in the lighting
business.




We Will Require Substantial Expenditures to Exploit Our Technology for Telecommunications
Products

DSI has technology that can be used in telecommunications applications. However, the effort to exploit
this technology for production of additional telecommunications products and the expansion of
production capabilities for current products, will require us to make substantial expenditures for facilities
and machinery and research and development (although approximately $17 million of our initial phase of
$23 million in expenditures has been completed). We are devoting substantial resources for new
facilities and equipment to the production of thin film coatings, assemblies and components used in
telecommunications. We may be required to seek additional equity or debt financing to compete
effectively in these markets. We cannot precisely determine the timing and amount of funding
requirements and each will depend on several factors, including our acquisitions and the demand for our
products and products under development. Such additional financing may not be available when needed,
or, if available, may not be on terms satisfactory to us.

Our Degree of Indebtedness Could Limit Cur Ability to Grow and React to Changes in Market
Conditions

At June 30, 2001, we had approximately $164.0 million of total indebtedness outstanding and $117.8
million of preferred and common shareholders’ equity. At June 30, 2001, we also had $18.1 million
available (subject to borrowing base compliance and other limitations) to be drawn under our bank credit
facility.

The indentures under which we have issued and may issue our debt securities permit us and our
subsidiaries to incur substantial amounts of additional indebtedness in the future. The degree to
which we are leveraged could have important consequences to holders of our securities, including the
following:

o our ability to obtain additional financing in the future for working capital, capital expenditures,
acquisitions or other purposes may be limited, and

o our flexibility in planning for or reacting to changes in market conditions may be limited, causing us
to be more vulnerable in the event of a downturn in our business. N

Operating Without Additional Cash Resources Could Limit Gur Operations and Growth

Subsequent to our year ended June 30, 2001, we instituted cost reduction measures intended to allow our
operations to produce more cash revenues than we spend on operations. We have spent more money on
our operations than the revenues our operations have generated in four of our last five fiscal years, and
have spent more money on operations and investing in our business than our operations have generated in
each of our last six fiscal years. While we believe we will generate more cash in our operations than we
are spending on operations, we can’t assure investors that the cost-saving measures will generate positive
cash flow from our operations in the future. In addition, we are not currently generating sufficient cash
in our business to make the investments in our future growth that we would like. Our ability to borrow
additional money under our $65 million bank credit facility is limited. In order to have enough cash for
future operations and growth, we must generate greater net cash flow and/or demonstrate our ability to
achieve acceptable financial results in order to increase our access to additional cash resources from
lenders and investors.




Allocation of ADLT Resources to DSI May Not be in the Best Interest of ADLT Shareholders

The success of DSI’s telecommunications business unit will depend not only on access to external
sources of capital and the expansion of the telecommunications infrastructure but also the internal
resources of ADLT’s consolidated business. Although we are allocating financial and human resources
to DSI because we believe the investment will ultimately return enhanced value to ADLT and our
shareholders, there can be no assurance of such success. In addition, the allocation of resources to the
telecommunications business unit may result in us allocating fewer resources to our core lighting
business. As a result, until such time, if any, that we achieve a positive return on our investment in DSI’s
telecommunications business unit, our future liquidity may be adversely affected and our operating
results will be adversely affected.

Our Loan to Mr. Hellman May Impair Qur Capital Resources

On October 8, 1998, we made a $9 million loan to Wayne R. Hellman, our Chairman and CEQ. The loan
was originally due on October 6, 1999. Mr. Hellman has paid interest accrued on the loan through
October 6, 1999." We made additional advances to Mr. Hellman of $2.785 million in fiscal 2001 and
$970,350 since June 30, 2001. The term of the loan has been extended to October 6, 2001. If Mr.
Hellman doesn’t repay the loan in accordance with the current understanding, it could materially and
adversely affect our ability to obtain money from lenders and investors. If we take action to make Mr.
Hellman pay the loan, it may hurt Mr. Hellman's performance, which could hurt our operations.

If We Are Unable te Develop and Broaden Product Lines Qur Business May Suffer

We have broadened our systems and components product line. The marketing efforts and strategies for
such product extensions are quite different from those we have used for our historical operations. These
differences are based on the need to focus efforts on sales to the user of the products rather than lighting
fixture original equipment manufacturers. We may not be successful in adding new products to our
current product categories or in developing new categories of products. If we are unable to successfully
~ add new products or develop new product categories, this could adversely affect our future growth and
financial results.

QOur Business Success Has Been Based on New Products, and If We Do Not Introduce New
Products, Our Business May Suffer

We attribute our historical success, in large part, to the introduction of new products in each of our
product lines to meet the requirements of our customers. Our future success will depend upon our
continued ability to develop and introduce innovative metal halide lighting and telecommunications
products. Even though we spent significant amounts on research and development in fiscal 2001 and in
prior years, we may not be able to develop or introduce innovative products in the future. Even if a new
product is developed for a particular use, the product may not be commercially successful. In addition,
competitors occasionally have followed our introduction of successful metal halide lighting products
with similar product offerings. As a result of these and other factors, we may not continue to be
successful in introducing new products. Since we are viewed as a growth company, if we are unable to
successfully introduce new products, this inability could adversely affect our financial results and the
value of our securities.




QOur Significant Past Growth and Future Growth Objectives Strain Qur Resources

We have experienced significant growth in recent years. This has placed a strain on our management, !
employees, finances and operations. In light of current economic conditions, we have taken actions to
reduce costs and our workforce. In addition, we recently announced that we had signed a letter of intent
to sell our fixture subsidiaries, Ruud Lighting, Kramer Lighting and Ruud Lighting Europe.
Nevertheless, we have set aggressive growth objectives for net sales and net income in our remaining
businesses, which may continue to strain our resources. These objectives may be increasingly difficult to
achieve. To achieve these objectives, we will seek to develop new products and new uses for our
products and seek to expand our distribution capabilities. We may also seek to acquire and/or invest in
related businesses inside and outside of the United States. Any of our efforts in pursuit of these
objectives may expose us to risks that could adversely affect our results of operations and financial
condition. To manage growth effectively, we must continue to implement changes in many aspects of our
business; expand our information systems; increase the capacity and productivity of our materials,
components, systems and production equipment operations; develop our metal halide systems capability;
and hire, develop, train and manage an increasing number of managerial, production and other
employees. Also, we have made and may continue to extend our product lines through acquisitions. The
success of these acquisitions will depend on the integration of the acquired operations with our existing
operations. If we are unable to anticipate or manage growth effectively, our operating results could be
adversely affected. Likewise, if we are unable to successfully integrate acquired operations and manage
expenses and risks associated with integrating the administration and information systems of acquired
companies, our operating results could be adversely affected.

We May Be Unable to Realize Benefits from Acquisitions and Investments

In order to implement our business strategy, we may from time-to-time consider expansion of our }
products and services through joint ventures, strategic partnerships and acquisitions of, and/or

investments in, other business entities. We have no agreement or understanding with any significant

prospective acquisition or investment candidate in respect of a specific transaction. We cannot be certain

as to the timing or amount of any return or anticipated benefits that we might realize on any acquisition

or investment. In addition, the indenture governing our 8% Notes currently limits the amount available §
for investments (but not acquisitions) to a total available amount of approximately $6 million (which is

expected to be dedicated to the purchase note we would get in the Ruud Transaction).

Acquisitions or investments could require us to commit funds, which could reduce our future liquidity.

Our possible future acquisitions or investments could result in additional debt, contingent liabilities and

amortization expenses related to certain intangible assets, as well as write-offs of unsuccessful _
acquisitions, any or all of which could materially adversely affect our performance, and, therefore, (
holders of our securities. We have made several acquisitions since 1997. We have entered into a letter of

intent to sell Ruud Lighting, Inc., our largest acquisition to date, and two other subsidiaries. There can

be no assurance that we will be able to integrate future acquisitions or to manage any expanded

operations effectively. In addition, since 1997 we have made substantial investments in entities that we

do not and will not be able to control. We may find it difficult or impossible to realize cash flows from
these investments, or to liquidate these investments, which could adversely affect the holders of our

securities.




The Extent of Qur International Business Operations Could Hurt Qur Performance

We have derived, and expect to derive in the future, a substantial portion of our net sales from our
international business. Revenues from customers outside of the United States represented approximately
33% of our net sales for fiscal 2001. Our international joint ventures and operations and our export sales
are subject to the risks inherent in doing business abroad, including delays in shipments, adverse
fluctuations in currency exchange rates, increases in import duties and tariffs, and changes in foreign
regulations and political climate. We have granted and will grant our joint ventures and operations in
foreign countries rights to use our technology. While we will attempt to protect our intellectual property
rights in these foreign joint ventures and operations, the laws of many foreign countries do not protect
intellectual property rights to the same extent as the laws of the United States.

Approximately 22% of our net sales in fiscal 2001 were denominated in currencies other than U.S.
dollars, principally pounds sterling, Australian dollars and Canadian dollars. A weakening of these
currencies versus the U.S. dollar could have a material adverse effect on our business and results of
operations and, therefore, holders of our securities. We did not hedge our foreign currency exposure in
fiscal 2001, however we have started a program in fiscal 2002 to hedge some foreign currency balance
sheet exposures which is intended to reduce any significant impact on earnings or cash flows.

If We Are Unable to Protect Qur Important Patents and Trade Secrets or If Others Enforce Rights
Against Us, Qur Business May Suffer

We rely primarily on trade secret, trademark and patent laws to protect some of our rights to our
products, like proprietary manufacturing processes and technologies, product research, concepts and
trademarks. These rights are important to the success of our products and our competitive position. The
actions that we take to protect our proprietary rights may not be adequate to prevent imitation of our
products, processes or technology. Our proprietary information may become known to competitors; we
may not be able to effectively protect our rights to non-patented proprietary information; and others may
independently develop substantially equivalent or better products that do not infringe on our intellectual
property rights. Other parties may assert rights in, and ownership of, our patents and other proprietary
rights. Any of these developments could adversely affect the way we currently conduct our business.
The patent positions of companies such as ADLT and its subsidiaries can be highly uncertain and involve
complex legal and factual questions, and therefore the breadth of claims allowed in such patents and their
enforceability cannot be predicted. Therefore, we cannot assure you that the claims in any existing or
subsequently issued patent will be sufficient to protect ADLT’s or its subsidiaries intellectual property;
or that such patent will not be challenged, invalidated, held unenforceable or circumvented; or that the
rights granted thereunder will provide proprietary protection or competitive advantages.

Any litigation involving misappropriation of our trade secrets or other intellectual property rights could
require us to increase significantly the resources devoted to such efforts. In addition, an adverse
determination in litigation could subject us to the loss of our rights to a particular trade secret, trademark
or patent; could require us to grant licenses to third parties; could prevent us from manufacturing, selling
or using related aspects of our products; or could subject us to substantial liability. Because we are a
company that relies on advanced technology and innovation, any of these occurrences could have a
material adverse effect on our results of operations.




If We Lose Our Key Personnel, It Could Adversely Affect Qur Business

We are highly dependent on the continued services of Wayne R. Hellman, our founder, Chairman, Chief i
Executive Officer, and principal shareholder. We and Mr. Hellman have entered into an employment

agreement providing for a term ending December 31, 2003. The loss of the services of Mr. Hellman for

any reason could have a material adverse effect on our business and, in turn, to investors in our

securities. We are the beneficiary of life insurance that we maintain with respect to Mr. Hellman, in the

amount of $8 million.

Contrel of Qur Stock by Principal Shareholders May Allow Them to Significantly Influence
Shareholder Decisions, Which Could Adversely Affect Interests of Other Helders of Qur Securities

Mr. Hellman individually owns approximately 7.1% of the outstanding shares of our common stock and,

individually and in other capacities, has the power to vote a total of 14.4% of the outstanding shares of

common stock (or approximately 12.3% of the shareholder voting power). Mr. Ruud individually owns

approximately 9.2% of the outstanding shares of common stock and, individually and as a voting trustee,

has the power to vote a total of approximately 15.6% of the outstanding shares of common stock (or

approximately 13.3% of the shareholder voting power). GE owns shares of our preferred stock with ‘
voting power equivalent to approximately 11.6% of our common stock and GE owns approximately 6.1%

of our common stock. This gives GE approximately 17.0% of total shareholder voting power. In addition

to GE’s ownership, in the future, GE may gain the right to vote shares owned or voted by Mr. Hellman

and Mr. Ruud. As a result, although GE, Mr. Hellman, and Mr. Ruud have no arrangement or

understanding of any kind with each other as to the current voting of their shares, either GE, Mr.

Hellman, or Mr. Ruud, or any combination of them, may be able to significantly influence, and may be

able effectively to control, all matters requiring shareholder approval, including the election of directors ’-
(which could control our affairs and our management), amendments to our articles of incorporation,
mergers, share exchanges, the sale of all or substantially all of our assets, going-private transactions and
other fundamental transactions. Accordingly, the decisions of our principal shareholders could have a
material adverse effect on the market price of our common stock or the value of our other securities.

Our Stock Price Has Varied Widely and May Vary Widely in the Future. Wide Variation May |
Make it Difficult for Us to Sell Cur Stock and Strain Qur Financial Resources

Our common stock first became publicly traded in December 1995. After the initial public offering, the
stock price rose substantially from the initial public offering price of $10 per share. The price of our
common stock has varied widely. During fiscal 2001, the price for our common stock ranged from $3.90
to $19.94 per share. From June 30, 2001 through September 10, 2001, the price of our common stock
ranged from $2.29 to $5.86. In addition, we cannot predict the ultimate success of our
telecommunications business unit, which may cause substantial fluctuations in the market price of our
common stock. Our net revenues and operating results, and the net revenues of our telecommunications
business unit, in future quarters may be below the expectations of public market securities analysts and
investors. In such event, the price of our common stock would likely decline, perhaps substantially. This
wide variation and the possibility of wide variation in the future may make it difficult for us to sell shares
of our common stock at prices which we believe reflect the value of our stock or make it difficult to sell
our common stock at all. If we can’t sell our common stock to obtain the money we need, it may be
difficult to operate and grow.




Environmental Regulations Could Strain OQur Resources

Our operations are subject to federal, state, local and foreign laws and regulations governing, among
other things, emissions to air, discharge to waters, and the generation, handling, storage, transportation,
treatment and disposal of waste and other materials. We believe that our business operations and
facilities are being operated in compliance in all material respects with applicable environmental, health
and safety laws and regulations, many of which provide for substantial fines and criminal sanctions for
violations. However, the operations of manufacturing plants entail risks in these areas, and we could
incur material costs or liabilities. In addition, we could be required to make potentially significant
expenditures to comply with evolving environmental, health and safety laws, regulations or requirements
that may be adopted or imposed in the future. The imposition of significant environmental liabilities on
us could have a material adverse effect on our business and financial results.

Because Qur Primary Competitors Are More Established and Have More Resources Than We Do,
We May Lack the Resources to Capture Increased Market Share

We compete with respect to our major lighting products with numerous well-established producers of
materials, components, and systems and equipment, many of which possess greater financial,
manufacturing, marketing and distribution resources than we do. In addition, many of these competitors'
products utilize technology that has been broadly accepted in the marketplace (i.e., incandescent and
fluorescent lighting) and is better known to consumers than is our metal halide technology. We compete
with GE, Philips Electronics N.V. and Siemens A.G.'s OSRAM/Sylvania, Inc. subsidiary in the sale of
metal halide lamps. We estimate, based on published industry data, that these three companies had a
combined domestic market share of approximately 85% for metal halide lamps based on units sold and
approximately 95% of the total domestic lamp market. Accordingly, these companies dominate the lamp
industry and exert significant influence over the channels through which all lamp products, including
ours, are distributed and sold. Our component products and systems also face strong competition,
particularly in the power supply market, in which our two largest competitors, Advanced Transformer
Co. (a division of Philips) and Magnetek, Inc., each have a larger market share than we do. Our
competitors may increase their focus on metal halide materials, systems and components, and expand
their product lines to compete with our products. This type of increase or expansion could make it more
difficult for us to maintain sales or grow.

DSI competes with respect to its major telecommunications products with numerous producers of
components and systems, many of which possess greater financial, manufacturing, marketing and
distribution resources than DSI. The principal competitors for DSI’s products are certain large OEMs,
such as JDS Uniphase Corporation, Corning Incorporated, and Lucent Technologies, Inc., which have
significant internal capability to manufacture thin film filter products, and a variety of smaller companies
which specialize in optical coatings, such as Cierra Photonics, Inc., Precision Optics Corp., Inc., Barr
Associates, Inc., Iridian Spectral Technologies, Ltd., Thin Film Technologies, Inc., and Evaporated
Coatings, Inc. DSI’s failure to effectively compete in the telecommunications market could adversely
affect the trading price of our common stock.

We Sell Products to Qur Competitors and Purchase Components from Cur Competitors, and
These Relationships Could Change Based on Qur Competitors’ Interests. This Creates a Risk of
Potential Declines in Sales and Reduced Access to Components.

Although we compete with GE, Philips and Sylvania in the sale of our lighting products, we also
purchase a significant quantity of raw materials and private label lamps from these three companies
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(aggregating $13.8 million in fiscal 2001, of which $9.4 million was from GE) and derive significant
revenue from sales of our materials, components, and systems to each of these three companies
(aggregating $22.2 million in fiscal 2001, of which $7.6 million was to GE). Any significant change in
our relationships with these companies, or in the manner in which these companies participate in the
manufacturing, distribution, and sale of metal halide lighting products, could have a material adverse
effect on our business and, in turn, holders of our securities.

If the Telecommunications Business Unit Does Not Achieve Acceptable Manufacturing Velumes,
Yields or Sufficient Product Reliability, Qur Operating Results Could Suffer

The manufacture of DSI’s products involves highly complex and precise processes, requiring production
in highly controlled and clean environments. Changes in DSI’s manufacturing processes, or those of its
suppliers, or inadvertent use of defective or contaminated materials, could significantly reduce DSI’s
manufacturing yields and product reliability. To the extent that the telecommunications business unit |
does not achieve acceptable manufacturing yields or experiences product shipment delays, our business,

operating results and financial condition could be materially and adversely affected.

If we are successful in expanding the market for DSI’s telecommunications products, we must increase
our manufacturing volumes to meet customers’ needs and satisfy customer demand. Failure to do so may
materially harm our business, operating results and financial condition. In some cases, existing
manufacturing techniques, which involve substantial manual labor, may be insufficient to achieve the
volume or cost targets of our customers. As such, we will need to develop new manufacturing processes
and techniques, which are anticipated to involve higher levels of automation, to achieve the targeted
volume and cost levels. In addition, it may be difficult to hire qualified manufacturing personnel in a
timely fashion, if at all, when customer demands increase over shortened time periods. While we
continue to devote research and development efforts to improvement of our manufacturing techniques
and processes, we may not achieve manufacturing volumes and cost levels that will fully satisfy customer
demands.

If DSI’s Customers Do Not Qualify DSI’s Manufacturing Lines for Volume Shipments, Qur
Operating Results Could Suffer

Customers will not purchase any of DSI’s products (other than limited numbers of evaluation units) prior
to qualification of the manufacturing line for the product. Each new manufacturing line must go through
varying levels of qualification with our customers. This qualification process determines whether the
manufacturing line achieves the customers’ quality, performance and reliability standards. Delays in
qualification can result in significant lost revenue opportunity over the term of that program. DSI may
experience delays in obtaining customer qualification of new facilities. If DSI fails in the timely {
qualification of these or other new manufacturing lines, our operating results and customer relationships {
would be adversely affected.

Fiber Optic Component Average Selling Prices Are Dec¢lining

Prices for telecommunications fiber optic components are generally declining because of, among other
things, increased competition and greater unit volumes as telecommunications service providers continue
to deploy fiber optic networks. We anticipate that average-selling prices will decrease in the future in
response to product introductions by competitors and DSI or to other factors, including price pressures
from significant customers. Therefore, DSI must (1) timely develop and introduce new products that
incorporate features that can be sold at higher selling prices and (2) reduce its manufacturing costs.
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Failure to achieve any or all of the foregoing may have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and operating results.

Our Agreements with Creditors Impose Restrictions that Could Impede Qur Growth
The bank credit facility and the 8% Notes indenture contain restrictive covenants, including

o covenants limiting our ability and our subsidiaries' ability to incur additional indebtedness, pay
dividends, make investments, consummate asset sales, enter into transactions with affiliates and incur
liens; and

o covenants imposing restrictions on the ability of our subsidiaries to pay dividends or make payments to
us, merge or consolidate with any other person or sell, assign, transfer, lease, convey or otherwise
dispose of all or substantially all of our assets.

Although the covenants are subject to exceptions that were designed to allow us and our subsidiaries to
operate without undue restraint, these covenants could adversely affect our ability to finance our future
operations or capital needs or engage in other business activities, which may be in our interest. In addition,
our bank credit facility requires that we maintain financial ratios. Our growth will depend in part upon our
ability to fund acquisitions and investments, any of which may make it more difficult to maintain financial
ratios. Our ability to comply with these provisions may be affected by events beyond our control. A breach
of any of these covenants or the inability to comply with the required financial ratios could result in a
default under our bank credit facility that would entitle the lenders to accelerate payment of the entire debt.
This would adversely affect us and holders of our securities. We replaced our earlier credit facility in 1999,
and we have amended our bank credit facility since it was put into place, in part to amend these covenants.
These amendments were necessary to allow us to borrow cash necessary to maintain our operations and to
finance purchases of machinery and equipment to improve our operations. As a growth company, we may
need to amend or replace our bank credit facility prior to its maturity on July 1, 2004.
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PART I
Item 1. Business !
Background

The Company was formed on May 19, 1995 and acquired ownership, primarily by merger (the

"Combination™), of affiliated companies that were previously under common ownership and management

(the "Predecessors"). Unless the context otherwise requires, the "Company" refers to Advanced Lighting
Technologies, Inc., its subsidiaries and the Predecessors. Industry data in this Report with respect to the ‘
lighting industry is reported on a calendar year basis and includes the industrial, commercial and

residential sectors but not the automotive sector. Unless otherwise stated herein, such industry data is

derived from selected reports published by the National Electrical Manufacturers Association

(“NEMA™).

The Company

Advanced Lighting Technologies, Inc. is an innovation-driven designer, manufacturer and marketer of
metal halide lighting products. Metal halide lighting combines superior energy efficient illumination with
long lamp (i.e., light bulb) life, excellent color rendition and compact lamp size. The Company believes
that it is the only designer and manufacturer in the world focused primarily on metal halide lighting. As a
result of this unique focus, the Company has developed substantial expertise in all aspects of metal halide
lighting. The Company believes that this focus enhances its responsiveness to customer demand and has
contributed to its technologically advanced product development and manufacturing capabilities.

The metal halide market is the fastest growing segment of the domestic lighting market, demonstrated by

metal halide lamp sales having grown at a compound annual rate of approximately 14% since 1993,

although growth has varied substantially from year to year. The Company's strong market position, new

product development capabilities, strategic acquisitions and participation in international markets have

enabled the Company to increase its revenues at rates in excess of the growth of the domestic metal

halide market. The Company's sales increased at a compound annual growth rate of 26.1% to $219.4

million in fiscal 2001 from $86.9 million in fiscal 1997. )

The Company has integrated vertically to design, manufacture and market a broad range of metal halide
products, including materials used in the production of lamps, and lamps and other components for
lighting systems as well as complete metal halide lighting systems. The Company's materials and
components are used in the manufacture of its own lighting systems for sale to end-users and are sold to
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third-party manufacturers for use in the production of their metal halide products. The vertical integration
of the Company's approach to its products is illustrated below:

Metal Halide Products
Vertical Integration from Materials through Systems

Products for Manufacturers Products for End Users
- | Metal Halide Systems S——
Produced bv the Compnanv
MATERIALS 5 Third Party Lamp CIor(rilmfr'(:lsl/
Manufacturers ndaustnal;
LAMPS ¢ Cutdoor Applications
¥
POWER SUPPLIES
Metal Halide Systems B
CONTROLS Produced bv Third Parties
RETROFIT KITS Direct Sales of Lamps, Power New Applications
2> Supplies, Retrofit Kits > .
OPTICS/COATINGS by the Company - New Optics
- Residential
N Lighting

- Telecom Systems

Metal Halide

Invented approximately 35 years ago, metal halide is the newest of all major lighting technologies and
can produce the closest simulation to sunlight of any available lighting technology. Metal halide lighting
is currently used primarily in commercial and industrial applications such as factories and warehouses,
outdoor site and landscape lighting, sports facilities and large retail spaces such as superstores. In
addition, due to metal halide's superior lighting characteristics, the Company believes many opportunities
exist to "metal halidize" applications currently dominated by older incandescent and fluorescent lighting
technologies. For example, a 100-watt metal halide lamp, which is approximately the same size as a
household incandescent lamp, produces as much light as five 100 watt incandescent lamps and as much
as three 34-watt, four-foot long fluorescent lamps. However, metal halide lamps are not compatible with
the substantial installed base of incandescent and fluorescent lighting fixtures. While metal halide
systems generally offer lower costs over the life of a system, the installation of a metal halide lighting
system typically involves higher initial costs than incandescent and fluorescent lighting systems.

While domestic sales of incandescent and fluorescent lamps have grown at a compound annual rate of
approximately 3% since 1993, domestic metal halide lamp sales have grown at a compound annual rate
of approximately 14% over the same period, making metal halide the fastest growing segment of the
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approximately $2.8 billion domestic lamp market. In 2000, metal halide accounted for approximately
10% of domestic lamp sales by dollar volume.

The Company believes that the majority of the growth of metal halide lighting has occurred in
commercial and industrial applications. Metal halide systems have been introduced in fiber optic,
projection television and automotive headlamp applications. The Company believes that additional
opportunities for metal halide lighting exist in other applications where energy efficiency and light
quality are important. As a result of the Company's dominant position in metal halide materials, the
Company expects to benefit from continued growth in metal halide markets. In addition, the Company
expects to be a leader in metal halide's continued market expansion by providing innovative metal halide
system components and integrated systems.

Recent Developments
Proposed Sale of Fixture Operations

In September 2001, the Company announced that it had signed a letter of intent to sell its fixture
subsidiaries, known as Ruud Lighting, Kramer Lighting, and Ruud Lighting Europe, to an investor group
led by Alan J. Ruud, ADLT’s current President and Chief Operating Officer. The transaction is expected
to reduce the Company’s debt by approximately $41 million. In addition, the Company would receive a
$6 million purchase note. If the Company receives the consent of the majority in principal amount of its
8% Senior Notes, it may require delivery of 3 million shares of Company common stock in satisfaction of
the purchase note. The Company anticipates that the sale will be completed in the fiscal 2002 second
quarter ending December 31, 2001. The Company expects a substantial noncash charge from the
transaction based on the current terms of the letter of intent. Mr. Wayne R. Hellman, the Company’s
Chief Executive Officer and Mr. Steven C. Potts, the Company’s Chief Financial Officer will assume
Mr. Ruud’s responsibilities. The letter of intent is subject to certain conditions including approval of the
transaction by the Company’s Board of Directors, approval by the Company’s lending banks and
completion of financing arrangements by the purchasers. The Company has no assurance that these
conditions can be satisfied, or that any consent can be obtained from holders of the Company’s 8%
Senior Notes.

Consolidation of Power Supply Operations

In July 2001, the Company announced that it is consolidating its power supply production operations
from Draycott, England into its existing high-efficiency factory in Chennai (Madras), India. The
Company’s magnetic and electronic ballast, ignitor and electronic controls manufacturing will be
relocated from England to India during the first half of fiscal 2002. The consolidation is expected to
reduce manufacturing costs by providing a central manufacturing location to serve the Company’s
international operations.

The Company plans to take a charge that is related to closing costs, including severance packages, costs
associated with moving equipment and related set-up costs. The charge is expected to be between $1.5
million and $2 million and will be taken in the first quarter of fiscal 2002. The Company expects the
consolidation to result in cost savings of approximately $2 million per year.

Restructuring of Worldwide Operations

In August 2001, the Company announced that it will further restructure its worldwide operations. As a
result of this restructuring, the Company expects to reduce operating costs by approximately $8 million
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annually. The plan includes staff reductions at all levels and the consolidation of certain overlapping
operations.

The combined effect of the consolidation of the power supply operations discussed above and the
worldwide restructuring is expected to be annualized savings of approximately $10 million. The
Company expects to take a total charge of approximately $4 million to $6 million relating to severance
and implementation costs for these actions, most of which will be taken in the first quarter of fiscal 2002.

Issuance of Common Stock

On August 31, 2000, the Company completed a public offering of 1,700,000 shares of its common stock
at a price of $15.00 per share under a $300 million shelf registration filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission which became effective in July 2000.

Executive Offices

The Company's principal executive offices are located at 32000 Aurora Road, Solon, Chio 44139 and its
telephone number is 440/519-0500.

_ Lighting Industry
Opportunities in Metal Halide

The Company currently produces metal halide lighting products for commercial, industrial and
residential applications. Until recently, metal halide technology served primarily the industrial and
outdoor sectors, which the Company estimates, represents approximately 32% of U.S. lighting fixture
sales. However, with the miniaturization of metal halide lamps and fixtures and the recognition of the
benefits of metal halide technology, including improved light color, energy efficiency, lower operating
temperature and safety of metal halide products relative to other technologies, significant opportunities
for growth exist. Key factors driving growth in the metal halide industry include:

Demand for Specialized Lamps. The demand for specialized metal halide lamps has increased as the
Company's original equipment manufacturer (“OEM”) and lighting agent customers have recognized the
benefits associated with using specialized metal halide products. Although GE, Philips and Sylvania are
the lighting industry leaders, these companies have traditionally focused on the larger incandescent and
fluorescent markets and have limited production of metal halide lamps to general applications, such as
commercial and industrial applications. While these standard-type metal halide lamps represent a
substantial majority of total metal halide lamp sales, they do not afford the CEM or lighting agent
complete flexibility in designing lighting contract bids. When an agent places his bid for a lighting
contract, he may specify the Company’s specialized metal halide lamps that give better light and greater
energy savings in an attempt to differentiate his bid from a competitor who only specifies standard
products.

Development of New and Advanced Metal Halide Power Supplies. Historically, the introduction of new
metal halide lamps and systems has been constrained by the lack of complementary metal halide power
supplies. Significant engineering expertise is required to adapt existing power supplies for new metal
halide products. The Company believes that while domestic sales of metal halide power supplies
approximated $210 million in 2000, power supply manufacturers, like lamp manufacturers, have focused
on the larger fluorescent power supply market and, to a lesser extent, on the standard-type metal halide
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lamp market rather than development of new power supply products for specialized metal halide products
and applications. The development of appropriate power supply sources focused on metal halide should
significantly enhance the expansion of metal halide applications, reduce the development time currently
required to introduce new metal halide products and improve the reliability and durability of existing
metal halide products.

Opportunity for Integrated Metal Halide Systems. Metal halide systems for commercial and industrial

applications are assembled primarily by fixture manufacturers, lighting agents, and intermediaries who

are limited in their ability to integrate different components that comprise a metal halide system. The

Company believes that significant growth opportunities exist through the packaging of compatible,

reliable system components for OEM customers from a single supplier. In addition, the Company

believes that metal halide systems have significant potential to displace older lighting technologies in /
traditional applications and those residential applications will represent a substantial market for metal

halide lighting within the next five years. Other potential applications for metal halide systems include

fiber optic systems, projection television displays and automotive headlamps.

International Demand for Metal Halide. International markets represent long-term attractive
opportunities for metal halide products as developing nations continue to build infrastructure to support
their growing economies. Facilities such as train stations, airports, government buildings, highways and
factories all require substantial lighting for which metal halide products are well suited. In addition,
given the high energy efficiency of metal halide and the high cost of energy in developing nations
(including the high cost of power plant construction), the Company believes that the international metal
halide market will grow faster than the United States market in the long term.

Strategy -- Lighting

The Company believes that metal halide technology represents the best lighting technology for a wide i
variety of applications, many of which are not yet served by an appropriate metal halide product. As the

principal supplier of metal halide materials to the metal halide lamp industry, the Company expects to

benefit from continued growth in metal halide markets. The Company also expects to lead metal halide's

continued market expansion, by providing innovative metal halide system components and integrated

systems through the operating and growth strategies highlighted below.

The Company's strategic objective for lighting is to remain focused on the metal halide market and

expand its leadership position in the metal halide lighting industry by: (i} continuing to use its vertical

integration to introduce new products and applications; (ii) using its experience and technology to

continually reduce cost and improve quality to improve cash flow from operations; (iii) strengthening

the Company'’s relationships with OEMs and lighting agents to increase the number of metal halide

applications and the penetration of the Company's products in new metal halide installations; and (iv) j
seeking to demonstrate the superiority of metal halide lighting solutions, thereby stimulating domestic

and international demand for the Company's products.

The Company seeks to achieve its strategic objective through internal growth, acquisitions and strategic
investments, and focus on cost and quality. The Company’s acquisitions and investments have been made
in businesses that, when combined with the Company's existing capabilities and metal halide focus, are
intended to provide technological, product or distribution synergies and offer the potential to enhance the
Company's competitive position or accelerate development of additional metal halide market
opportunities. To the extent its capital resources allow, the Company may consider other possible
acquisition and strategic investment opportunities.
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Operating Strategy -- Lighting

The Company focuses its resources primarily on designing, manufacturing and marketing metal halide
materials, system components, and systems. By focusing on metal halide, the Company believes it has
developed unique design, manufacturing and marketing expertise. Such expertise provides the Company
with significant competitive advantages, which enable the Company to deliver highly customized
products to meet customer needs. The Company's experienced workforce is dedicated to improving metal
halide lighting products, production processes and developing new applications for this technology. The
Company has retained key personnel in the consolidation of equipment operations at its Solon facility.

In addition, in order to increase the number of metal halide applications and the penetration of the
Company's products, the Company pursues the following operating strategies:

Continue to Use Vertical Integration

The Company began operations as a manufacturer of metal halide salts and expanded into production of
system components, initially lamps. The Company has expanded its focus to include magnetic and
electronic power supplies. The Company has broadened its materials manufacturing capabilities to
include filtering and optical coatings for lighting applications, through its acquisition of DSI in 1998.
Through this vertical integration, the Company is able to develop and package complementary system
components which enable metal halide lighting to penetrate applications and markets currently served by
older technologies. The Company will continue to use vertically integrated operations where we have
competitive advantages based on patent-protected technology and first-to-market product leadership.

Improve Operating Cash Flow

The Company has historically depended on outside capital sources to fund growth. In order to reduce
this dependence and to improve its operating results, the Company continues to focus primarily on its
metal halide products and to use its experience in the design and manufacture of metal halide materials,
components and systems and focused metal halide technology to reduce operating costs by improving
production processes and product quality without substantial capital investment. Management believes
that achieving cost and quality goals will enhance operating cash flow to allow for profitable growth in a
tight capital environment. The anticipated improvements should also improve overall financial
performance, which will improve the Company’s access to capital for future investments in its business.

Strengthen OEM and Lighting Agent Relationships

The Company concentrates on developing strong relationships with lighting fixture OEMs by providing
the key system components for a lighting fixture, either alone or packaged as a unit, tailored to meet their
needs. Historically, the Company provided specialized lamps tailored to meet OEM needs. With its
ability to design and manufacture power supplies, the Company expects to better meet CEM needs by
packaging the principal system components (lamps, power supplies, switches and controls) for a lighting
fixture. Frequent interaction with OEMs serves dual purposes, providing the Company with valuable
ideas for new component products and providing OEMs with the information necessary to market the
Company's new products. Lamps and power supplies designed for a specific fixture are included with the
fixture when sold by the OEM, increasing distribution of the Company's products. The Company has also
entered into agreements with lighting agents to pay commissions for selling the Company's lamps. Such
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commissions, unique among lamp manufacturers, provide the agent an incentive to include the
Company's metal halide lamps in its bids on a construction or renovation project.

Seek to Demonstrate Superiority of Metal Halide Lighting Solutions

The Company seeks to demonstrate the superiority of metal halide lighting solutions to its customer base,
including OEMs, lighting agents and contractors, thereby stimulating domestic and international demand
for the Company's products. The Company believes that metal halide lighting systems have significant
potential to displace older lighting technologies in traditional applications, as well as potential
applications such as fiber optic systems, projection television displays and automotive headlamps.

Long-Term Growth Strategy -- Lighting

The Company is continuing to introduce more products for new applications and to expand the
distribution channels for its products. The key elements of the Company's long-term growth strategy
include:

Introduce New Products and Systems

The Company believes it has introduced a majority of the new lamps in the domestic, metal halide lamp

industry since 1985. As applications become increasingly complex, the advantage of simultaneous design

of components as an integrated system is becoming more significant. The Company now manufactures

and markets complementary component packages for COEMs. The Company intends to develop,

manufacture and market additional types of high performance and technologically advanced metal halide

materials, components and systems. Capitalizing on its expanding production capability, design

capability and unique metal halide focus, the Company expects to develop additional specialty systems,

such as fiber optic lighting systems and projection television optical systems. {

Increase Sales of Existing Products

By expanding existing relationships and developing new relationships with lighting agents and OEMs,
the Company expects to increase sales of existing specialty lamps and power supplies. The Company also
expects its sales of replacement lamps, as well as power supplies, to increase as the installed base of
fixtures for the Company's specialty lamps and power supplies increases. The Company expects to
increase sales in the replacement lamp market, in part through a novel direct marketing approach to end
users. The Company prints its toll-free phone number and e-commerce web site address on each lamp,
and customers can order replacement lamps directly from the Company for express delivery. In addition,
this interaction with customers provides the Company with the opportunity to market additional metal
halide products.

Participate in International Markets

The Company intends to capitalize on opportunities in international markets in three ways. First, the

Company directly exports its products to countries that do not impose restrictive tariffs, local content

laws and other trade barriers. The primary countries and regions in which the Company directly markets

products are the United Kingdom, Western Europe, Australia, Canada and Japan. Since July 1995, the

Company has strengthened its distribution capabilities by acquiring or investing in its distributors in ;
these countries. Second, the Company has pursued and may pursue strategic acquisitions and has built or

may build manufacturing facilities in international markets. Third, in countries that impose trade
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restrictions, the Company has sold production equipment or has entered into joint ventures with local
lamp manufacturers. Purchasers of production equipment have become customers for the Company's

metal halide salts and other materials. The Company has existing joint ventures in China, Korea and

Japan.

Penetrate the Residential Lighting Market

The Company believes that residential and consumer applications will represent a promising market for
metal halide lighting within the next five years. Over the longer term, the Company intends to lead metal
halide's penetration of the residential lighting market by: (i) developing the use of metal halide fiber optic
systems primarily through its relationship with Fiberstars, Inc.; and (ii) marketing metal halide portable
lighting fixtures (e.g., table and floor lamps) in an e-commerce format (Microsun.com).

Products

The Company designs, manufactures and sells metal halide materials, components and systems, which
are used in a wide variety of applications and locations including:

- floodlighting - sports arena lighting - general lighting
- architectural area lighting - commercial downlighting - industrial highbays
- general industrial lighting - airport and railway station - tunnel lighting
- billboard and sign lighting lighting - indirect indoor sports
- site lighting - gas station canopy lighting and office lighting
- soffit lighting - interior downlighting - parking garage lighting
- hazardous location lighting - decorative lighting - security lighting
- accent lighting - retail store downlighting - landscape lighting
and track lighting

The Company also designs, manufactures and sells thin film deposition equipment for the lighting,
telecommunications, ophthalmic and optics industries. The Company also designs, manufactures, and
sells photometric measurement instruments.

Materials

The Company produces and sells metal halide salts, electrodes, amalgams and getters. Metal halide salts
are the primary ingredients within the arc tube of metal halide lamps, which determine the lighting
characteristics of the lamp. Electrodes form the electrical connections within the lamp. Amalgams are
chemicals that are used in the arc tubes of high pressure sodium (“HPS”) lamps and in fluorescent lamps.
Getters are devices required to be included in each metal halide lamp to prevent impurities from
interfering with lamp operation.

The Company produces over 300 different metal halide salts that can be used in metal halide lamps to
produce different lighting characteristics. In addition to meeting its own needs, the Company believes it
produces all of the metal halide salts used in metal halide lamps manufactured in the United States,
including those manufactured by GE, Philips and Sylvania, and 80% of the metal halide salts used in
metal halide lamps manufactured overseas. The Company serves all major lamp manufacturers, each of
which uses different metal halide salts. The Company vigorously guards each customers' specific
formulas from other customers, including the Company's own lamp engineers. Because of its ability to
produce these ultra pure metal halide doses, the Company has also been called upon by its lamp
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manufacturer customer base to produce most of the amalgams used in the domestic production of HPS
lighting and, most recently, to develop and supply a new amalgam for fluorescent applications.

Through DSI, the Company also now produces optical thin film coatings, including coatings for lighting
applications with particular emphasis on coatings for metal halide arc tubes, as well as antireflection
coatings, and coatings for telecommunications products, electrochromic coatings for glass and plastic
ophthalmic lenses, multilayer magnetic films and emissivity modification films for classified government
applications, and infrared multilayer optical films on flexible polymeric substrates. Through a reactive
sputtering process, these coatings are electrostatically attached to a product surface. When used in
lighting applications, these coatings can significantly improve the optical performance of the light source,
protect the system and its components from harmful ultra-violet and infrared radiation, and increase the
energy efficiency of the entire system. See also “Telecommunication Applications of Company
Technology.”

Systems and Components

The Company's component products include specialty and standard lamps, magnetic and electronic
power supplies, system controls and switches and fiber optic cable. Specialty lamps are lamps designed
and manufactured for particular OEM applications. Standard lamps are high-volume lamps, which the
Company typically buys for resale under arrangements with GE and Sylvania. Power supplies are devices
that regulate power and are necessary for operation of HID and fluorescent lamps. System controls and
switches are auxiliary electrical controls included in fixtures and systems.

The Company believes it differentiates itself from other metal halide lamp manufacturers by offering a
wider variety of lamps, many of which have been customized to offer a specific solution to a lighting
problem. Since 1985, the Company believes that it has introduced a majority of the new lamps in the
domestic, metal halide lamp industry. Currently, the Company offers 86 specialty, 298 “second-
generation” Uni-Form® pulse start and 115 standard-type lamps in 20 different watt variations ranging
from 50 watts to 2,000 watts for over 30 different applications. In certain instances, the Company
produces these products for its competitors on a private label basis in order to capture sales through
competitors' distribution channels. The Company also sells standard-type lamps, which it sources from
other manufacturers.

In fiscal 1999, the Company introduced its new line of Uni-Form® pulse start products. Uni-Form®

pulse start products are a new generation of metal halide components and systems which permit (a)

increased light output with lower power utilization, (b) faster starting, (c) a quicker restart of lamps

which have been recently turned off, and (d) better color uniformity. In fiscal 2001, the Company began

to offer an expanded line of Uni-Form® pulse start lighting components and systems. As part of the

expanded line, the Company offers unique retrofit kits that enable customers to convert to second- .
generation metal halide products without having to replace the entire lighting system. Many utility \
companies are offering rebates to their customers who purchase the energy-efficient retrofit kits in order

to encourage energy conservation.

Through Venture Lighting Power Systems, North America (formerly Ballastronix), the Company's
Canadian subsidiary which manufactures magnetic power supplies, and Venture Lighting Europe
(formerly Parry), the Company's United Kingdom subsidiary which manufactures magnetic and
electronic power supplies for HID lighting systems, the Company currently offers over 450 power supply
products. The Company also offers electronic controls for metal halide lighting systems.
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A metal halide lighting system consists of a fixture, lamp, power supply, related electronic controls,
optical systems, housing, support systems and any other necessary components assembled into a product
for an end user. The Company believes it will be able to combine its metal halide expertise and system
component manufacturing capabilities to assist and encourage its customers to design, develop, produce
and market metal halide systems for innovative applications.

The Company also believes that it has a significant opportunity to introduce metal halide technology to
fiber optic lighting systems. Because of metal halide lighting's ability to produce varied lighting effects, it
is particularly well suited to be adapted as the light source for fiber optic lighting systems. Fiber optic
lighting systems are currently used in accent applications, such as swimming pool lighting or as
replacement lighting for neon lighting. In applications such as these, it is important that electricity and
heat be located separately from the desired point of light emission.

Production Equipment

In fiscal 1999, due to economic conditions in general, especially outside the United States, and as a result
of the Company’s cash preservation strategy, the Company’s equipment manufacturing operation in
Bellevue, Ohio was closed. Machinery, equipment and research and development facilities necessary to
allow the Company to continue manufacturing and support of lamp production equipment, at reduced
levels, has been moved to the Company’s Solon, Ohio facility. The Company temporarily ceased the
manufacture and sale of turnkey lamp production manufacturing groups in fiscal 1999. The Company is
currently manufacturing and selling an equipment group to an unrelated entity in China. Although the
Company could resume the sale of turnkey groups to third parties at any time, the Company believes that
currently the best opportunity lies in manufacturing or acquiring lamp production equipment for use by
the Company. The Company also manufactures and sells photometric measuring equipment, which is
used to measure quantity and quality of light for design and testing of lighting products and systems.

A metal halide lamp production equipment group consists of up to 50 different production machines.
Each lamp production equipment group sold (sells) for between $1.0 million to $6.0 million. In order to
maintain manufacturing flexibility, the Company must continually update its own component production
equipment, through the internal design and fabrication of production equipment. The Company has
leveraged its manufacturing expertise by selling lamp production equipment groups in international
markets to independent companies or to joint ventures with local lamp manufacturers. In connection
with each lamp production equipment group sale, the Company is required to provide lamp designs and
specifications, and production training, at the same time, creating a customer for its materials products.

Through DSI, a leader in the development of sophisticated thin film deposition equipment and
measurement instrumentation and thin film products, the Company also has the capability to manufacture
and market turnkey deposition equipment to produce thin film coatings for a variety of applications.
These systems employ sputtering technology to place optically precise thin coatings on lighting
components and other materials. When DSI sells a system to a customer, DSI will either operate the
system for the customer at DSI's facility or transfer the system to the customer's facility. See also
“Telecommunication Applications of Company Technology.”

International Sales
International sales aggregated $72.1 million (33% of net sales) for fiscal 2001, $79.1 million (35% of net

sales) for fiscal 2000 and $68.9 million (35% of net sales) for fiscal 1999. For information regarding the
Company’s international operations, see Note P to “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.”
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Product Design and Development

Management believes one of its key strengths is its ability to design and develop new products. The
Company has dedicated research and development efforts in each of its product lines having invested
$45.1 million or 7.0% of net sales into research and development over the last three full fiscal years. In
fiscal 2001, the Company invested $12.7 million (5.8% of net sales) in research and development; in
fiscal 2000, $14.8 million (6.5% of net sales); and in fiscal 1999, $17.7 million (9.0% of net sales). Such
expenditures have enabled the Company to develop new applications for metal halide lighting, improve
the quality of its materials, and introduce new specialized products, such as the Uni-Form® pulse start
products. Uni-Form® pulse start products are a new generation of metal halide components and systems
which permit (a) increased light output with lower power utilization, (b) faster starting, (c) a quicker
restart of lamps which have been recently turned off, and (d) better color uniformity. Historically, the
Company's efforts primarily have been focused on the development of materials and system components.

Materials. The Company is focused on improving the purity of, and production processes for, metal
halide salts. The Company pursues these efforts proactively as well as in response to customer requests
for specific metal halide salts. The Company also focuses on designing and developing improved
electrodes, amalgams and getters used in lamp manufacturing. Through DSI, the Company expects to
continue producing thin film coatings primarily for lighting applications with particular emphasis on
coatings for metal halide lighting systems, as well as develop related software, measurement and test
instrumentation and reliable, cost-effective application processes. See also “Telecommunication
Applications of Company Technology.”

Systems and Components. The Company's product design and development has focused on developing
innovative components to meet the specialized needs of various customers, including lighting fixture
OEMs. The Company's product design teams work together with OEMs on the design, development and
commercialization of new system components. Such collaborative development efforts have resulted in
the design of improved metal halide lamps with reduced wattage, better energy efficiency, smaller size
and increased life expectancy.

Since 1996, the Company has increased its focus on design and development of integrated systems. The
Company expects efforts in this area to continue to be important as the Company seeks to develop new
fiber optic applications and packages matched components for lighting fixture OEMs.

Marketing and Distribution
Commercial Products

The marketing and distribution of the Company’s diverse range of commercial products varies by
individual product and by product category, as described below. All sales data are exclusive of inter-
company sales.

Materials

The Company markets materials (metal halide and other salts) directly to all high intensity discharge
lamp manufacturers, primarily GE, Philips and Sylvania for use in their manufacture of lamps. The
Company also markets lamp materials to its joint venture partners. In addition, the Company works very
closely with its customers to manufacture materials according to their specifications. Certain
customer-developed materials are considered proprietary to the Company's customers. The other lamp
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components manufactured by the Company are used primarily in the manufacture of its own lamps;
however, some outside sales are made to other lamp manufacturers. The principal customers for the thin-
film coating products of the Company include major lamp manufacturers. In addition, the Company
markets its thin-film coatings to government suppliers for use in aerospace applications and to fiber optic
telecommunications systems manufacturers. See also “Telecommunication Applications of Company
Technology.” Sales of materials accounted for approximately 13.3% of the Company’s revenues in fiscal
2001, 13.2% in 2000 and 12.3% in 1999.

System Components

Electrical distributors typically market only standard-type lamps, and the Company believes that its
specialty lamp products do not lend themselves to the traditional marketing channels associated with
standard-type lamp products. Accordingly, the Company has adopted innovative marketing techniques
for its lamps. As a result, in initial distribution, the Company markets its metal halide system components
through OEMs, which generally have been involved in the design of the lamp, and commissioned lighting
agents, who package the Company's lamps and power supplies in their bids on construction or renovation
projects. Due to the fact that the Company's lamps are produced to the specifications required to match a
particular fixture or use by an CEM, the Company's lamp will generally be included with the fixture each
time the fixture is sold. The Company intends to market complementary lamps and power supplies as a
package to provide better service to its OEM customers and lighting agents, as well as to increase sales.

The Company also has distributed its metal halide lamps through lighting agents. Unlike GE, Philips and
Sylvania that each have extensive local distributor relationships, the Company has entered into agency
agreements with lighting agents who represent a full line of fixture manufacturers, under which the agent
receives a commission for selling the Company's lamps. The Company believes it is the only major lamp
manufacturer to distribute its products through lighting agents. This relationship allows the lighting agent
to package the Company's metal halide lamps with the other products included in its bid on a project. By
bidding a more complete or unique package, the lighting agent has a competitive advantage over less
complete bids and, if selected, earns a commission on Company lamps sold, which agents generally do
not receive from other lamp suppliers.

The Company intends to increase its sales of replacement lamps through direct marketing by exploiting
both the Company's internally developed capabilities. Since 1994, the Company has printed its toll-free
number on each lamp that it sells, allowing a customer to call the Company, rather than an electrical
distributor, to order a replacement lamp. This enables the customer to speak to a more knowledgeable
representative, thereby increasing the accuracy and efficiency of service to the end user. This interaction
also allows the Company to suggest enhanced products better suited for the end user's needs. In addition,
the Company telemarkets replacement lamps in connection with catalogue distributions. Lamps are
delivered by express courier to end users, thereby providing service efficiency comparable to local
electrical distributors. Replacement lamps are typically sold at a higher gross margin than lamps sold
initially through OEMs or lighting agents.

In addition to packaging power supplies with lamps, the Company is continuing direct marketing to
OEMs and sales through electrical distributors. Sales of system components accounted for
approximately 44.1% of the Company’s revenues in fiscal 2001, 44.4% in fiscal 2000 and 43.1% in fiscal
1996.
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Systems

The Company’s commercial lighting systems are marketed primarily under the trade name “Ruud
Lighting.” Ruud Lighting markets and distributes its products primarily by direct marketing to lighting
contractors. By marketing complete metal halide systems, the Company believes it may capture a
greater market share in the metal halide industry. As a direct marketer of these commercial lighting
systems, Ruud Lighting has helped the Company’s new systems and technologies {(embedded with the
Company’s system components) to gain wider acceptance in the marketplace. Ruud Lighting works
closely with lighting contractors and is able to efficiently assist them in implementing these new systems
and technologies. The Company has announced that it has signed a letter of intent to sell Ruud Lighting
and two other fixture subsidiaries. See also “Recent Developments.”

The Company is also seeking to lead metal halide's penetration of the residential lighting market by: (i) §
developing the use of metal halide fiber optic systems through its relationship with Fiberstars, Inc. and

(i1) marketing metal halide portable lighting fixtures (e.g., table and floor lamps) in an e-commerce

format (Microsun.com).

Systems accounted for approximately 40.9% of the Company’s revenues in fiscal 2001, 40.0% in fiscal
2000 and 40.5% in fiscal 1999.

Production Equipment

The Company’s production equipment is manufactured for internal use and is marketed to existing
companies for turnkey production of thin-film coatings and metal halide lamps. External sales of
production equipment accounted for approximately 1.8% of the Company’s revenues in fiscal 2001,
2.5% in fiscal 2000 and 4.1% in fiscal 1999.

Manufacturing and Operations

The Company's lamp manufacturing facilities in Solon, Chio and Chennai {(Madras), India operates five
days a week, 16 hours a day, with the Company's lamp manufacturing employees working in two
eight-hour shifts each day. The manufacturing of metal halide lamps consists of three primary processes.
First, the quartz arc tube is shaped, electrodes for carrying the current are installed, the metal halide salt
dose is introduced and the arc tube is sealed. The process is performed at high temperatures in carefully
controlled conditions to ensure that the arc tube is properly sealed and that no impurities enter the arc
tube. Second, the arc tube is mounted inside a pyrex bulb container and sealed. Finally, the lamp is
finished by adding a contact for the electrical outlet. Although light output of metal halide lamps is not
affected by ambient temperatures, an outer bulb is used to prevent contact with the arc tube, which
operates at extremely high temperatures. Quartz and pyrex® are used in the production of metal halide
lamps because of their durability and ability to retain shape and function at extremely high temperatures.
Finished lamps are inspected, tested and then shipped in accordance with customer instructions. The
Solon facility also houses research and development operations and lamp production equipment
operations.

The Company produces magnetic power supplies at its facility in Amherst, Nova Scotia, which operates
five days a week with one full shift and a partial second shift. The Company produces magnetic and
electronic power supplies at its facility in Draycott, England, which operates five days a week with one
full shift. The manufacture of magnetic power supplies is a combination of batch and production line
processes. The production line process starts with a coil winding department, progresses to an in-line coil
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and core operation and then to final assembly. Subassemblies for ignitors and capacitors are located
off-line in a batch operation for inclusion in final assembly.

In July 2001, the Company announced that it is consolidating its power supply production operations
from Draycott, England into its existing high-efficiency factory in Chennai (Madras), India. The
Company’s magnetic and electronic ballast, ignitor and electronic controls manufacturing will be
relocated from England to India during the first half of fiscal 2002. The consolidation is expected to
reduce manufacturing costs by providing a central manufacturing location to serve the Company’s
international operations.

The Company plans to take a consolidation charge that is related to closing costs, including severance
packages, costs associated with moving equipment and related start-up costs. The charge is related to
this consolidation is expected to be between $1,500 and $2,000 and will be taken in the first quarter of
fiscal 2002. The Company expects the consolidation to result in a cost savings of approximately $2,000
per year.

The Company produces all of the metal halide salts it uses and sells at its facility in Urbana, Illinois. The
Urbana facility, with approximately 90 employees working a single shift, also produces precision metal
pieces, precision metal electrode leads and high speed dose dispensers which are used by the Company
and sold to other metal halide lamp manufacturers.

The Ruud Lighting manufacturing facility in Racine, Wisconsin operates five days per week, with two
eight-hour shifts per day. The manufacturing process is primarily assembly-to-order based on customer
needs. Ruud Lighting's facility is ISO 9001-registered. The paint finishing facility is eight years old and
is capable of providing the combination of E-Coat primer and acrylic powder topcoat finishing style
typically required by the automotive industry.

At the Company's DSI facility in Santa Rosa, California, the Company produces optical thin film
coatings for a variety of applications, as well as equipment for deposition of thin film coatings. The
facility operates five days per week with three eight-hour shifts per day. Coatings and systems are
produced in accordance with exacting customer specifications. Management believes that DST has
expertise over a broad range of thin film deposition technologies allowing application of the coating
technology most suitable for a particular client need. See also “Telecommunication Applications of
Company Technology.”

Raw Materials and Suppliers

The Company sources its raw materials from a variety of suppliers. Presently, it sources most of its
quartz tubing and pyrex® bulbs for lamps from GE. Although an interruption in these supplies could
disrupt the Company's operations, the Company believes that alternative sources of supply exist and
could be arranged prior to the interruption having a material adverse effect on the Company's operations
or sales. The materials for the Company's power supply products are readily available on the open
market. The Company also purchases certain of its industrial standard-type lamps from GE and Sylvania.
This enables the Company to devote its production equipment to higher margin specialty lamps.

Most of the raw materials used in the production of metal halide salts can be sourced from several
suppliers. The Company has been the dominant supplier of metal halide salts to the metal halide lamp
industry for many years. Therefore, the Company has focused on addressing any circumstance that could
jeopardize the continued production of these vital materials. Since the Company is the primary supplier
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of metal halide salts to the metal halide lamp industry, any disruption in supply would also affect each
producer of the affected lamp type.

Components for Ruud Lighting's systems are sourced from the Company as well as outside suppliers. The
great majority of components are readily available from multiple suppliers.

Raw materials and components for DSI coatings and equipment are sourced from outside suppliers. The
Company has multiple qualified sources for critical materials and components. See also
“Telecommunication Applications of Company Technology.”

Competition
General

Metal halide systems compete with other types of lighting technology for many applications. The
Company's metal halide lamps compete with lamps produced by other metal halide lamp manufacturers,
primarily GE, Philips and Csram-Sylvania. Metal halide technology is the newest of all lighting
technologies and although the market awareness and the uses of metal halide lamps continue to grow,
competition exists from older technologies in each metal halide application.

Materials

The Company produces materials that are used by the Company and virtually all other manufacturers of
metal halide lamps. Tn metal halide salts, where the Company has successfully used its technology focus
and manufacturing capability to develop superior products, the Company believes it has no competitors
in the United States. In overseas markets, one lamp manufacturer produces metal halide salts, principally
for its own use. The competition in salts is based on the technological ability to develop salt formulation
for customers and product uniformity and purity. The Company believes it is the leading producer of
salts because it is the leader in uniformity and purity. In other materials categories, the Company's chief
competition is internal production by GE, Philips and Sylvania. The competition in these products is
based primarily on price and delivery, with some competition based on technological ability to create
solutions for unique applications. The Company’s products compete most effectively for external sales
where they are created for unique applications.

DSI has one or two principal competitors in each of its traditional markets (lighting, coating equipment
and government/aerospace). The Company believes that competition in thin film coatings is generally
based on quality of coatings, technological expertise to design and deliver customized coating solutions
and customer service. The Company believes that it competes successfully on the basis of all three of
these measures. While competition is strenuous with these existing competitors, management believes
that the high technical content of the products and services in these markets make entry by new thin film
coating manufacturers relatively difficult. See also “Telecommunication Applications of Company
Technology.”

System Components

GE, Philips and Sylvania are the Company's principal competitors in the production of metal halide
lamps. Although GE, Philips and Sylvania have focused their efforts on the larger incandescent and
fluorescent markets, all three companies produce metal halide lamps. These three companies have
emphasized sales of a relatively small variety of standard-type metal halide lamps, such as those found in
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the most common commercial and industrial applications, which the Company believes represents
approximately 75% of the total metal halide lamp segment.

Although the Company believes its technical and engineering expertise in the production of specialty
metal halide lamps and its unique marketing approach give it a competitive advantage in this market, the
Company's three primary competitors have significantly longer operating histories, substantially greater
financial, technical and other resources and larger marketing and distribution organizations than the
Company and could expand their focus into specialty lamps.

The Company does not believe that the foreign lamp manufacturers to whom the Company has sold lamp
production equipment compete with the Company's specialty products. Due to the technical and
engineering expertise required to produce a new type of metal halide lamp, these purchasers have
typically only produced the standard-type lamps in which the Company has trained them. Although these
purchasers could potentially produce specialty lamp types to compete with the Company, these
purchasers would need to develop or acquire the expertise required to produce specialty metal halide
lamps.

The Company's North American and European power supply products compete primarily with products
of two manufacturers, Advance Transformer, a subsidiary of Philips, and MagneTek, both headquartered
in the United States. Both these companies have focused on the large fluorescent power supply market
whereas the focus of the Company's power supply operations has been in HID magnetic power supplies
for use primarily in metal halide applications. Competition in power supplies has traditionally depended
on price and delivery, which has resulted in the failure to develop power supplies to optimize metal
halide lighting systems. The Company’s power supply operations intend to compete on the ability to
deliver power supplies which are designed to enhance performance of metal halide lighting systems.

Systems

Lighting systems compete on the basis of system cost, operating cost, quality of light and service. The
Company feels that metal halide systems compete effectively against other technologies in each of these
areas in many applications. Although the lighting systems market is highly fragmented, Ruud Lighting is
the only metal halide systems manufacturer which uses direct marketing to contractors. Ruud Lighting
has over 10,000 customers for this direct marketing effort. Competitors generally market these systems
through distributors and lighting agents.

DSI has one or two principal competitors in each of its traditional markets (lighting, coating equipment
and government/aerospace). While competition is strenuous with these existing competitors,
management believes that the high technical content of the products and services in these markets make
entry by new thin film coating manufacturers relatively difficult.

DSI competes with respect to its major telecommunications products with numerous producers of
components and systems, many of which possess greater financial, manufacturing, marketing and
distribution resources than DSIL. The principal competitors for DSI’s products are certain large OEMs,
such as JDS Uniphase Corporation, Corning Incorporated, and Lucent Technologies, Inc., which have
significant internal capability to manufacture thin film filter products, and a variety of smaller companies
which specialize in optical coatings, such as Cierra Photonics, Inc., Precision Optics Corp., Inc., Barr
Associates, Inc., Iridian Spectral Technologies, Ltd., Thin Film Technologies, Inc., and Evaporated
Coatings, Inc.
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Intellectual Property

The Company relies primarily on trade secret, trademark, and patent laws to protect its rights to certain
aspects of its products, including proprietary manufacturing processes and technologies, product research
and concepts and trademarks, all of which the Company believes are important to the success of its
products and its competitive position. In the past, the Company has successfully taken legal action to
enjoin misappropriation of trade secrets by other parties. Any litigation involving misappropriation of the
Company's trade secrets or other intellectual property rights could require the Company to increase
significantly the resources devoted to such efforts. In addition, an adverse determination in litigation
could subject the Company to the loss of its rights to a particular trade secret, trademark or patent; could
require the Company to grant licenses to third parties; could prevent the Company from manufacturing,
selling or using certain aspects of its products; or could subject the Company to substantial liability, any
of which could have a material adverse effect on the Company's results of operations. The patent
positions of companies such as ADLT and its subsidiaries can be highly uncertain and involve complex
legal and factual questions, and therefore the breadth of claims allowed in such patents and their
enforceability cannot be predicted. Therefore, we cannot provide assurance that the claims in any
existing or subsequently issued patent will be sufficient to protect ADLT’s or its subsidiaries intellectual
property or that such patent will not be challenged, invalidated, held unenforceable or circumvented, or
that the rights granted thereunder will provide proprietary protection or competitive advantages. See also
“Item 3. Legal Proceedings.”

Telecommunication Applications of Cempany Technology
Telecommunications Business Unit

A portion of the in-process research and development which was acquired when the Company purchased
DSI was for research and development projects directed at telecommunications applications (the “Fiber
Optics Project”). These projects involved the development of processes for the application of optical
coatings to products for telecommunications applications. At the time of the acquisition the future
importance of these technologies and optical products to telecommunications infrastructure was not
clear. See “Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations — Update on In-Process Research and Development.”

The Fiber Optics Project was directed at development of (i) optical coatings that reduce insertion losses
in fiber optic communications systems, including wavelength division multiplexing (WDM) and dense
wavelength division multiplexing (DWDM) systems; (ii) collirating micro-optics for use in WDM and
DWDM systems; (iii) filter elements for use in WDM systems; (iv) secondary filter elements for use in
DWDM systems; and (v) narrow bandpass filter elements for use in the multiplex/demultiplex function
of DWDM systems. WDM and DWDM are technologies that allow multiple wavelengths of light to be
simultaneously transmitted through a single fiber optic cable. The first four projects have resulted in
commercial products, and sales of these products reached $2.61 million in fiscal 2001, an increase of
80% over the $1.45 million recognized in fiscal 2000. The Company has demonstrated key DWDM filter
manufacturing capabilities using its patented MicroDyn® technology. The Company believes that it will
develop and market commercial narrow bandpass filter products that take advantage of the Company’s
patented MicroDyn® sputtering technology.

While the Company does apply optical coatings to elements supplied by its customers, the supply of
entire assemblies and components is expected to be an increasing portion of its business. The Company
expects that this trend to forward integration will continue. The Company has existing manufacturing

29




capacity to support sales of up to $10 million per year of existing products. Following additional capital
investments, the Company anticipates achieving additional manufacturing capability and revenue for
DWDM products using MicroDyn® technology. The Company believes that it can increase its
production capacity for its telecommunications products beyond existing levels with additional capital
expenditures, on which this growing business depends.

DSI believes that the current supply exceeds demand for many of these thin film coating products for the
telecommunications industry. The principal competitors for the Company’s DWDM products are certain
large OEMs, such as JDS Uniphase Corporation, Corning Incorporated, and Lucent Technologies, Inc.,
which have significant internal capability to manufacture thin film filter products, and a variety of
smaller companies which specialize in optical coatings, such as Cierra Photonics, Inc., Precision Optics
Corp., Inc., Barr Associates, Inc., Iridian Spectral Technologies, Ltd., Thin Film Technologies, Inc., and
Evaporated Coatings, Inc. The Company also believes that these large OEMs also represent substantial
opportunities for sales of its products.

The Company recognizes that the successful, full-scale development of its telecommunications business
unit requires a level of focus and resources that the Company may not be able to provide while this unit
resides within a subsidiary of the Company. In pursuit of maximizing shareholder value, the Company
has and will continue to explore various strategic alternatives that would enable the telecommunications
business unit to pursue an aggressive, focused strategy with sufficient assets and cash to compete in this
market.

No final decisions have been made about the future courses of action to be pursued. However, the
Company is in discussions with several investment banking firms to assist in identifying and
implementing the best strategic alternative for the telecommunications unit.

Envirenmental Regulation

The Company's operations are subject to federal, state, local and foreign laws and regulations governing,
among other things, emissions to air, discharge to waters and the generation, handling, storage,
transportation, treatment and disposal of waste and other materials as well as laws relating to
occupational health and safety. The Company believes that its business, operations and facilities are
being operated in compliance in all material respects with applicable environmental and health and safety
laws and regulations, many of which provide for substantial fines and criminal sanctions for violations.
However, the operations of manufacturing plants entail risks in these areas, which could potentially result
in significant expenditures in order to comply with evolving environmental and health and safety laws,
regulations or requirements that may be adopted or imposed in the future.

In 1993, the Company entered into a consent decree with the City of Solon Sewer District ("Solon") with
respect to the discharge of mercury into the sewer system from its Solon, Ohio plant operations. The
Company instituted procedures to comply with this consent decree, and the consent decree expired by its
terms due to the Company's operation within required discharge limits for the period required by the
decree. Routine monthly sampling of the effluent by City of Solon between September 1995 and
September 1996 revealed instances of mercury discharge in excess of the limits imposed by Solon.
Subsequent tests conducted by Solon showed mercury discharges within required limits. In March 1999,
there was a single instance which showed mercury discharges above the required limits. The Company
has reviewed and updated its plan intended to prevent intermittently exceeding Solon's mercury
standards. The Company believes the cost of continued compliance will not have a material effect on its
financial position or results of operations.
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The Company believes that the overall impact of compliance with regulations and legislation protecting
the environment will not have a material effect on its future financial position or results of operations.
Capital expenditures and operating expenses in fiscal 2001, fiscal 2000 and fiscal 1999 attributable to
compliance with such legislation were not material.

Employees

As of June 30, 2001, the Company had approximately 2088 full-time employees, consisting of employees
engaged in the designing, manufacturing and marketing of materials (223 employees), system
components (1,237 employees), systems (584 employees) and production equipment (20 employees) and
24 employees in corporate/administrative services. As a result of the proposed sale of three fixture
subsidiaries and the consolidation and restructuring of worldwide operations, the number of employees
will decline significantly. The Company believes that its employee relations are good. The Company's
employees are not represented by any collective bargaining organization, and the Company has never
experienced a work stoppage.
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Item 2. Properties

The Company's headquarters are located in Solon, Ohio, and the Company maintains manufacturing
facilities in California, Chio, Illinois, Wisconsin, Rhode Island, Chennai (Madras), India, Nova Scotia,
Canada and Draycott, England. Set forth below is certain information with respect to the Company's
principal facilities as of June 30, 2001:

Approximate

Square Owned/
Facility Locaticn Activities Footage Leased

North America
Racine, Wisconsin Office, manufacturing, finishing, 440,000 Owned

distribution warehouse
Solon, Ohio Office, systems components manufacturing, 330,000 Owned
distribution warehouse
Urbana, Illinois Materials manufacturing 62,000 Owned
Santa Rosa, California Office, manufacturing 180,000 Leased
7,000 Owned
Ambherst, Nova Scotia, Canada Office, power supply manufacturing, warehouse 45,000 Owned
Middletown, Rhode Island Office, fixture manufacturing 37,000 Owned
Mississauga, Ontario, Canada Distribution warehouse, office 13,000 Leased
Other

Draycott, England Office, power supply manufacturing, warehouse 125,000 Owned
Chennai (Madras) India System components manufacturing 40,000 Owned
Wantirna South, Victoria, Australia Distribution warehouse, office 33,000 Owned
Mitcham, Victoria, Australia Distribution warehouse, office 15,000 Leased
Florence, Italy Office, fixture assembly, warchouse 10,000 Leased

The owned facilities are subject to mortgages in the following approximate outstanding amounts as of
June 30, 2001: Racine -- $8.9 million; Solon -- $4.6 million; Santa Rosa -- $375,000; and Urbana --
$487,000. The aggregate annual rental cost of leased facilities is approximately $2.1 million, and the
average remaining lease term is 7.2 years.

32




Itern 3. Legal Proceedings

In April and May 1999, three class action suits were filed in the United States District Court, Northern
District of Ohio, by certain alleged shareholders of the Company on behalf of themselves and purported
classes consisting of Company shareholders, other than the defendants and their affiliates, who purchased
stock during the period from December 30, 1997 through September 30, 1998 or various portions thereof.
A First Amended Class Action Complaint, consolidating the three lawsuits, was filed on September 30,
1999, and the action is now pending before a single judge. The named defendants in the case — styled In
Re Advanced Lighting Technologies, Inc. Securities Litigation, Master File No. 1:00CV836, pending
before the United States District Court, Northern District of Ohio — are the Company and its Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer (CEQ).

The First Amended Class Action Complaint alleges generally that certain disclosures attributed to the
Company contained misstatements and omissions alleged to be violations of Section 10{b) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and Rule 10b-5, including claims for “fraud on the market” arising from
alleged misrepresentations and omissions with respect to the Company’s financial performance and
prospects and alleged violations of generally accepted accounting principles by, among other things,
improperly recognizing revenue and improper inventory accounting. The Complaint seeks certification
of the purported class, unspecified compensatory and punitive damages, pre- and post-judgment interest
and attorneys’ fees and costs.

The Company and the CEO believe that these claims lack merit. The Company and the CEO filed a
Motion to Dismiss the Complaint, which was denied. The case will now proceed. The Company and the
CEQ intend to continue to vigorously defend against these actions.

Excluding the case noted above, the Company does not have pending any litigation which, separately or
in the aggregate, if adversely determined, could reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect
on the Company. The Company and its subsidiaries may, from time to time, be a party to litigation or
administrative proceedings that arise in the normal course of their business.

The Company's DSI subsidiary has received notice from a competitor, which manufactures and markets
equipment for the application of thin-films and provides thin-film coatings for lighting and other markets.
The competitor questioned whether certain of DSI's equipment infringes on the competitor's patented
process. DSI responded to this inquiry and has not received any further communication concerning this
question as to infringement since April 1999. In the event any claim of infringement is made, DSI's
management intends to vigorously defend any such claim. The Company does not expect such patent
opposition to be successful and, even if it were successful, the Company does not believe that it would
have a material adverse effect on DSI’s or ADLT’s business, business prospects or results of operations.
Separately, the same competitor filed an opposition to DSI’s European MicroDyn® patent. DSI
successfully defended the opposition.

Item 4. Submissiom of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

None.
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PART IE

Item S. Market for the Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Shareholder Matters

The Common Stock is quoted on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol "ADLT." The following
table sets forth for the periods indicated the range of high and low sale prices for the Common Stock, as
reported on the Nasdaq National Market:

High Low

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2001
First QUarter.........o.oovnviiieeniii e $19.94 $11.31
Second Quarter.........c.ovveiiiiii 12.81 4.00
Third Quarter..........ocoiiiiiii e 9.88 4.00
Fourth Quarter...............ooiiiiiii e, 6.73 3.90

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2000
First Quarter..........ocoooeiiiiiiiiiiiee e $ 9.00 $6.88
Second Quarter..........oooeviiiiiii 8.50 4.75
Third Quarter..........ccooiviiiie e 23.75 5.56
Fourth Quarter..........ooooiii i 22.00 9.13

As of June 30, 2001 there were approximately 278 holders of record of the Company’s Common Stock.
The Company has never declared or paid a cash dividend. The terms of the Company’s $65 million Bank
Credit Facility prohibit the payment of dividends, other than dividends consisting of Company stock,
without the consent of the lending banks. The Company’s Indenture relating to its 8% Senior Notes
limits the payment of cash dividends by the Company to certain amounts determined by the Company’s
earnings and equity investment in the Company after March 31, 1998. In addition, financial covenants,
including ratios, contained in the Bank Credit Facility, may limit payment of dividends indirectly.

The Company does not intend to declare or pay any cash dividends for the foreseeable future and intends
to retain earnings, if any, for the future operation and expansion of the Company’s business.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following table contains certain selected financial data and is qualified by the more detailed
Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto of the Company. The selected financial data should
be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto and “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” included in Items 7 and 8
below.

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2001 20060 1999 1998 1997
(In thousands, except per share dollar amounts)

O perating Statement Data:

Net sales (1) $ 219,448 $ 228,596 $ 196,428 $ 169,900 $ 86,913

Costs and expenses:

Cost of sales 130,481 135,114 135,349 101,416 45,536
M arketing and selling (1) 46,751 45,132 48,684 31,822 16,457
Research and development 12,693 14,763 17,680 10,843 5,804
General and administrative 13,831 15,385 21,192 12,208 7,184
Loss from settlement of claim (2) - - - - 771
Gain on sale of property (1,115) - - -
Fiber optic joint venture formation costs - - - 212 286
Purchased research and development (3) - - - 18,220 -
Special charges (3) - (475) 31,107 15,918 -
Amortization of intangible assets 2,862 2,766 2,789 1,691 406
Income (loss) from operations 13,945 15,911 (60,373) (22,430) 10,469
Interest income (expense), net (12,824) (13,393) (12,767) (2,388) (668)
Gain (loss) from equity investment (4) (234) 70 (6,318) (501) -

Income (loss) from continuing operations before
income taxes, minority interest, extraordinary

charge and accounting change 887 2,588 (79,458) (25,319) 9,801
Income taxes 516 635 2,281 (1,311) 2,697
Income (loss) from continuing operations before

extraordinary charge and accounting change 371 1,953 (81,739) (24,008) 7,104
M inority interest {(100) (25) - - -
Recontinuance of previously discontinued operations (5) - - 1,331 (1,331)

Income (loss) before extraordinary

charge and accounting change 271 1,928 (80,408) (25,339) 7,104
Extraordinary charge, net of

applicable income tax benefits (6) - - (902) (604) -
Cumulative effect for change in accounting (7) - - (2,443) - -
Net income (loss) $ 271 $ 1,928 $ (83,753) $ (25,943) § 7,104

Earnings (loss) per share - diluted (8):

i Income (loss) from continuing operations $ (.10) $ .01 $ (4.04) 3 (1.32) $ 52
] Recontinuance of previously discontinued operations - - .07 .07) -
Extraordinary charge - - (.05) (.04) -
Cumulative effect for change in accounting (8) . (.24) - (.12) - -

Net earnings (loss) per share - diluted $ (.34) 3 .01 $ (4.14) 3 (1.43) $ 52

Shares used for computing per share amounts - diluted 22,446 21,331 20,232 18,195 13,558
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Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Balance Sheet D ata:

Cash and cash equivalents § 3,652 $ 3,890 $ 3,830 $21,917 $ 4,198
W orking capital 46,056 40,004 18,629 79,852 42,380
Total assets 316,001 304,475 284,506 329,434 134,838
Long-term debt 154,914 158,110 152,496 117,756 35,908
Preferred stock 19,554 16,999 - - -
Common shareholders' equity 98,290 82,783 77,441 170,837 66,032

M

@)

3

@)

)

Net sales for all years presented have been adjusted to include shipping and handling fees charged to customers.
Previously these amounts were classified in marketing and selling expense as an offset to freight costs incurred.
This reclassification reflects the adoption of Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Issue 00-10, “Accounting for
Shipping and Handling Fees and Costs.” EITF Issue 00-10 requires that all amounts billed to a customer in a
sales transaction related to shipping and handling be classified as revenue. Net sales and marketing and selling
expenses were both increased by $3,729 in fiscal 2001, $3,560 in fiscal 2000, $3,225 in fiscal 1999, $1,551 in
fiscal 1998 and $423 in fiscal 1997.

On March 1, 1996, a former Venture shareholder, asserted a claim against certain officers and directors of the
Company, and subsequently against the Company, seeking $3,600 in damages relating to the redemption of his
Venture shares prior to the Combination. On August 23, 1996, another former Venture shareholder filed a
similar claim against the Company and such officers and directors seeking damages of $1,600. On November
29, 1996, the Company and such officers and directors entered into a settlement of both claims for an aggregate
amount of $475. The pretax charge of $771 in fiscal 1997 represents the $475 settlement plus legal and other
directly-related costs, net of insurance recoveries.

Fiscal 1999 results include special charges related to the Company’s plans to accelerate its focus on metal halide
products, insulate it from deteriorating economic conditions in the Pacific Rim, exit its non-core products,
integrate fully its core and acquired U.S. operations to produce profitable growth and reduce its use of cash.
Specific initiatives by the Company included principally: (a) limiting further Pacific Rim expansion, (b)
changing global lamp manufacturing strategy, (c) restructuring marketing operations in North America and
Europe, (d) accelerating exit from non-core product lines, (€) consolidating equipment manufacturing
operations, (f) reducing corporate and administrative overhead, and (g) evaluating long-lived assets. Also
included in special charges are amounts related to the wind-down of portable fixture manufacturing operations.
The amounts are classified in the fiscal 1999 statement of operations as: cost of sales-- $3,956 and, special
charges-- $31,107.

Fiscal 1998 results include special charges related to the purchase price allocation for Deposition Sciences, Inc.
(“DSI”) of $18,220 for purchased in-process research and development. The special charges also include
$17,984 principally relating to the rationalization of the Company’s global power supply operations, principally:
(a) the discontinuance of certain power supply products at the Company’s power supply facilities, (b) the write-
down of certain intangible and fixed assets and (c) charges related to the consolidation and rationalization cost
of distribution activities and of new information systems and a reassessment of investments. The amounts are
classified in the fiscal 1998 statement of operations as: cost of sales -- $2,066; purchased in-process research
and development -- $18,220; and, special charges -- $15,918.

In fiscal 1999, the loss from equity investments includes a pretax noncash write-down of $5,883 related to the
Company’s investment in the Unison joint venture.

Microsun Technologies, Inc. (“Microsun”) was identified in March 1998 for disposition through a plan to
distribute to ADLT shareholders all of the ownership of Microsun in a tax-free spin-off transaction estimated to
be completed by December 1998. Because of the deterioration of the capital markets and the inability to raise
capital necessary to spin-off the Microsun business, the Company concluded that it would wind-down the
operations, close the manufacturing facilities and liquidate the assets of Microsun. In October 1999,
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M
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management decided, with the approval of the Board of Directors to retain the Microsun business — the portable
lighting fixture products business that uses metal halide lighting technology — as part of the Company’s
continuing operation. In accordance with the accounting requirements for re-continuance, the financial
statements have been reclassified to present Microsun within continuing operations.

In fiscal 1999, the Company incurred an extraordinary loss on the early extinguishment of debt of $902. In
fiscal 1998, the Company incurred an extraordinary loss on the early extinguishment of debt of $604.

In fiscal 1999, the Company recorded $2,443 as a cumulative change in accounting principle relating to the
write-off of start up costs in accordance with the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants’ Statement
of Position (“SOP”) 98-5, “Reporting on the Costs of Start-Up Activities.” SOP 98-5 provides authoritative
guidance on accounting for and financial reporting of start-up costs and organization costs, and required that the
Company expense all previously capitalized start-up costs and organization costs as a cumulative effect of a
change in accounting principle.

Net earnings (loss) per share is based upon the income attributable to holders of Common Stock. Such income
has been decreased by preferred share accretion of $7,884 ($.35 per share) in fiscal 2001 and $1,796 ($.08 per
share) in fiscal 2000. The Company adopted Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Issue 00-27, “Application of
EITF 98-5, ‘Convertible Securities with Beneficial Conversion Features or Contingently Adjustable Conversion
Ratios,” to Certain Convertible Instruments™ in the quarter ended December 31, 2000. EITF Issue 00-27
requires that a convertible instrument’s beneficial conversion feature be measured using an effective conversion
price. As aresult, the value assigned to the redeemable preferred stock was adjusted by $5,329 for the discount
related to the beneficial conversion option. This additional discount was immediately accreted to paid-in capital
in a manner similar to a cumulative effect of an accounting change since the redeemable preferred stock was
convertible at the time of issuance.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data amounts)

The following discussion should be read in connection with the Company's Consolidated Financial
Statements and Notes thereto included in Item 8 — Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

General

The Company designs, manufactures and markets metal halide lighting products, including materials,
system components, systems and equipment. Metal halide lighting is currently used primarily in
commercial and industrial applications such as factories and warehouses, outdoor site and landscape
lighting, sports facilities and large retail spaces such as superstores. With the January 1998 acquisition of
Deposition Sciences, Inc.(“DSI”), the Company also manufactures and markets turnkey deposition
equipment to produce thin film coatings for a variety of applications. Systems, components and materials
revenue is recognized when products are shipped, and equipment revenue is recognized under the
percentage of completion method.

Consistent with the Company's strategy for new product introductions, the Company invests substantial
resources in research and development to engineer materials and system components to be included in
customers' specialized lighting systems. Over the last three fiscal years, the Company has spent an
aggregate of $45,136 on research and development, representing 7.0% of aggregate net sales over that
period. Such expenditures have enabled the Company to develop new applications for metal halide
lighting, improve the quality of its materials, and introduce new specialized products, such as the Uni-
Form® pulse start products. Uni-Form® pulse start products are a new generation of metal halide
components and systems introduced in 1999 which permit (a) increased light output with lower power
utilization, (b) faster starting, (c) a quicker restart of lamps which have been recently turned off, and (d)
better color uniformity. The Company has spent additional amounts for manufacturing process and
efficiency enhancements, which were charged to cost of goods sold when incurred. While research and
development expenditures have declined over the last three fiscal years in connection with the
Company’s commitment to generate positive operating cash flow, the Company expects to continue to
make substantial expenditures on research and development to enhance its position as the leading
innovator in the metal halide lighting industry. See also item 1. “Business — Recent Developments”
above and “Liquidity and Capital Resources” below.

Recent Developments
Proposed Sale of Fixture Operations

In September 2001, the Company announced that it had signed a letter of intent to sell its fixture
subsidiaries, known as Ruud Lighting, Kramer Lighting, and Ruud Lighting Europe, to an investor group
led by Alan J. Ruud, ADLT’s current President and Chief Operating Officer. The transaction is expected
to reduce the Company’s debt by approximately $41,000. In addition, the Company would receive a
$6,000 purchase note. If the Company receives the consent of the majority in principal amount of its 8%
Senior Notes, it may require delivery of 3,000,000 shares of Company common stock in satisfaction of
the purchase note. The Company anticipates that the sale will be completed in the fiscal 2002 second
quarter ending December 31, 2001. The Company expects a substantial noncash charge from the
transaction based on the current terms of the letter of intent. Mr. Wayne R. Hellman, the Company’s
Chief Executive Officer and Mr. Steven C. Potts, the Company’s Chief Financial Officer will assume Mr.
Ruud’s responsibilities. The letter of intent is subject to certain conditions including approval of the
transaction by the
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Company’s Board of Directors, approval by the Company’s lending banks and completion of financing
arrangements by the purchasers. The Company has no assurance that these conditions can be satisfied, or
that any consent can be obtained from holders of the Company’s 8% Senior Notes.

Consolidation of Power Supply Production Operations

In July 2001, the Company announced that it is consolidating its power supply production operations
fromDraycott, England into its existing high-efficiency factory in Chennai (Madras), India. The
Company’s magnetic and electronic ballast, ignitor and electronic controls manufacturing will be
relocated from England to India during the first half of fiscal 2002. The consolidation is expected to
reduce manufacturing costs by providing a central manufacturing location to serve the Company’s
international operations.

The Company plans to take a charge that is related to closing costs, including severance packages, costs
associated with moving equipment and related set-up costs. The charge is expected to be between $1,500
and $2,000 and will be taken in the first quarter of fiscal 2002. The Company expects the consolidation
to result in cost savings of approximately $2,000 per year.

Restructuring of Worldwide Operations

In August 2001, the Company announced that it will further restructure its worldwide operations. As a
result of this restructuring, the Company expects to reduce operating costs by approximately $8,000
annually. The plan includes staff reductions at all levels and the consolidation of certain overlapping
operations.

The combined effect of the consolidation of the power supply operations discussed above and the
worldwide restructuring is expected to be annualized savings of approximately $10,000. The Company
expects to take a total charge of approximately $4,000 to $6,000 relating to severance and
implementation costs for these actions, most of which will be taken in the first quarter of fiscal 2002.

Issuance of Common Stock

On August 31, 2000, the Company completed a public offering of 1,700,000 shares of its common stock
at a price of $15.00 per share under a $300,000 shelf registration filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission which became effective in July 2000.

General Electric Company Investment

On October 6, 1999, General Electric Company (“GE”) completed an investment in the Company of
$20,554. In addition, GE and the Company entered into a five-year, renewable agreement for the supply
of metal halide salts to GE.

The GE investment includes 761,250 shares of the Company’s newly created Series A Stock convertible
at any time into 3,045,000 shares of Company Common Stock (subject to adjustment). GE also received
a Warrant (the “Initial Warrant”) which GE has exercised to acquire 998,703 shares of Common Stock.
GE now holds 1,429,590 shares of Company Common Stock. The Series A Stock and the Common
Stock held by GE represent approximately 17.0% of the voting power and equity ownership of the
Company. See “Terms of the Series A Stock” below. Pursuant to the terms of the stock purchase
agreement, GE provided the Company with candidates for the Company’s Board of Directors who are
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not directors, officers, employees or 10% shareholders of GE. The Company is required to cause the
number of such candidates serving on the Board to be equal to the greater of 20% of the number of
members of the Board or the number of members which most nearly corresponds to GE’s percentage
ownership interest in the Company. In December 1999, the Company appointed two GE candidates to
the Board of Directors.

The proceeds of the GE transaction were applied principally to the reduction of short-term liabilities and
outstanding amounts under the Company’s Bank Credit Facility, and had the effect of increasing
available borrowings under the Company’s Bank Credit Facility.

The following summaries of the terms of the Series A Stock, the Terms of the Initial Warrant and
Additional Terms of the GE Transaction are summaries of the definitive documents in connection with
the GE investment.

Terms of the Series A Stock

The Series A Stock is a newly authorized series of preferred stock of the Company created for issuance
in the GE transaction. 761,250 shares of Series A Stock have been authorized and issued to GE. The
Series A Stock has a liquidation preference of $27 per share, plus an amount equal to 8% per annum
compounded annually from the date of issuance to the date of payment (“Liquidation Preference
Amount”).

Each outstanding share of Series A Stock is convertible at any time into four shares (subject to
adjustment as described below) of Common Stock of the Company. Prior to conversion, holders of
Series A Stock are entitled to vote in all shareholder matters together with the holders of Company
Common Stock as a single class. In any such vote, the holders of Series A Stock are entitled to four
votes (equal to the number of shares of Common Stock into which the Series A Stock held may initially
be converted).

The Company is required to redeem any shares of Series A Stock which have not been converted or
retired on September 30, 2010. Any such redemption would be made at the Liquidation Preference
Amount. In addition, holders of the Series A Stock may require the Company to redeem their shares of
Series A Stock by giving notice to the Company on or before September 30, 2004. If such notice is
given, the Company will be required to make such redemption on or prior to September 30, 2005. In
addition, holders of Series A Stock will be entitled to require the Company to redeem the Series A Stock
following the occurrence of any of the following events (each a "Triggering Event"): any action by the
Company to give effect to certain major corporate actions, including actions to merge, sell all or a
substantial portion of its assets (other than in the ordinary course of business), issue capital stock, incur
or have outstanding indebtedness for borrowed money in excess of $210,000. Upon the occurrence of a
Triggering Event, the holders of the Series A Stock may require the Company to redeem their shares of
Series A Stock by giving notice to the Company within 90 days following the Triggering Event. If such
notice is given, the Company will be required to make such redemption within one year following such
notice. Any such redemption would be made at the Liquidation Preference Amount. Under the terms of
the Company’s Bank Credit Facility and the indenture (the "Indenture") relating to the Company's Senior
Notes due 2008, the redemption of the Series A Stock would currently constitute an event of default,
permitting acceleration of the related indebtedness. If prior consent of the banks is obtained, the
redemption is permitted under the Bank Credit Facility. Payments for the redemption of equity securities
are "Restricted Payments" under the Indenture. The total of all "Restricted Payments" under the
Indenture (with exceptions not applicable to stock redemption) cannot exceed one-half of the total of
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consolidated net earnings of the Company (excluding consideration of certain unusual items) from April
1, 1998 (taken as a single period) plus the amount of proceeds received from sales of non-redeemable
stock. As of June 30, 2001, the Company had a net loss, excluding extraordinary items, of $79,358 for
the period. Proceeds of qualifying stock sales for the period have been approximately $26,700 (including
the proceeds of the Company’s public offering of Common Stock completed in August 2000). Until this
deficit has been cured, and sufficient proceeds are received and/or earnings are achieved, the Company
cannot redeem the Series A Stock without causing an event of default with respect to the Senior Notes.

In addition, the Indenture prohibits Restricted Payments (with exceptions not applicable to stock
redemptions) at any time where the ratio of EBITDA to Interest Expense for the preceding four fiscal
quarters does not exceed 2.5 to 1.

If the Company fails to make any redemption as required (subject to permitted deferrals in the event that
such redemption would cause an event of default with respect to certain indebtedness of the Company),
the conversion ratio of the Series A Stock would be increased from four shares of Common Stock to
eight shares of Common Stock per share of Series A Stock. In addition, the conversion ratio is subject to
adjustment to prevent dilution of the interest of GE by the issuance of Common Stock after October 6,
1999. Except for issuance of shares under existing employee benefit plans, and certain other enumerated
exceptions, any shares of Common Stock issued at a price below $6.75 per share, or, if higher, below the
then current market price, would result in adjustment of the conversion ratio. Any adjustment in the
conversion ratio would not affect the voting power represented by shares of Series A Stock prior to
conversion.

Upon liquidation, each share of Series A Stock will be entitled to be paid the Liquidation Preference
Amount prior to any payment or distribution to the holders of Company Common Stock. Following such
payment, holders of Series A Stock will be entitled to a proportional share of any distribution to holders
of Company Common Stock based on the number of shares of Common Stock into which the Series A
Stock could have been converted at the time of the liquidation.

Additional Terms of the GE Transaction

In addition to GE’s initial investment, under certain circumstances, GE will be entitled to make
additional investments in the Company and receive the right to vote additional shares of Company
Common Stock. The exercise of certain of these rights is subject to applicable law, including the Hart-
Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976 ("HSR Approval”). GE and the Company entered into
a Contingent Warrant Agreement (“Contingent Warrant Agreement™). The Contingent Warrant
Agreement identifies certain occurrences, which will entitle GE to exercise these rights.

Upon the Second Occurrence (defined below), if it occurs, GE would receive the right to vote the number
of shares then owned by Wayne R. Hellman and Hellman, LTD. pursuant to proxies granted by Messrs.
Hellman and Ruud. GE would receive the right to vote the number of shares as to which Mr. Hellman
then has voting power pursuant to the Hellman Voting Trust or Irrevocable Proxies granted with respect
to shares removed from the Hellman Voting Trust (all shares voted by Mr. Hellman, approximately 3.3
million shares at August 31, 2001, are referred to collectively as the "Hellman Shares"). GE would also
have an option, at the then current market price, to purchase from Messrs. Hellman and Ruud, the number
of shares of Common Stock which, together with the shares owned by GE, would represent 25% of the
voting power of the Company. The Company would also be required to grant to GE an additional
warrant (the “First Contingent Warrant™) to purchase shares of Company Common Stock at the then
current market price. The number of shares subject to the First Contingent Warrant would be equal to
the number of shares required to allow GE to have a majority of the voting power of the Company,
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assuming GE had effective proxies with respect to all shares as to which Messrs. Hellman and Ruud then
have voting power. At August 31, 2001, the number of shares subject to the First Contingent Warrant
would have been approximately 3.6 million shares. The number of shares subject to the First Contingent
Warrant increases on a one-for-one basis for each share newly issued by the Company and increases on a
two-for-one basis for each share sold as to which Messrs. Hellman or Ruud have voting power.

The issuance of the First Contingent Warrant, the options on shares held by Messrs. Hellman and Ruud,
and effectiveness of GE’s proxy with respect to any such shares is subject to HSR Approval unless the
market value of shares held by GE and subject to the option, is less than $50,000 at any time within the
previous 45 days (which requires the Company and GE to provide information to the federal government
to allow it to determine whether to contest an increase by GE to an interest in the Company in excess of
25% pursuant to antitrust law). If the proxies become effective after the Second Cccurrence, GE will
have the proxies to vote the number of Hellman Shares and will be entitled to exercise approximately
37.9% of the then outstanding voting power of the Company (assuming that none of the Hellman Shares
have been transferred by the beneficial owners and no issuance of additional shares by the Company
other than pursuant to the GE transaction) or approximately 36.2% of the voting power of the Company
on a fully diluted basis. Therefore, upon a Second Occurrence and the ability to exercise the First
Contingent Warrant, GE could obtain in excess of 35% of the voting power of the Company on a fully
diluted basis. If GE were to acquire in excess of 35% of the voting power of the Company on a fully
diluted basis, the terms of the Indenture relating to the Senior Notes would require that the Company
offer to repurchase the $100,000 principal amount of outstanding Senior Notes due 2008 at a price of
101% of the principal amount thereof, plus accrued interest (“Offer to Repurchase Notes™), and the
Company’s banks will have the ability to demand payment of the Bank Credit Facility.

Upon the Third Occurrence (defined below), GE would receive the right to vote the number of shares
then owned by Mr. Ruud, and the right to vote the number of shares as to which Mr. Ruud then has
voting power pursuant to the Ruud Voting Trust or Irrevocable Proxies granted with respect to shares
removed from the Ruud Voting Trust, currently approximately 3.6 million shares (the "Ruud Shares").
The effectiveness of this right requires that the conditions for the effectiveness of the proxies following
the Second Occurrence have been satisfied. If the proxies on the Ruud Shares become effective after the
Third Occurrence, GE will have the right to vote the Ruud Shares and will be entitled to exercise
approximately 50.0% of the then outstanding voting power of the Company (assuming that none of the
Hellman Shares or the Ruud Shares have been sold by the beneficial owners, no exercise by GE of the
Contingent Warrants and no issuance of additional shares by the Company other than pursuant to the GE
transaction) or approximately 47.8% of the voting power of the Company on a fully diluted basis. If the
Company has not already made an Offer to Repurchase Notes, it will be required to make the offer upon
effectiveness of the proxy on the Ruud Shares and the Company’s banks will have the ability to demand
payment of the Bank Credit Facility. In addition, GE will receive an additional warrant (the “Second
Contingent Warrant”) which will entitle GE to purchase additional shares of Common Stock at the then
current market price. The number of shares subject to the Second Contingent Warrant will be the
number of shares necessary to give GE 50% plus one vote of the voting power of the Company
(including the exercise of all outstanding Warrants, shares subject to irrevocable proxies, the shares
subject to the Second Contingent Warrant and all proxies held with respect to Hellman Shares and Ruud
Shares). After the Third Occurrence, if the Company issues additional shares of Common Stock to
anyone other than GE, GE will be entitled to purchase, on the same terms given to the third party, the
number of shares required to maintain GE’s voting power.

The basis for GE’s additional rights will be the failure of the Company to maintain a 2.0 to 1.0 ratio of
EBITDA (as defined) to Interest Expense (as defined) over the applicable measurement periods. The
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first measurement period was the six months ended December 31, 1999. Thereafter, the measurement
periods are the six months ending on the last day of each successive fiscal quarter until September 30,
2010. The first failure to maintain the required ratio would be the “First Occurrence,” the second such
failure would be the “Second Occurrence” and the third such failure would be the “Third Occurrence.”
The ratio for the six months ended December 31, 1999, was 1.5 to 1.0 and, therefore, the First
Occurrence has taken place. However, after the First Occurrence, if the Company maintains the required
ratio in the three fiscal quarters immediately prior to the failure, a Second Occurrence or Third
Occurrence, as the case may be, would not be effective as a result of such failure. In August 2000 in
connection with the Company’s public offering and sale of 1.7 million shares of its Common Stock, GE
agreed that there would be no measurement periods for the six-month periods ended June 30, 2600 or
September 30, 2000. GE has also agreed that there would be no measurement period for the six-month
period ended June 30, 2001. The Company did not maintain at least a 2.0 to 1 ratio of EBITDA to
Interest Expense in each of the last three quarters of fiscal 2001. Under the terms of the transaction,
EBITDA consists of net earnings, plus interest expense, plus depreciation and amortization, plus income
taxes, less extraordinary gains and gains from asset sales plus extraordinary losses and losses from asset
sales. Interest Expense consists of interest expense (net of interest income) calculated in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, but excludes amortization of deferred financing costs up to a
maximum of $125 in any fiscal quarter.

The Company also entered into a number of other agreements with GE in connection with the
transaction. The Company has entered into a standard registration rights agreement, which will require
the Company, upon GE’s request, to register the sale of the shares of Company Common Stock issued in
connection with the investment. If GE were to require such registration and sell a substantial number of
shares, it could adversely affect the market price of Company shares and the ability of the Company to
sell equity securities.

In addition to the proxies granted to GE by Messrs. Hellman and Ruud, Messrs. Hellman and Ruud have
granted to GE a first refusal right on the sale of their shares. This agreement requires that if Messrs.
Hellman and Ruud, or Hellman Ltd., wish to sell shares of Company stock, they must first offer the
shares to GE on the same terms. The effect of sales of Company stock by Messrs. Hellman and Ruud and
Hellman Ltd. to third parties would be to increase the number of shares which GE would have to buy
from the Company pursuant to the Contingent Warrants to obtain voting control of the Company. After
issuance of the Second Contingent Warrant, such sales would eliminate GE’s contractual right to achieve
complete voting control. In addition, upon a Second Occurrence, GE will have an option to purchase
shares from Messrs. Hellman and Ruud, which would permit GE to raise its ownership to 25% of the
outstanding shares of Company Common Stock.

Telecommunications Busimess Unit

In February 2000, the Company announced the creation of its Fiber Optic Telecommunications Business
Unit, which develops and manufactures passive optical telecommunications devices and components,
based on its optical coating technology. The telecommunications operations are located in Santa Rosa,
California. The Telecommunications Unit exploits the proprietary coating equipment, advanced thin film
technologies, and measurement capabilities developed by DSI over the last fifteen years for a wide
variety of demanding products in both military and commercial applications.

Prior to the formation of the telecommunications unit, the development and coating of
telecommunications products was performed by DSI’s R&D Engineering unit. With the formation of the
telecommunications unit, two employees were transferred from the R&D Engineering unit to the
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telecommunications unit with additional engineering and sales personnel being hired for the unit. Also,
DSI assigned thin film coating machines from other areas of the company as well as purchasing and
constructing additional equipment to be used in the telecommunications business.

A portion of the in-process research and development which was acquired when the Company purchased
DSI was for research and development projects directed at telecommunications applications (the “Fiber
Optics Project”). These projects involved the development of processes for the application of optical
coatings to products for telecommunications applications. At the time of the acquisition the future
importance of these technologies and optical products to telecommunications infrastructure was not
clear. (For more information, see “Update on In-Process Research and Development.”)

The Fiber Optics Project was directed at development of (i) optical coatings that reduce insertion losses
in fiber optic communications systems, including wavelength division multiplexing (WDM) and dense
wavelength division multiplexing (DWDM) systems; (ii) collimating micro-optics for use in WDM and
DWDM systems; (iii) filter elements for use in WDM systems; (iv) secondary filter elements for use in
DWDM systems; (v) narrow bandpass filter elements for use in the multiplex/demultiplex function of
DWDM systems. WDM and DWDM are technologies that allow multiple wavelengths of light to be
simultaneously transmitted through a single fiber optic cable. The first four projects have resulted in
commercial products, and sales of these products reached $2,613 in fiscal 2001, an increase of 80% over
the $1,453 recognized in fiscal 2000. Telecommunication product sales for the fourth quarter of fiscal
2001 approximated $600, up 16% from $517 in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2000. Backorders in the
telecom product area grew to $3,200 at June 30, 2001 from $1,800 at December 31, 2000. The Company
has demonstrated key DWDM filter manufacturing capabilities using its patented MicroDyn®
technology. The Company believes that it will develop and market commercial narrow bandpass filter
products that take advantage of the Company’s patented MicroDyn® sputtering technology.

While the Company does apply optical coatings to elements supplied by its customers, the supply of
entire assemblies and components is expected to be an increasing portion of its business. The Company
expects that this trend to forward integration will continue. The Company has existing manufacturing
capacity to support sales of up to $10,000 per year of existing products. Following additional capital
investments, the Company anticipates achieving additional manufacturing capability and revenue for
DWDM products using MicroDyn® technology. The Company believes that it can increase its
production capacity for its telecommunications products beyond existing levels with additional capital
expenditures, on which this growing business depends.

DSI believes that the current supply exceeds demand for many of these thin film coating products for the
telecommunications industry. The principal competitors for the Company’s products are certain large
OEMs, such as JDS Uniphase Corporation, Corning Incorporated, and Lucent Technologies, Inc., which
have significant internal capability to manufacture thin film filter products, and a variety of smaller
companies which specialize in optical coatings, such as Cierra Photonics, Inc., Precision Optics Corp.,
Inc., Barr Associates, Inc., Iridian Spectral Technologies, Ltd., Thin Film Technologies, Inc., and
Evaporated Coatings, Inc. The Company also believes that the large OEMs also represent substantial
opportunities for sales of its products.

The Company believes that the competitive environment for its products is based primarily on technical
performance, delivery and service, rather than price. The Company believes that DSI’s fifteen-year
history of high volume, efficient production of high quality optical components provides it with
significant advantages in this regard. Furthermore, the Company believes that its core competencies in
optical coating and coating equipment development and manufacture, its experienced workforce and its
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ability to develop telecommunications solutions, backed by the required measurement technology, will
permit it to continue to compete successfully in this product area.

The Company recognizes that the successful, full-scale development of its telecommunications business
unit requires a level of focus and resources that the Company may not be able to provide while this unit
resides within a subsidiary of the Company. In pursuit of maximizing shareholder value, the Company
has and will continue to explore various strategic alternatives that would enable the telecommunications
business unit to pursue an aggressive, focused strategy with sufficient assets and cash to compete in this
market.

No final decisions have been made about the future courses of action to be pursued. However, the
Company is in discussions with several investment banking firms to assist in identifying and
implementing the best strategic alternative for the telecommunications unit.

Discontinued Operations Subsequently Retained

Microsun Technologies, Inc. (“Microsun”) was identified in March 1698 for disposition through a plan to
distribute to ADLT shareholders all of the ownership of Microsun in a tax-free spin-off transaction
estimated to be completed by December 1998. Because of the deterioration of the capital markets and the
inability to raise capital necessary to spin-off the Microsun business, the Company concluded that it
would wind-down the operations, close the manufacturing facilities and liquidate the assets of Microsun.
At June 30, 1999, the plan of wind-down had been accomplished, the manufacturing facilities closed and
substantially all assets had been disposed. Accordingly, there were no remaining discontinued operations
accrued losses associated with Microsun at June 30, 1999.

In October 1999, management decided, with the approval of the Board of Directors, to retain the
Microsun business -- the portable lighting fixture products business that uses metal halide lighting
technology -- as part of the Company’s continuing operation. The decision to retain the business was
based on management’s belief that, among other reasons, the market demand for Microsun products
remains substantial; the market potential will be expanded as the Microsun portable lighting fixtures will
be marketed and sold along with other existing lines of products for residential use in an e-commerce
format (*“Microsun.com’™); and the Microsun business will use the fulfillment capabilities and
infrastructure of existing ADLT businesses.

In retaining the Microsun business, the Company concentrates on assembling fixtures produced by
subcontractors, thereby eliminating the need for the machinery, equipment and facilities that were used in
the previous operation. The assembly process is performed at existing ADLT businesses utilizing
existing facilities and operations. The Company utilizes the customer service systems and personnel of
an existing ADLT business, as well as the Internet to receive, process and fill orders. Therefore, the
Microsun business has been retained but without the use of the manufacturing processes or assets used in
the previous operations.

In accordance with the accounting requirements for recontinuance, the accompanying financial
statements have been reclassified to present Microsun within continuing operations. At June 30, 1999,
substantially all assets had been disposed and no remaining accrued losses associated with discontinued
operations remained. The revenues and the net amount charged to the income statement for the year
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ended June 30, 1999, the last year during which the business was reported as discontinued operations
consisted of the following:

Net sales $ 4,719
Reclassification of discontinued

operations to continuing operations $ 10,374
Discontinued operations provision (9,043)
Recontinuance of previously discontinued operations $ 1,331

The $10,374 reclassified to continuing operations for the year ended June 30, 1999 consisted of a loss
from operations of $4,128; write-downs of assets to net realizable value of $5,533 in connection with the
decision in November 1998 to wind-down the Microsun business related to inventory ($2,448), fixed
assets ($1,690), and other assets ($1,395); and costs related to severance, lease/contract cancellations and
facility shut-down costs of $713. These costs and write-downs are classified in special charges ($3,798)
and cost of sales ($2,448).

Fiscal 1999 Special Charges

The Company implemented plans resulting in changes to its operations intended to accelerate and
intensify the Company’s focus on its metal halide products, insulate it from deteriorating economic
conditions in the Pacific Rim and the anticipated decline of non-core products, integrate fully its core and
acquired U.S. operations to produce profitable growth, and reduce and redirect its use of cash resources.
This came in response to a reduction in the Company’s revenues in the first quarter of fiscal 1999 as
compared to the fourth quarter of fiscal 1998 and due to economic conditions in general, especially
outside the United States. To implement this strategy, the Company took the following actions:

Limiting Pacific Rim Expansion. In recognition of the near-term effects of the crisis in Asian capital
markets, the Company modified its expansion plans in the Pacific Rim and is acting to limit its exposure
by limiting further investment in Pacific Rim ventures. The Company evaluated its existing foreign
investments and joint ventures in the Pacific Rim region and wrote-off investments of $475. In addition,
future contract commitments totaling $1,160 were accrued in connection with the Company’s decision to
limit its exposure in the Pacific Rim area.

The Company retained several lamp manufacturing equipment groups, which were originally expected to
be shipped to Asia pursuant to equipment contracts with Pacific Rim companies. The decision to
terminate the foreign equipment contracts resulted in a reversal of sales of $14,961 and cost of sales of
$6,413 in the second quarter, which were previously recorded under the percentage of completion
method. This reversal reduced operating income by $8,548 ($.42 per share). Had the sales related to the
terminated equipment contracts not been reversed, reported sales and cost of sales would have been as
follows:

Year Ended June 30, 1999

Sales Cost of Sales
As reported $ 196,428 $ 135,349

Pro forma 211,389 141,762

Changing Global Lamp Manufacturing Strategy. The Company revised its global lamp manufacturing
strategy to reduce the overall cost of its lamps, including moving some production to the manufacturing
facilities of certain foreign joint ventures. With this change in its global manufacturing strategy the
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Company discontinued a major program that was in progress to increase its U.S. lamp manufacturing
capability and productivity. This decision resulted in abandoning and disposing of fixed assets of
$7,841, the majority of which had not been placed in service. Substantially all of these fixed assets were
disposed of prior to June 30, 1999. The impact of suspending depreciation related to these fixed assets
was not material to depreciation expense for the year. Further, certain joint venture investments of $465
made for the purpose of developing additional lamp production were terminated, as these specific
investments were not considered integral to the Company’s future manufacturing strategy.

In addition, to reduce costs related to its lamp production activities, the Company consolidated its
Bellevue, Chio specialty lamp manufacturing operations into its Solon lamp manufacturing facility. The
cost to close this facility, including $328 in severance and benefits for terminated employees, was $708.

Restructuring Marketing Operations in North America and Europe. The Company restructured its
marketing operations in Canada to eliminate certain distribution channels and centers. Warehouses in
Toronto and Vancouver have been closed and $338 recorded to cover primarily future lease
commitments for these facilitiecs. OEM and plant growth sales channels have been retained and serviced
out of Amherst, Nova Scotia, while after-market lamp sales are being serviced through a distributor. The
Company incurred shutdown costs, including $132 in severance and benefits for terminated employees,
of $279 to close its marketing facilities in Canada.

The Company also restructured its marketing operations in Europe and the U.K. to make them more cost
efficient. The restructuring of marketing operations in the U.K. resulted in selling its subsidiaries in
France and Germany and recognizing a loss on the sale of these subsidiaries of $559. Costs related to the
shutdown of these facilities, including $184 in severance and benefits for terminated employees, and
streamlining remaining operations amounted to $873.

Accelerating Exit from Non-core Products Lines. The Company eliminated the remaining non-metal
halide product lines being sold by its Canadian operations. The Company has sold these product lines
and inventory to a third party. Revenues that related to the non-core product lines approximated $4,100
for fiscal 1999.

Consolidating Equipment Manufacturing Operation into Solon, Ohio Facility. The Company’s
equipment manufacturing operation in Bellevue, Ohio was closed. Machinery, equipment and research
and development facilities necessary to allow the Company to continue manufacturing and support of
lamp production equipment, at reduced levels, was moved to the Company’s Solon, Chio facility.

In connection with closing its equipment manufacturing facility in Bellevue, Ohio, $642 of fixed assets,
primarily leaseholds and equipment, were abandoned and written-off. In addition, the Company recorded
$2,449 for a future lease commitment on this manufacturing facility and $1,139 for shutdown costs,
including $642 in severance and benefits for terminated employees.

Reducing Corporate and Administrative Overhead. The Company was increasing its corporate and
administrative staff levels to support its aggressive growth goals. In light of its focus on internal growth,
instead of continued acquisitions and joint ventures, the Company reduced its corporate and
administrative overhead, including a significant reduction in staff levels and benefit programs.

Severance and employee benefits for corporate and administrative staff, including the termination of an
employee benefit program, resulted in total costs of $3,779 enterprise-wide.
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All of the above actions resulted in the termination of approximately 240 employees at substantially all
locations. All terminated employees have left the company and have been paid.

Evaluation of Long-Lived Assets. Certain long-lived assets, principally related to fixed assets and
investments, were evaluated for impairment in value. Fair value for these assets was based on whether
the carrying amount of the asset was recoverable. Based on this analysis, an impairment loss of $3,830
and $1,544 was recognized for certain long-term assets and investments. All long-term assets were
disposed by June 30, 1999. The impact of suspending depreciation related to these long-lived assets was
not material to depreciation expense for the year.

Reducing Capital Expenditures. Previously announced plans to spend approximately $20,000 on capital
expansion, primarily production equipment, and approximately $14,500 on facilities improvements in
fiscal 1999 were substantially reduced.

At June 30, 2000, all actions required by the plans were substantially completed and the $96 balance, as
of June 30, 2000, was utilized during fiscal 2001.

In addition to the costs noted above, the Company incurred special charges related to the wind-down of
portable fixture manufacturing operations, which are described in the section “Discontinued Operations
Subsequently Retained.”

The cost related to the actions noted above, along with those related to the wind-down of portable fixture
manufacturing operations, are included in special charges of $35,063 (§1.73 per share) for fiscal 1999.
The charges are classified in the consolidated statement of operations as cost of sales ($3,956) and
special charges ($31,107). In connection with these actions, the Company incurred additional costs of
$596 and $764 related to cost of sales and research and development expense for transactions with
affiliates.

Fiscal 1999 Implementation Costs

Certain of the actions resulting in fiscal 1999 special charges also caused substantial implementation
costs, which are not included in the special charges classification. Three manufacturing sites were
consolidated into one, which together with employee terminations, resulted in severe workforce
disruption. The Company also incurred costs to relocate and consolidate its marketing operations in
North America and transition its marketing operations in Europe.

The launch of the Company’s Uni-Form® pulse start products resulted in substantial quality, rework and
productivity issues. In addition, the Company also undertook other initiatives enterprise-wide in fiscal
1999 that resulted in nonrecurring costs. Specifically, the Company began the implementation of new
information systems resulting in various installation costs in fiscal 1999. In addition, during fiscal 1999
the Company incurred one-time costs to establish a sales office in Japan to sell its metal halide materials
to lamp manufacturers in the Pacific Rim.

Update on [n-Process Research and Development

In connection with the January 1998 purchase of DSI, the Company allocated $18,220 of the $24,100
purchase price to in-process research and development projects. This allocation represented the
estimated fair value based on risk-adjusted cash flows related to the incomplete research and
development projects. At the date of acquisition, the development of these projects had not yet reached
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technological feasibility and had no alternative future uses. Accordingly, these costs were expensed as of
the acquisition date. DSI’s in-process research and development value was comprised of five primary
research and development programs, which were in process at the time of the acquisition.

The MicroDyn/Automation Project was intended to improve the coating process of optical thin-films to
both rigid and flexible surfaces so that the process can be used in a wider array of applications. The
Plastics (Acrylic) Coating Project was designed to produce a method for applying thin-film coatings to
plastics or other similar materials that cannot withstand the heat generated during the standard coating
process. The goal of the Deposition Material Development Project was to develop new thin-film
materials that can be used in coatings and to improve existing coating materials. The Lighting Projects
were intended to develop improvements to existing lighting technologies by using coatings to improve
efficiency and increase the longevity of lamp life; including ultra-violet blockers, color
enhancement/correction and lumen maintenance. The Fiber Optic Project was intended to improve
telecommunications by providing optical thin-film coatings that are used in conjunction with optical
fibers to increase the transmission capacity of the fiber. Two segments of the Fiber Optic Project,
directed at the development of filters to reduce insertion loss in fiber optic communication systems and
filters for wavelength division multiplexing (WDM), have reached commercial feasibility. The third
segment of the project, which is an expansion of the original project, related to the development of filters
for dense wavelength division multiplexing {DWDM), has not achieved commercial feasibility as of June
30, 2001.

Currently, the focus of the Company’s efforts is on the MicroDyn/Automation and Deposition Material
Development Projects. The Lighting-Focused Projects were completed in fiscal 2001. The Company has
made significant progress on all of these projects resulting in some commercial implementation.
However, the Plastics (Acrylic) Coating Project was abandoned in light of DSI’s focus on the
telecommunications business. Annual Company expenditures related to these original projects included
$800 in fiscal 1998, $1,800 in fiscal 1999, $2,100 in fiscal 2000, and $1,900 expended through June 30,
2001.

Certain projects within the in-process research and development programs, if successful, will not be fully
completed for some time after attaining technical feasibility. Additionally, even if successfully
completed, these projects will require maintenance research and development after they have reached a
state of technological and commercial feasibility. However, there is substantial risk associated with the
completion of the above active projects and there is no steadfast assurance that each will meet with either
technological or commercial success. The delay or outright failure of the DSI programs may materially
impact the Company’s financial condition.

The original Fiber Optics Project related to telecommunications was substantially completed as of
September 30, 2000. However, because of the growth of the telecommunications market and the rate of
advancement in telecommunication products, the Company has focused its efforts to the production
process (MicroDyn/Automation Project) and the development of additional telecommunications products
and the expenditures related thereto will be greater than described above. See also
“Telecommunications Business Unit.”
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Results of Operations

The following table sets forth, as a percentage of net sales, the components of the Company’s
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the indicated periods:

Year Ended June 30,
2001 2000 1999

Net sales 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Costs and expenses:

Cost of sales ’ 59.4 59.1 68.9

Marketing and selling 213 19.7 24.8

Research and development 5.8 6.5 9.0

General and administrative 6.3 6.7 10.8

Gain on sale of property 0.5 - -

Special charges - (0.2) 15.8

Amortization of intangible assets 1.3 1.2 1.4
Income (loss) from operations 6.4 - 7.0 (30.7)
Other income (expense):

Interest expense (6.3) (6.3) (7.1)

Interest income 0.4 0.4 0.6

Income (loss) from equity investments 0.1) 0.0 (3.2)
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes, ’

minority interest, extraordinary charge and accounting change 0.4 1.1 (40.4)
Income taxes 0.2 0.3 1.2
Income (loss) from continuing operations before minority

interest, extraordinary charge and accounting change 0.2 0.8 (41.6)
Minority interest in income of consolidated subsidiary (0.1) - -
Recontinuance of previously discontinued operations - - 0.7
Income (loss) before extraordinary charge and accounting change 0.1 0.8 (40.9)
Extraordinary charge from early extinguishment

of debt, net of income tax benefits - - (0.5)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting for start-up costs - - (1.2)
Net income (loss) 0.1% 0.8% (42.6%)

Factors, which have affected the results of operations and net income during fiscal 2001 as compared to
fiscal 2000 and during fiscal 2000 as compared to fiscal 1999, are discussed below.

Overview of the Results of Operations -- Fiscal 2001 Compared to Fiscal 2000

The Company’s operations for fiscal 2001 resulted in income from continuing operations before minority
interest, extraordinary charge and accounting change of $371 compared to income from continuing
operations of $1,953 for fiscal 2000. The Company realized net income of $271 for fiscal 2001,
compared to a net income of $1,928 for fiscal 2000.
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The following factors should be considered in comparing the Company’s continuing operations for fiscal
2001 and fiscal 2000:

o Results for fiscal 2001 include a gain on the sale of property of $1,115 ($.05 per share).

e Results for fiscal 2000 include a special charge reversal of $475 ($.02 per share).

After excluding the items noted above, the Company’s operating activities would have resulted in a loss
from continuing operations before minority interest, extraordinary charge and accounting change of
$(744) for fiscal 2001, as compared to income from continuing operations before minority interest,
extraordinary charge and accounting change of $1,478 for fiscal 2000.

Fiscal 20¢1 Compared with Fiscal 2000

Net sales. Net sales decreased 4.0% to $219,448 in fiscal 2001from $228,596 in fiscal 2000. The
decrease in sales in fiscal 2001 is mainly attributable to lost sales resulting from the Company’s strategic
decision to exit additional non-core business lines, as well as the devaluation of foreign currencies
relative to the strength of the U.S. dollar. During fiscal 2001, the Company lost about $6,000 in sales by
exiting certain non-metal halide lighting product lines, about $4,000 by exiting non-telecommunications
optical coating product lines, and about $4,000 in sales due to the strength of the U.S. dollar.

Metal halide sales for fiscal 2001 were $163,676, down 1% from $164,793 in fiscal 2000. Total pulse
start product sales increased 39% to $46,240 in fiscal 2001 from $33,166 in fiscal 2000. Sales of the
Company’s core metal halide materials, a key indicator of industry trends, declined 7% as compared to
fiscal 2000. Geographically, these sales of materials declined 4% in the U.S. and 9% outside the U.S.
Non-metal halide lighting sales declined 9% due to the elimination of certain non-metal halide lighting
products.

Lighting sales inside the U.S. declined 1% in fiscal 2001 as compared to fiscal 2000. While sales of
metal halide system components, lamps and power supplies, increased 5%, this increase was offset by the
managed decline of non-metal halide product sales and a 3% decline in sales of metal halide fixture
products. Lighting sales outside the U.S. declined 6%, which the Company primarily attributes to
foreign currency exchange and the managed decline of non-metal halide product sales noted above.

DSI’s telecommunications product sales for fiscal 2001 were $2,613, up 80% from $1,453 in fiscal 2000.
During fiscal 2001, DSI introduced a new family of forward integrated components. Backorders in the
telecom product area grew to $3,200 as of June 30, 2001.

Pricing in the metal halide lighting business is competitive, and prices for the Company’s products have
remained flat or declined slightly. The introduction of new products has helped to stabilize the
Company’s product pricing.

The Company believes that fiscal 2002 sales will be in the range of $135,000 to $145,000, excluding the

fixture operations. The Company expects that earnings per share, after preferred shares accretion and

excluding the one-time charges associated with the recently announced restructuring, other unusual s
charges and the costs associated with the sale of the fixture operations, are expected to be in the range of

$.15 to §.25.

Cost of Sales. Cost of sales decreased 3.4% to $130,481 in fiscal 2001 from $135,114 in fiscal 2000.
The decrease was primarily attributable to decreased unit volume. As a percentage of net sales, cost of
sales increased slightly to 59.4% in fiscal 2601 from 59.1% in fiscal 2000, resulting in gross margins of
40.6% in fiscal 2001 and 40.9% in fiscal 2000. The Company experienced lower gross profit in fiscal
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2001 in its fixture operations and at its DSI subsidiary compared with fiscal 2000. However, partially
offsetting this loss was an increase in gross profit from its other metal halide lamp, power supply and
specialty materials operations.

Marketing and Selling Expenses. Marketing and selling expenses increased 3.6% to $46,751 in fiscal
2001 from $45,132 in fiscal 2000. As a percentage of net sales, marketing and selling expenses increased
to 21.3% in fiscal 2001 from 19.7% in fiscal 2000. The increase in marketing and selling expenses were
related to more aggressive marketing efforts for fixtures and telecommunications products.

Research and Development Expenses. Research and development expenses declined 14.0% to $12,693
in fiscal 2001 from $14,763 in fiscal 2000. Research and development expenses are incurred related to:
(1) expansion of the line of Uni-Form® pulse start lamps and fixtures (with improved energy efficiency,
quicker starting and restarting and a more compact arc source, which improves the light and reduces
material costs) intended to replace many first generation metal halide lamps and fixtures in industrial and
commercial applications; (ii) improving the coating process of optical thin-films to broaden the
applications, developing new thin-film materials, and using coatings to develop improvements to lighting
and telecommunications technologies; (iii) development of new materials for the world’s major lighting
manufacturers; and, (iv) development and testing of electronic and electromagnetic power supply
systems. The decrease in research and development was primarily a result of a reduction in spending
related to the development of Uni-Form® pulse start lamps and the Company’s efforts to control the
level of its research and development spending. As a percentage of net sales, research and development
expenses decreased to 5.8% in fiscal 2001 from 6.5% in fiscal 2000.

General and Administrative Expenses. General and administrative expenses declined 10.1% to $13,831
in fiscal 2001 from $15,385 in fiscal 2000. The Company reduced corporate legal expenses by $436,
which was offset by an increase in the provision for doubtful accounts of $579. Also, fiscal 2001 general
and administrative expenses were reduced by the elimination of acquisition-related litigation accruals of
$1,847 that, based on review with legal counsel, are no longer required. As a percentage of net sales,
general and administrative expenses decreased to 6.3% in fiscal 2001 from 6.7% in fiscal 2000.

Gain on Sale of Property. DSI operations are in the process of moving into a much larger leased facility
in Santa Rosa, California. Previously, the Company owned four buildings and leased several others that
comprised the “DSI business campus” in Santa Rosa. Three of the buildings were sold in fiscal 2001
resulting in net proceeds of $2,117 and a gain on the sale of $1,115.

Special Charges. During fiscal 2000, the Company revised certain estimates related to its plans and
reversed $475 of previously recorded special charges that were no longer deemed necessary. The
reversal resulted primarily from the settlement of a lease cancellation for less than the estimated amount
and revised estimates for severance and related costs.

Amortization of Intangible Assets. Amortization expense remained relatively constant at $2,862 in fiscal
2001 as compared to $2,766 in fiscal 2000. Amortization expense relates primarily to the amortization of
goodwill and other intangible assets related to the January 1998 acquisitions of Ruud Lighting, Inc. and
Deposition Sciences, Inc.

Income (Loss) from Operations. As a result of the items noted above, income from operations in fiscal
2001 was $13,945 as compared to income from operations in fiscal 2000 of $15,911. Income from
operations represented 6.9% of sales in fiscal 2001 as compared with 7.0% in fiscal 2000.
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Interest Expense. Interest expense decreased to $13,839 in fiscal 2001 from $14,314 in fiscal 2000.
This decrease resulted primarily from the lower average debt outstanding during fiscal 2001 as compared
to fiscal 2000.

Interest Income. Interest income increased to $1,015 in fiscal 2001 from $921 in fiscal 2000. This
increase is attributable to an increase of $107 in interest income from the loan to officer.

Income (Loss) from Equity Investments. The loss from equity investments in fiscal 2001 represents $234
of losses from the Company’s investment in Fiberstars, Inc., a marketer and distributor of fiber optic
lighting products. The income from equity investments in fiscal 2000 represents $70 of earnings from
the Company’s investment in Fiberstars, Inc.

Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations before Income Taxes and Minority Interest. The Company

had income from continuing operations before income taxes and minority interest of $887 in fiscal 2001
as compared to income from continuing operations before income taxes and minority interest of $2,588

in fiscal 2000.

Income Taxes. Income tax expense was $516 in fiscal 2001 as compared to $635 in fiscal 2000. The
income tax expense in both years relates primarily to certain of the Company’s foreign operations.

At June 30, 2001, the Company had net operating loss carryforwards (“NOLs”) of $88,901 available to
reduce future United States federal taxable income, which expire in varying amounts from 2008 to 2021.

The Company also has research and development credit carryforwards for tax purposes of approximately
$3,818, which expire in varying amounts from 2008 to 2015. Additionally, in conjunction with the
Alternative Minimum Tax (“AMT”) rules, the Company had available AMT credit carryforwards for tax
purposes of approximately $259, which may be used indefinitely to reduce regular federal income taxes.

Also at June 30, 2001, the Company had foreign net operating loss carryforwards for tax purposes
totaling $1,698 that expire in varying amounts from 2002 to 2007 and $8,053 that have no expiration
dates.

Overview of the Results of Operations -- Fiscal 2000 Compared to Fiscal 1999

The Company’s operations for fiscal 2000 resulted in income from continuing operations before minority
interest, extraordinary charge and accounting change of $1,953 compared to a loss from continuing
operations before extraordinary charge and accounting change of $81,739 for fiscal 1999. The Company
realized net income of $1,928 for fiscal 2000, compared to a net loss of $83,753 for fiscal 1999.

The following factors should be considered in comparing the Company’s continuing operations for fiscal
2000 and fiscal 1999:

o Results for fiscal 2000 include a special charges reversal of $475 ($.02 per share).
o Results for fiscal 1999 include $35,063 in special charges ($1.73 per share) and the effect of
termination of equipment contracts of $8,548 ($.42 per share).

After excluding the above charges, the Company’s operating activities would have resulted in income
from continuing operations before minority interest, extraordinary charge and accounting change of
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$1,478 for fiscal 2000, as compared to a loss from continuing operations before minority interest,
extraordinary charge and accounting change of $38,128 for fiscal 1999.

Fiscal 2000 Compared with Fiscal 1999

Net sales. Net sales increased 16.4% to $228,596 in fiscal 2000 from $196,428 in fiscal 1999.
Commercial and industrial sales increased 11.2% to $225,361 in fiscal 2000 as compared to $202,706 in
fiscal 1999. Sales of Microsun residential product decreased to $1,782 in fiscal 2000 from $4,719 in
fiscal 1999 due to the decision to wind-down the portable residential fixture manufacturing operations in
the second quarter of fiscal 1999. In addition, Microsun sales were lower in fiscal 2000 due to the
absence of the advertising in major metropolitan newspapers which occurred in fiscal 1999. No lamp
equipment sales were recorded in fiscal 2000 due to the cessation of these sales in the second quarter of
fiscal 1999. Fiscal 1999 includes the reversal of $14,961 in lamp equipment sales due to the termination
of equipment contracts noted above, offset by $2,971 of lamp equipment sales recorded prior to the
termination. Telecommunication product sales for fiscal 2000 were $1,453, up 46% from $993 in fiscal
1699. Government-related business at DSI decreased by almost $3,000 for fiscal 2000 from fiscal 1999
due to the refocusing of DSI to the rapidly expanding telecommunications component market.

Fiscal 2000 commercial and industrial sales (which exclude the residential, telecommunications and lamp
equipment amounts discussed above) reflect continued growth in the sales of the Company’s core U.S.
metal halide operations, in non-metal halide products, and in overseas sales. The Company’s commercial
and industrial metal halide sales increased 11% (8% increase in the United States) from the year ago
period. The Company’s core metal halide materials business, a key indicator of industry trends, was up
29% from fiscal 1999. Geographically, these sales of materials were up 12% in the U.S. and grew 56%
outside the U.S.

Commercial and industrial sales outside the U.S. increased 25%. The Company attributes the increase in
international sales to increased sales of its materials and optical coatings, especially in the Pacific Rim.
Sales of non-metal halide products grew 12% primarily due to the increase in sales of zinc mercury
materials for fluorescent lighting and thin-film coating equipment.

Sales increases were driven by increased volume in the Company’s materials, components and systems.
Pricing in the metal halide lighting business is competitive, and prices for the Company’s products have
remained flat or declined slightly. The introduction of new products has helped to stabilize the
Company’s product pricing.

Cost of Sales. Cost of sales decreased 0.2% to $135,114 in fiscal 2000 from $135,349 in fiscal 1999.
As a percentage of net sales, cost of sales decreased to 59.1% in fiscal 2000 from 68.9% in fiscal 1999.
The Company’s restructuring efforts in fiscal 1999 resulted in a significant disruption of the ongoing
business of the Company and, as a result, a significant increase in its costs and expenses. The biggest
single area of increased costs occurred as a result of the consolidation of the lamp and equipment
operations. Three manufacturing sites were consolidated into one, which together with employee
terminations, resulted in severe workforce disruption. Simultaneously, the Company attempted to
accelerate production of new products such as Uni-Form® pulse start and began the implementation of
extensive, new information systems. Largely as a result of these initiatives, the Company incurred
significantly higher costs related to quality, rework and productivity issues. Additionally, the Company
has continued to reduce its manufacturing costs through cost-cutting and productivity gains, especially in
its lighting systems operations.
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Cost of sales in fiscal 1999 include a credit of $6,413 related to the termination of equipment contracts
and $3,956 of inventory write-downs related to the exit of nonfocus product lines and wind-down of the
Microsun business. Excluding these items, cost of sales decreased 2.0% to $135,114 in fiscal 2000 from
$137,806 in fiscal 1999. The abnormally high level of cost of sales in fiscal 1999 was primarily a result
of the production problems noted above in fiscal 1999 as compared to a more normalized cost of sales
amount in fiscal 2000. As a percentage of net sales, excluding the effect of the terminated equipment
contracts and inventory write-downs, cost of sales decreased to 59.1% in fiscal 2000 from 65.2% in fiscal
1999.

Marketing and Selling Expenses. Marketing and selling expenses decreased 7.3% to $45,132 in fiscal
2000 from $48,684 in fiscal 1999. As a percentage of net sales, marketing and selling expenses
decreased to 19.7% in fiscal 2000 from 24.8% in fiscal 1999. This decrease is primarily due to the
manner in which the Company was selling its residential portable lighting fixtures. In the first six
months of fiscal 1999, the Company was utilizing newspaper ads in major metropolitan newspapers and
catalogues to sell these fixtures. As described in the section “Discontinued Operations Subsequently
Retained,” the Company is now utilizing the customer service systems and personnel of an existing
ADLT business, as well as the Internet, to receive, process and fill orders, which has resulted in a
reduction in marketing and selling expenses. The reduction in marketing and selling expenses, as a
percent of sales, is also a result of the Company’s efforts to better manage its expenditures including
salaries and benefits and travel costs. As a percentage of net sales, excluding the effect of the terminated
equipment contracts in fiscal 1999, marketing and selling expenses decreased to 19.7% in fiscal 2000
from 21.3% in fiscal 1999.

Research and Development Expenses. Research and development expenses decreased 16.5% to $14,763
in fiscal 2000 from $17,680 in fiscal 1999. Research and development expenses are incurred related to:
(1) expansion of the new line of Uni-Form® pulse start lamps (with improved energy efficiency, quicker
starting and restarting and a more compact arc source, which improves the light and reduces material
costs) intended to replace many first generation metal halide lamps in industrial and commercial
applications; (ii) development and testing of electronic power supply systems; (iii) development of new
materials for the world’s major lighting manufacturers; and, (iv) research and development efforts aimed
at improving the coating process of optical thin-films to broaden the applications, developing new thin-
film materials, and using coatings to develop improvements to lighting and telecommunications
technologies. The decrease in research and development was primarily a result of a reduction in
spending related to the development of Uni-Form® pulse start lamps and the Company’s efforts to
control the level of its research and development spending. As a percentage of net sales, excluding the
effect of the terminated equipment contracts in fiscal 1999, research and development expenses
decreased to 6.5% in fiscal 2000 from 8.4% in fiscal 1999.

General and Administrative Expenses. General and administrative expenses decreased 27.4% to
$15,385 in fiscal 2000 from $21,192 in fiscal 1999. The decrease reflects the Company’s efforts to
control general and administrative costs and was primarily related to reductions in professional services
(audit, tax, legal, information system and other) of $1,557, travel costs of $1,232, and compensation costs
of $605. The reduction in travel costs related in part to the Company’s decision to reduce enterprise-
wide travel in favor of less costly video-conference communication. As a percentage of net sales,
excluding the effect of the terminated equipment contracts in fiscal 1999, general and administrative
expenses decreased to 6.7% in fiscal 2000 from 10.0% in fiscal 1999.

Special Charges. See discussion of special charges above.
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Amortization of Intangible Assets. Amortization expense remained relatively constant at $2,766 in fiscal
2000 as compared to $2,789 in fiscal 1999. Amortization expense relates primarily to the amortization of
goodwill and other intangible assets related to the January 1998 acquisitions of Ruud Lighting, Inc. and
Deposition Sciences, Inc.

Income (Loss) from Operations. As a result of the items noted above, income from operations in fiscal
2000 was $15,911 as compared to a loss from operations in fiscal 1999 of $60,373. Income from
operations represented 7.0% of sales in fiscal 2000.

Interest Expense. Interest expense increased to $14,314 in fiscal 2000 from $13,889 in fiscal 1999. This
increase resulted primarily from the higher average debt outstanding during fiscal 2000 as compared to
fiscal 1999.

Interest Income. Interest income decreased to $921 in fiscal 2000 from $1,122 in fiscal 1999. This
decrease is attributable to lower average cash equivalents and short-term investments in fiscal 2000 as
compared to fiscal 1999, offset by an increase of approximately $200 in interest income from the loan to
officer.

Income (Loss) from Equity Investments. The income from equity investments in fiscal 2000 represents
$70 of earnings from the Company’s investment in Fiberstars, Inc., a marketer and distributor of fiber
optic lighting products. The loss from equity investments in fiscal 1999 represents $109 of earnings
from the Company’s investment in Fiberstars, Inc., offset by a pretax noncash write-down of $5,883
related to the Company’s investment in the Unison joint venture and a $544 loss from the Company’s
investment in Venture Lighting Japan, a manufacturer and marketer of metal halide lamps in Japan.

Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations before Income Taxes. The Company had income from
continuing operations before income taxes of $2,588 in fiscal 2000 as compared to a loss from continuing
operations before income taxes of $79,458 in fiscal 1999.

Income Taxes. Income tax expense was $635 in fiscal 2000 as compared to $2,281 in fiscal 1999. The
income tax expense in fiscal 2000 relates primarily to certain of the Company’s foreign operations. The
income tax expense in fiscal 1999 relates primarily to the establishment of a valuation allowance related
to the net deferred tax assets of the Company.

Recontinuance of Previously Discontinued Operations. See ‘“Discontinued Operations Subsequently
Retained” above.

Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change. The Company adopted Statement of Position (“SOP”) 98-5,
“Reporting on the Costs of Start-Up Activities,” effective July 1, 1998, which resulted in the cumulative
effect of the accounting change of $2,443 in fiscal 1999.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Company’s principal financial requirements are for capital expenditures, market development
activities, research and development efforts, acquisitions and strategic investments, and working capital.
These requirements have been, and the Company expects they will continue to be, financed through a
combination of cash flow from operations, borrowings under credit facilities and the sale of stock and
debt under two shelf registration statements for $300,000 and $100,000. These shelf registration
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statements will not be available for offerings, other than investment grade debt securities, until the
market value of common equity held by non-affiliates again exceeds $75,000.

Cash decreased $238 during fiscal 2001. Cash provided by operating activities totaled $2,376 and cash
provided by financing activities totaled $19,695. Cash used in investing activities totaled $22,309.

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities. Net cash provided by operating activities totaled
$2,376 in fiscal 2001 as compared to cash used in operating activities of $13,274 in fiscal 2000. Net
income plus depreciation and amortization totaled $11,623 in fiscal 2001 as compared to $11,939 in
fiscal 2000. The Company achieved its goal to generate positive cash flow from operations in fiscal
2001. The Company intends to manage its cash resources to generate positive cash flow from operating
activities for fiscal 2002 and beyond.

Net cash used in investment activities. During fiscal 2001, investing activities used $22,309 of cash
including $24,209 for capital expenditures and $366 related to purchases of businesses. The Company
sold several smaller properties that housed some of the DST operations and generated net proceeds of
$2,117. The Company is currently leasing a much larger facility for DSL

Capital expenditures, primarily for production equipment and facility improvements, totaled $24,209 in
fiscal 2001 as compared to $5,636 in fiscal 2000. Capital expenditures in fiscal 2001 related to
additional machinery and equipment to improve production processes, which should result in increased
productivity and capacity in the production of telecommunications and lighting products.

The Company plans to limit its capital expenditures for the next twelve months, except for its
telecommunications business. Under its $300,000 shelf registration, in September 2000, the Company
sold 1,700,000 shares of common stock for $15.00 per share to fund the future expansion of its
telecommunications business. The net proceeds from the stock offering of approximately $23,000 were
used to repay indebtedness outstanding under the Bank Credit Facility. The Company incurred
approximately $17,000 in fiscal 2001 for expenditures on capital improvements, including optical coating
production equipment, filter testing and measuring testing and measuring equipment and production
facilities, and on research and development, in the telecommunications business.

The Company estimates its maintenance level for capital expenditures in the lighting business will
approximate $6,000 to $8,000 over the next twelve months. Future capital expenditures (excluding the
telecommunications business) beyond this level will be discretionary, as the Company presently has
sufficient operating capacities to support several years of sales growth at its historical rates.

Net cash provided by financing activities. During fiscal 2001, net financing activities provided cash of
$19,695, which included $22,890 of net proceeds from an offering of 1,700,000 shares of the Company’s
common stock and net repayments of debt of $1,322.

On March 13, 1998, the Company sold $100,000 of 8% Senior Notes due March 15, 2008, resulting in
net proceeds of $96,150. From September 1998 until August 2000, interest on these notes was calculated
at 8.5%. During August 2000, the Company completed a registered exchange offer to existing
noteholders, which resulted in reducing the interest rate on the Senior Notes to 8.0% from 8.5%.

Pursuant to an agreement dated October &, 1998, as amended, between the Company and its Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer (the “CEC”), the Company, following approval by the Company’s Board of
Directors, has loaned a total of $13,140 to its CEO as of June 30, 2001, at an interest rate of 8%.
Subsequent to June 30, 2001, the Company loaned an additional $970 to its CEQ. The proceeds of the
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loans have been used by the Company’s CEO to reduce the principal balance outstanding of margin loan
accounts, which are secured by 1,715,042 shares of the Company’s Common Stock owned by the CEO and
a related entity. In connection with the loan, the Company’s Board of Directors obtained the CEQ’s
agreement to an extension of his employment agreement to December 31, 2003. The loan agreement
prohibits the CEQO from encumbering his shares of the Company’s Common Stock in any manner except
pursuant to the existing agreements governing the CEQ’s margin accounts, without the consent of the
Company’s Board of Directors.

The CEO has paid accrued interest of $720 on the loan through October 6, 1999. The term of the loan has
been extended by the Board to October 6, 2001. The Board has reserved the right to require earlier
repayment if ADLT requires the payment to prevent an unacceptable strain on cash resources.

The Company’s ability to collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the loan
agreement is largely dependent on the ultimate realization from the sale of assets owned by the CEO,
including the CEQ’s investment in common stock of the Company. There has been a deterioration in the
fair value of various investments owned by the CEO during fiscal 2001. A continued deterioration in the
fair value of these investments could make it probable that the Company would not collect all amounts
due in accordance with the contractual terms of the loan agreement which would result in the loan being
impaired. Impairment of the loan receivable would result in the recognition of a loss accrual based on
the Company’s assessment of the ultimate realization under the loan agreement.

Ability to advance future operations. The Company has begun to implement, and will continue to
implement, changes in its operational activities intended to reduce the use of its cash resources to a level
at or below the cash flow generated by its operations.

The Company’s working capital (current assets less current liabilities) at June 30, 2001 was $46,056,
resulting in a working capital ratio of current assets to current liabilities of 2.1 to 1.0, as compared to
$39,949 or 1.9 to 1.0 at June 30, 2000. As of June 30, 2001, the Company had $3,652 in cash and cash

equivalents.

The interest-bearing obligations of the Company totaled $163,772 as of June 30, 2001, and consisted of:
$41,034 of borrowings under the Bank Credit Facility; $100,000 of 8% Senior Notes; mortgages of
$15,380; a promissory note of $2,300; a term loan of $3,023; capital leases of $230; and, other
obligations of foreign subsidiaries of $1,805.

The Company has a $65,000 Bank Credit Facility consisting of a $40,000 revolving credit loan and
$25,000 term loan provided by several financial institutions. The revolving credit loan matures in July
2004. Interest rates on loans outstanding, under the revolving credit loan, are based, at the Company’s
option, on LIBOR plus 2.25% or the agent bank’s prime rate (6.75% at June 30, 2001). Availability of
borrowings is determined by the Company’s eligible accounts receivable and inventories. The Company
had unused availability of $18,063 as of June 30, 2001. The term loan matures in July 2004. The
Company pays monthly principal payments of $298, with the unpaid balance due at maturity. Interest
rates on the term loan are based, at the Company’s option, on LIBOR plus 2.75% or the agent bank’s
prime rate.

The Bank Credit Facility contains certain affirmative and negative covenants customary for this type of
agreement, prohibits cash dividends, and includes financial covenants with respect to the coverage of
certain fixed charges. The principal security for the revolving credit loan is substantially all of the
personal property of the Company and each of its North American and United Kingdom subsidiaries.
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The term loan is secured by substantially all of the Company’s machinery and equipment and is cross
collateralized and secured with the revolving credit loan.

As discussed above, the Company is in discussions with several investment banking firms to assist in
identifying and implementing the best strategic alternative for the telecommunications business unit.

On August 31, 2000, the Company completed a public offering of 1,700,000 shares of its common stock
at a price of $15.00 per share under a $300,000 shelf registration filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission that became effective in July 2000.

The public offering reduced the amount that may be available in the future for the issuance of various
debt and equity securities under the shelf registration statement to approximately $274,500. The
Company used the net proceeds from the public offering of approximately $23,000 to repay revolving
credit loan borrowings. The Company subsequently borrowed under its revolving credit loan facility in
fiscal 2001 to fund capital improvements, including optical coating production equipment, filter testing
and measurement equipment and production facilities, and on research and development in its
telecommunications business unit at DSL

In addition to the $300,000 shelf registration discussed above, in July 2000 a $100,000 shelf registration
became effective under which the Company may from time-to-time issue various debt and equity
securities to acquire assets, businesses or securities. The Company has no outstanding securities issued
under this registration statement. These shelf registration statements will not be available for offerings,
other than investment grade debt securities, until the market value of common equity held by non-
affiliates again exceeds $75,000.

The Company believes that the available cash, anticipated cash flow from operations, and the initiatives
outlined above, along with the availability under its existing Bank Credit Facility, will enable the
Company to fund its operations for at least the next 12 months. Beyond this time, the Company believes
a return to profitability and positive cash flow from operations, the growth in the popularity and
applications for metal halide products and systems, and opportunities in the telecommunications business
should enable the Company to access additional capital resources, as needed.

Market Risk Disclosures

Market Risk Disclosures. The following discussion about the Company’s market risk disclosures
involves forward looking statements. Actual results could differ materially from those projected in the
forward looking statements. The Company is exposed to market risk related to changes in interest rates
and foreign currency exchange rates. The Company does not use derivative financial instruments for
speculative or trading purposes.

Interest Rate Sensitivity. The following table provides information about the Company’s debt obligations
and financial instruments that are sensitive to changes in interest rates. For debt obligations, the table
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presents principle cash flows and related weighted-average interest rates by expected maturity dates.
Weighted-average variable rates are based on implied forward rates as derived from published spot rates.

Fair Value
June 30, June 30,
(dollars in millions) 2002 2003 2004 2003 2006  Thereafier  Total 2001
Liabilities
Long-term Debt, including
Current Portion

Fixed Rate $29 S$03 §$04 $04 §$44 $ 1008 $1092 § 784

Average Interest Rate 8.1% 8.2% 8.1% 8.1% 8.1% 8.0%

Variable Rate $ 60 S$55 §$123 $305 $02 $ 01 § 546 § 546

Average Interest Rate 6.7% 7.2% 88%  10.5%  12.8% 10.6%

Liabilities at June 30, 2000, included $110,477 of fixed-rate debt and $54,192 of variable-rate debt.
Interest rates on the fixed-rate debt to maturity ranged from 6.65% to 18.70%, while interest rates on the
variable-rate debt to maturity ranged from 8.29% to 10.50% as of June 30, 2000. In fiscal 1999, the
Company entered into an interest rate swap with a notional amount of $16,000. During the fourth quarter
of fiscal 2000, the Company early-terminated the interest rate swap, resulting in a realized gain of $120.

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk. During fiscal 2001 and prior years, the Company did not hedge its
foreign currency exposure and, therefore, did not enter into any forward foreign exchange contracts to
hedge foreign currency transactions.

The Company has operations outside the United States with foreign-currency denominated assets and
liabilities, primarily denominated in pounds sterling, Australian dollars, and Canadian dollars. Because
the Company has foreign-currency denominated assets and liabilities, financial exposure may result,
primarily from the timing of transactions and the movement of exchange rates. The Company began a
program in fiscal 2002 to hedge its foreign currency balance sheet exposures which is intended to reduce
any significant impact on earnings or cash flows.

Sales and expenses denominated in foreign currencies are subject to the effect of foreign currency
fluctuations and these fluctuations may have an impact on margins and on common shareholders’ equity.

Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Standards

The Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“FAS”) No. 133 “Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” as of July 1, 2000. FAS 133 requires that all derivatives,
such as interest rate exchange agreements (swaps), be recognized on the balance sheet at fair value. The
Company had no derivatives as at July 1, 2000, and therefore, no resulting transition adjustments. The
Company had no derivatives as at June 30, 2001.

The Company adopted Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Issue 00-27, “Application of EITF 98-5,
‘Convertible Securities with Beneficial Conversion Features or Contingently Adjustable Conversion
Ratios,” to Certain Convertible Instruments” in the quarter ended December 31, 2000. EITF Issue 00-27
requires that a convertible instrument’s beneficial conversion feature be measured using an effective
conversion price. As a result, the value assigned to the redeemable preferred stock was adjusted by
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$5,329 for the discount related to the beneficial conversion option. This additional discount was
immediately accreted to paid-in capital in a manner similar to a cumulative effect of an accounting
change since the redeemable preferred stock was convertible at the time of issuance. The impact of this
change is noted in the Statements of Consolidated Shareholders’ Equity and in Note L “Earnings Per
Share.”

The Company adopted EITF Issue 00-10, “Accounting for Shipping and Handling Fees and Costs” in the
year ended June 30, 2001, EITF Issue 00-10 requires that all amounts billed to a customer in a sales
transaction related to shipping and handling be classified as revenue. Accordingly, the Company has
reclassified such amounts to revenue within the financial statements. EITF Issue 00-10 also requires the
disclosure of the amount and classification of shipping and handling costs. The Company records
shipping and handling costs as “Marketing and Selling” costs, and these amounts totaled $8,799 in fiscal
2001, $8,272 in fiscal 2000 and $7,146 in fiscal 1999.

In July, 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (FAS) No. 141, Business Combinations, and FAS 142, Goodwill and Intangible
Assets. FAS 141 is effective for all business combinations completed after June 30, 2001 and requires
using the purchase method of accounting. The pooling of interest method of accounting is prohibited -
except for transactions initiated before July 1, 2001.

FAS 142 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001, however, certain provisions of
this Statement apply to goodwill and other intangible assets acquired between July 1, 2001 and the
effective date of FAS 142, Earlier adoption of FAS 142 is permitted, and the Company is considering the
early adoption of FAS 142 effective first quarter of fiscal year 2002. Major provisions of FAS 142
require intangible assets acquired in a business combination to be recorded separately from goodwill if
they arise from contractual or other legal rights or are separable from the acquired entity and can be sold,
transferred, licensed, rented or exchanged, either individually or as part of a related contract, asset or
liability. In addition, goodwill, as well as intangible assets with indefinite lives, will no longer be subject
to amortization. Finally, goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives will be tested for impairment
annually and whenever there is an impairment indicator. As a result, adoption of FAS 142 in the first
quarter of fiscal 2002 would result in a reduction in annual amortization expense in fiscal 2002 of
approximately $2,300 based on the level of this expense in fiscal 2001. Of this reduction, approximately
$1,900 relates to the three fixture subsidiaries that the Company intends to sell. See “Recent
Developments — Sale of Fixture Operations.”

Impact of [nflation

Although inflation has slowed in recent years, it continues to be a factor in our economy. However,
management does not believe that inflation has or will have a significant impact on its operations.
Although the Company has not raised prices significantly in recent years, it has been able to lower
overall costs sufficiently to offset inflation.

Ttem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk
The information set forth under the subcaption “Market Risk Disclosures” contained in Item 7.

“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations™ is
incorporated herein by reference. ’
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ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K
ITEM 8, ITEM 14(a)(1) AND (2), (c) AND (d)
LIST OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTAL DATA
CERTAIN EXHIBITS
FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2001
ADVANCED LIGHTING TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
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LIST OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND FINANCIAL
STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Form 10-K—Item 14(a)(1) and (2), (c) and (d)
ADVANCED LIGHTING TECHNOLOGIES, INC. y

The following consolidated financial statements of Advanced Lighting Technologies, Inc. are included in

Item 8:

Audited Consolidated Financial Statements: Page
Report of Grant Thornton LLP, Independent Auditors F-2
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2001 and 2000 F-3
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Years Ended

June 30, 2001, 2000 and 1599 F-4
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity for the

Years Ended June 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999 F-5
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the

Years Ended June 30, 2001, 2680 and 1999 F-6
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements F-8

Financial Statement Schedules:
None
All schedules for which provision is made in the applicable accounting regulation of the

Securities and Exchange Commission are not required under the related instructions or are
inapplicable and therefore have been omitted.
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Report of Grant Thornton LLP, Independent Auditors

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Advanced Lighting Technologies, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Advanced Lighting Technologies, Inc.
as of June 30, 2001 and 2000, and the related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders' equity

and cash flows, for each of the three years in the period ended June 30, 2001. These financial statements
are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of Advanced Lighting Technologies, Inc. as of June 30, 2001
and 2000 and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in
the period ended June 30, 2001, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

/' S/ GRANT THCRNTON LLP

Cleveland, Chio
September 7, 2001 (except for Note R,
as to which the date is September 20, 2001)
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ADVANCED LIGHTING TECHNOLOGIES,INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

June 30, June 30,
2001 2000
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,652 $ 3,890
Trade receivables, less allowances of $1,248 and $1,129 32,762 31,983
Inventories:
Finished goods 27,122 26,532
Raw materials and work-in-process 22,207 21,930
49,329 48,462
Prepaid expenses 3,140 1,881
Total current assets 88,883 86,216
Property, plant and equipment:
Land and buildings 44,399 44,187
Production machinery and equipment 84,116 62,323
Other equipment 2,479 5,077
Furniture and fixtures 21,830 20,893
152,824 132,480
Less accumulated depreciation 30,734 23,317
122,090 109,163
Receivables from related parties 2,177 3,755
Investments in affiliates 13,761 14,251
Other assets 7,955 7,037
Intangible assets 30,890 31,791
Excess of cost over net assets of businesses acquired, net 50,245 52,262
$ 316,001 $ 304,475
Liabilities and shareholders' equity
Current liabilities:
Short-term debt and current portion of long-term debt $ 8,858 $ 7,097
Accounts payable 20,944 20,389
Payables to related parties 1,200 2,639
Employee-related liabilities 3,759 3,913
Accrued income and other taxes 1,030 1,436
Other accrued expenses 7,036 10,793
Total current liabilities 42,827 46,267
Long-term debt 154,914 158,110
M inority interest 416 316
Preferred stock, $.001 par value, per share; 1,000 shares authorized;
i 761 Series A convertible redeemable shares issued and outstanding
at June 30,2001 (redem ption value -- $23,507 at June 30, 2001) 19,554 16,999

Common shareholders' equity:
Common stock, $.001 par value, per share; 80,000 shares authorized;
23,288 shares issued and outstanding as of June 30, 2001 and

20,482 shares issued and outstanding as of June 30, 2000 23 20
Paid-in-capital 217,030 195,786
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (5,058) (2,659)
Loan receivable from officer (13,140) (9,528)
Retained earnings (deficit) (100,565) (100,836)

98,290 82,783
$§ 316,001 $ 304,475

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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ADVANCED LIGHTING TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(in thousands, except per share dollar amounts)

Year Ended Jumne 30,

2001 2000 1999
KJ Net sales $ 219,448 $ 228,596 $ 196,428
Costs and expenses:
Cost of sales 130,481 135,114 135,349
M arketing and selling 46,751 45,132 48,684
Research and development 12,693 14,763 17,680
General and adm inistrative 13,831 15,385 21,192
Gain on sale of property (1,115) - -
Special charges - (475) 31,107
Amortization of intangible assets 2,862 2,766 2,789
Income (loss) from operations 13,945 15,911 (60,373)
Other income (expense):
Interest expense (13,839) (14,314) (13,889)
Interest income 1,015 921 1,122
Income {loss) from equity investments (234) 70 (6,318)
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes,
minority interest, extraordinary charge and accounting change 887 2,588 (79,458)
Income taxes 516 635 2,281
Income (loss) from continuing operations before minority
interest, extraordinary charge and accounting change 371 1,953 (81,739)
Minority interest in income of consolidated subsidiary (100) (25) -
Recontinuance of previously discontinued operations - - 1,331
Income (loss) before extraordinary charge and accounting change 271 1,928 (80,408)
Extraordinary charge from early extinguishment
of debt, net of income tax benefits - - (902)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting for start-up costs - - (2,443)
Net income (loss) 3 271 3 1,928 $ (83,753)
Earnings (loss) per share -- Basic and Diluted:
Income (loss) from continuing operations $ (.10) $ .01 $ (4.04)
Recontinuance of previously discontinued operations - - .07
Extraordinary charge - - (.05
Cumulative effect of accounting change (.24) - (.12°
Earnings (loss) per share -- Basic and Diluted $ (.34) $ .01 $ (4.14)
R Weighted average shares outstanding:
Basic 22,446 : 20,372 20,232
Diluted 22,446 21,331 20,232

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Balance at June 30, 1998

Net loss
Loan to officer
Issuance of shares in
connection with the
purchase of a business
Stock options exercised
Stock purchases
by employees
Stock issued pursuant to
employee benefit plan
Foreign currency
translation adjustment

Comprehensive loss

Balance at June 30, 1999

Net income
Net proceeds from
issuance of preferred
shares and warrant
Preferred shares accretion
Interest on loan to officer
Interest payment received
Issuance of shares in
connection with the
purchase of a business
Stock options exercised
Stock purchases
by employees
Stock issued pursuant to
employee benefit plan
Foreign currency
translation adjustment

Comprehensive income

Balance at June 30, 2000

Net income
Net proceeds from
public offering
of common shares
Preferred shares accretion
Value of beneficial
conversion option of
of preferred shares
Additional preferred shares
accretion from cumulative
effect of accounting
change for beneficial
conversion option
Loan to officer
Interest on loan to officer
Issuance of warrant
GE warrant exercised
Stock options exercised
Stock purchases
by employees
Stock issued pursuant to
employee benefit plan
Foreign currency
translation adjustment

Comprehensive loss

Balance at June 30, 2001

ADVANCED LIGHTING TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

For the Three Years Ended June 30, 2001

{in thousands)

Accumulated Loan
Comprehensive Qther Receivable Retained
Preferred Common Stock Paid-In Income Comprehensive From Earnings
Stock Shares Par Value Capital (Loss) Income (Loss) Officer (Deficit) Total
- 20,189 20 189,828 - - - (19,011) 170,837 4
- - - 3 (83,753) - - (83,753) (83,753}
. - - - - § (9,520) - (9,520)
- 2 - 29 - - - - 29
- 18 - 279 - - - - 279
- 41 - 312 - - - - 312
- 28 - 206 - - - - 206
- - - (949) (949) - - (949)
$ (84,702)
- 20,278 20 190,654 (949) (9,520) (102,764} 77,441
- - - $ 1,928 - - 1,928 1,928
$ 15,203 - 5,000 - - - - 20,203
1,796 (1,796) -
. . . - - (728) - (728)
- - - - - 720 - 720
- 40 - 535 - - - - 535
- 71 - 718 - - - - 718
- 29 - 195 - - - - 195
- 64 - 480 - - - - 480
- - - (1,710} (1,710) - - (1,710)
3 218
16,999 20,482 20 195,786 (2,659) (9,528) (100,836) 99,782
- - - - 3 271 - - 271 271
- 1,700 2 22,888 - - - - 22,890
2,555 - - (2,555) - - - . _
(5,329) - - 5,329 - - - - .
5,329 - - (5,329) - - - - R
. . - - - - (2,785) - (2,785)
- - - - - - (827) - (827)
- - - 37 - - - - 37
- 999 1 (1) - - - -
- 12 - 148 - - - - 148
- 28 - 167 - - - - 167
- 67 - 560 - - - - 560
- - - (2,399) (2,399) - - (2,399)
$ (2,128)
$ 19,554 23,288 $ 23 $ 217,030 3 (5,058) § (13,140) § (100,565) $§ 117,844

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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ADVANCED LIGHTING TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in thousands)

For the Years Ended June 30,

2001 2000 1999
| Operating activities
2 Net income (loss) $ 271 $ 1,928 $ (83,753)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss)
to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation 8,490 7,245 6,387
Amortization 2,862 2,766 2,789
Provision for doubtful accounts 867 288 882
Loss (income) from equity investments ~ 234 (70) 6,318
Gain on sale of property (1,115) - -
Special charges and terminated equipment contracts - (475) 43,611
Deferred income taxes - - 2,836
Extraordinary item - - 902
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle - - 2,443
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, excluding
effects of acquisitions:
Trade receivables (1,597) (5,275) 255
Inventories (698) (5,178) 4,138
Prepaids and other assets (495) (1,826) (1,841)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (4,816) (7,786) 2,641
Payments related to special charge accruals (96) (3,196) (5,183)
Other (1,531) (1,695) (1,737)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 2,376 (13,274) (19,312)
Investing activities
Capital expenditures (24,209) (5,636) (22,130)
Proceeds from sale of real estate 2,117 - -
Sale of short-term investments, net - 350 -
Purchases of businesses (366) (3,274) (4,390)
Investments in affiliates 149 (72) (2,394)
Net cash used in investing activities (22,309) (8,632) (28,914)
Financing activities
Proceeds from revolving credit facility 215,339 201,534 216,977
Payments of revolving credit facility (221,141) (192,463) (211,521)
“““ Proceeds from long-term debt 11,388 121 36,622
Payments of long-term debt and capital leases (6,908) (8,822) (3,986)
Issuance of preferred stock and stock purchase warrant - 20,203 -
Issuance of common stock and warrants 912 1,393 797
Loan to officer (2,785) ~ (9,000)
Net proceeds from public offering 22,890 - -
Net cash provided by financing activities 19,695 21,966 29,889
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (238) 60 (18,337)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 3,890 3,830 22,167

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 3,652 $ 3,89¢ $ 3,830

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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ADVANCED LIGHTING TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS - CONTINUED

(in thousands)

Supplemental cash flow information
Interest paid
Income taxes paid (refunds received), net
Capitalized interest
Noncash transactions
Equipment acquired through capital leases
Stock issued for purchases of businesses
Detail of acquisitions:
Assets acquired
Liabilities assumed
Stock issued for purchase of business
Cash paid
Less cash acquired
Net cash paid for acquisitions

See notes to consolidated financial statements

F-7

Year Ended June 30,

2001 2000 1999
S 13,483 S 14,887 $ 12,241
302 (23) (1,660)
619 458 645
- - 77
245 535 29
$ 899 $ 14,428 § 10,143
(288) (10,529) (5,659)
(245) (535) (29)
366 3,364 4,455
- (90) (65)
$ 366 $ 3274 § 4390




Advanced Lighting Technologies, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statememnts
June 30, 2001

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

A. Organization

Advanced Lighting Technologies, Inc. (the “Company”) is an innovation-driven designer, manufacturer
and marketer of metal halide and other lighting products, which include materials, system components,
systems and equipment. The Company also develops, manufactures, and markets passive optical
telecommunications devices, components and equipment based on the optical coating technologies of its
wholly owned subsidiary, Deposition Sciences Inc. (“DSI”).

B. Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its majority-owned
subsidiaries, after elimination of all significant inter-company accounts and transactions and related
revenues and expenses. Investments in 50% or less owned companies and joint ventures over which the
Company has the ability to exercise significant influence are accounted for under the equity method. All
other investments and investments of less than 20% are accounted for under the cost method.

Accounting Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions in certain circumstances that affect amounts
reported in the consolidated financial statements and notes. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Translation of Foreign Currency

All assets and liabilities of applicable foreign subsidiaries are translated into United States dollars at
year-end exchange rates while revenues and expenses are translated at weighted-average exchange rates
in effect during the year. The net effect of these translation adjustments is shown in the accompanying
financial statements as a component of shareholders’ equity.

Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when
purchased to be cash equivalents.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentration of credit risks consist
primarily of temporary cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments and trade receivables. The
Company invests its cash primarily in a high quality institutional money-market portfolio and high
quality securities and limits the amount of credit exposure to any one financial institution.
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Advanced Lighting Technologies, Inc. r
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Jumne 30, 2001

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Fa

B. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

The Company provides credit in the normal course of business, primarily to major manufacturers and
distributors in the lighting industry and, generally, collateral or other security is not required. The
Company conducts ongoing credit evaluations of its customers and maintains allowances for potential
credit losses which, when realized, have been within the range of management’s expectations. Credit
risk on trade receivables is minimized as a result of the large and diverse nature of the Company’s
worldwide customer base.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out method) or market.
Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. The cost of self-constructed assets includes related
materials, labor, overhead and interest. Repair and maintenance costs are expensed as incurred.

Depreciation is computed for financial reporting purposes by the straight-line method based on the
estimated useful lives of the assets, both those owned and under capital lease, as follows: buildings, 15 to
40 years; machinery and equipment, 5 to 25 years; furniture and fixtures, 5 to 15 years; and, leasehold
improvements, the lease periods.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are amortized using the straight-line method over the following lives:

Excess of cost over net assets acquired.......... 8 - 40 years
Patents, trademarks and tradenames............. 17 - 40 years
Other intangibles....................oco 10 - 40 years

The Company examines the carrying value of its intangible assets when indicators of impairment are
present. When the undiscounted cash flows are not sufficient to recover the assets’ carrying amount, an
impairment loss would be charged to expense in the period identified. Accumulated amortization was
$9,684 and $6,906 at June 30, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Valuation of Loan Receivables

Loan receivables are measured for impairment based on either the present value of expected future cash
flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate or the fair value of the underlying collateral or other
assets available to repay the loan. A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and
events, it is probable that the Company will be unable to collect all amounts due according to the
contractual terms of the loan agreement. The Company evaluates the collectibility of both the interest
and principal when assessing the need for a possible loss accrual.
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Advanced Lighting Technologies, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Jume 30, 2001

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

B. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Revenue Recognition

Revenues from the sale of metal halide materials, system components (lamps, power supplies, system
controls, fiber optic cable) and systems are recognized when products are shipped and revenues on
production equipment contracts are recognized under the percentage of completion method.

Advertising Expense

External costs incurred in providing media advertising and promoting products are expensed the first
time the advertising or promotion takes place.

Research and Development

Research and development costs, primarily the development of new products and modifications of
existing products, are charged to expense as incurred.

Stock Compensation Arrangements

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“FAS™) No. 123, “Accounting and
Disclosure of Stock-Based Compensation,” the Company accounts for stock compensation arrangements
using the intrinsic value based method in APB Opinion No. 25 “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees,” and discloses the effect on net income (loss) and earnings (loss) per share of the fair value
based method in FAS No. 123.

Accounting Change -- Costs of Start-Up Activities

In April 1998, the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants issued Statement of Position
(“SOP”) 98-5, “Reporting on the Costs of Start-Up Activities.” The SOP requires that costs related to
start-up activities be expensed as incurred. The Company adopted the provisions of this SOP in fiscal
year 1999, the effect of which (82,443 or $.12 per diluted common share) is reflected as a cumulative
effect of change in accounting principle.

New Accounting Standards

The Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“FAS”) No. 133 “Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” as of July 1, 2000. FAS 133 requires that all derivatives,
such as interest rate exchange agreements (swaps), be recognized on the balance sheet at fair value. The
Company had no derivatives as at July 1, 2000, and therefore, no resulting transition adjustments. The
Company had no derivatives as at June 30, 2001.
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Advanced Lighting Technologies, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2001

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

B. Sﬁgmﬁﬁcam Accounting Policies (continued)

The Company adopted Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Issue 00-27, “Application of EITF 98-5,
‘Convertible Securities with Beneficial Conversion Features or Contingently Adjustable Conversion
Ratios,’ to Certain Convertible Instruments” in the quarter ended December 31, 2000. EITF Issue 00-27
requires that a convertible instrument’s beneficial conversion feature be measured using an effective
conversion price. As a result, the value assigned to the redeemable preferred stock was adjusted by
$5,329 for the discount related to the beneficial conversion option. This additional discount was
immediately accreted to paid-in capital in a manner similar to a cumulative effect of an accounting
change since the redeemable preferred stock was convertible at the time of issuance. The impact of this
change is noted in the Statements of Consolidated Shareholders’ Equity and in Note L. “Earnings Per
Share.”

The Company adopted EITF Issue 00-10, “Accounting for Shipping and Handling Fees and Costs” in the
year ended June 30, 2001. EITF Issue 00-10 requires that all amounts billed to a customer in a sales
transaction related to shipping and handling be classified as revenue. Accordingly, the Company has
reclassified such amounts to revenue within these financial statements. EITF Issue 00-10 also requires
the disclosure of the amount and classification of shipping and handling costs. The Company records
shipping and handling costs as “Marketing and Selling” costs, and these amounts totaled $8,799 in fiscal
2001, $8,272 in fiscal 2000 and $7,146 in fiscal 1959.

In July 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (FAS) No. 141, Business Combinations, and FAS 142, Goodwill and Intangible
Assets. FAS 141 is effective for all business combinations completed after June 30, 2001 and requires
using the purchase method of accounting. The pooling of interest method of accounting is prohibited
except for transactions initiated before July 1, 2001.

FAS 142 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001, however, certain provisions of
this Statement apply to goodwill and other intangible assets acquired between July 1, 2001 and the
effective date of FAS 142. Earlier adoption of FAS 142 is permitted, and the Company is evaluating the
early adoption of FAS 142 effective first quarter of fiscal year 2002. Major provisions of FAS 142
require intangible assets acquired in a business combination to be recorded separately from goodwill if
they arise from contractual or other legal rights or are separable from the acquired entity and can be sold,
transferred, licensed, rented or exchanged, either individually or as part of a related contract, asset or
liability. In addition, goodwill, as well as intangible assets with indefinite lives, will no longer be subject
to amortization. Finally, goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives will be tested for impairment
annually and whenever there is an impairment indicator. Adoption of FAS 142 in the first quarter of
fiscal 2002 would result in a reduction in annual amortization expense in fiscal 2002 of approximately
$2,300 based on the level of this expense in fiscal 2001. Of this reduction, approximately $1,900 relates
to the three fixture subsidiaries that the Company intends to sell. See Note R “Subsequent Event.”
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Advanced Lighting Technologies, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statememnts
Jumne 30, 2001

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

B. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial Statement Presentation Changes

Certain amounts for prior years have been reclassified to conform to the current year reporting
presentation.

C. Acquisitions

During fiscal 2001, 2000 and 1999, the Company completed the following business combinations, all of
which were accounted for by the purchase method and, accordingly, results of operations for the acquired
businesses have been included in the consolidated statement of operations from their respective dates of
acquisition. Assets acquired and liabilities assumed have been recorded at fair value based on appraisals
and the best estimates available.

On October 2, 2000, the Company acquired all of the assets and liabilities of Ruud Lighting New
Zealand Ltd. (“RLNZ"™), located in Auckland, New Zealand. RLNZ was the exclusive distributor of the
Company’s fixture products in New Zealand. The total purchase price of $611 consisted of $366 in cash
and a note payable of $245. The purchase price resulted in an excess of cost over net assets acquired of
$286, which is being amortized over 20 years.

During the third quarter of fiscal 2000, the Company increased to 93% its ownership of Asian Lighting |
Resources, Ltd., its lamp manufacturing joint venture in Chennai (Madras), India. Subsequently, the
name of this entity was changed to Venture Lighting India Limited. The total purchase price for this
additional ownership interest consisted of $2,993 in cash. The excess of the investment over the net
tangible assets acquired of $2,018 is being amortized over 25 years. Beginning with the third quarter, the
Company began consolidating the results of this subsidiary into its financial statements and deducting the
minority interest share in arriving at net income. The Company’s investment in the joint venture was
previously accounted for by the cost method.

On October 1, 1999, the Company acquired the remaining 50% ownership interest in Lighting Sciences,
Inc. (LSI), its joint venture in Scottsdale, Arizona, which specializes in the testing and development of
lighting products and technology. The total purchase price consisted of 40,000 shares of the Company’s
Common Stock (valued at $535). The purchase price resulted in an excess of cost over net assets
acquired of $323, which is being amortized over 8 years.

On September 15, 1998, the Company acquired all of the capital stock outstanding of Ruud Lighting
Europe, Srl. (“RLE”), located in Florence, Italy. RLE assembles and directly markets, in Europe and the
Middle East, high-intensity discharge (“HID”) lighting systems, with a strong focus on metal halide
installations, for commercial, industrial, outdoor and related lighting applications. The total purchase
price consisted of $930 in cash. The purchase price resulted in an excess of cost over net assets acquired
of $1,329, which is being amortized over 20 years.
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C. Acquisitions (continued)

On August 31, 1998, the Company acquired all the assets and liabilities of Venture Lighting New
Zealand (“VLNZ™), located in Auckland, New Zealand. VLNZ was the exclusive distributor of the
Company’s metal halide lamps in New Zealand. The total purchase price of $254 consisted of $225 in
cash and 2,000 shares of the Company’s Common Stock (valued at $29). The purchase price resulted in
an excess of cost over net assets acquired of $562, which is being amortized over 20 years.

On July 8, 1998, the Company acquired all of the capital stock outstanding of Kramer Lighting, Inc.
(“Kramer™), located in Middletown, Rhode Island, and purchased the land and building of Kramer from
an affiliate of Kramer. Kramer manufactures and directly markets HID lighting systems, with a strong
focus on metal halide installations, for commercial, industrial, outdoor, and related lighting applications.
The total purchase price consisted of $2,612 in cash. The purchase price resulted in an excess of cost
over net assets acquired of $2,466, which is being amortized over 25 years.

In fiscal 2001, general and administrative expenses were reduced by the elimination of acquisition-
related litigation accruals of $1,847 that, based on review with legal counsel, are no longer required.

D. Fiber Optics Joint Venture and Transactions with Unisen and Fiberstars, Inc.

On December 31, 1997, the Company and Rohm and Haas Company (“Rohm and Haas™) completed a
series of agreements that resulted in the formation of Unison Fiber Optics Lighting Systems LLC
(“Unison”), a joint venture focused on the manufacture and sale of fiber optic lighting systems to the
worldwide lighting market. In consideration for a 50% interest in Unison, the Company contributed its
subsidiary, Advanced Cable Lite Corporation, $2,000 in cash, other fiber optic lighting system assets and
obligated itself to contribute an additional $3,000 in cash under a note due January 1, 2000. The
Company accounted for its investment in Unison under the equity method.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 1999, the Company began an effort to restructure its investment,
considering the joint venture’s financial condition, and reviewed various strategic alternatives, including
possible ownership changes. In connection with the restructuring and review process, the Company
concluded that sufficient uncertainty existed regarding the ultimate recovery of the investment. As a
result, the Company revalued its investment to $569 and recorded a pretax non-cash write-down of
$5,883, which is reflected in the consolidated statement of operations as a loss from equity investments.

In February 2000, the Company acquired Rohm and Haas Company’s interest in Unison and,
simultaneously, Unison transferred a substantial portion of its personal property (including intellectual
property) to Fiberstars, Inc.(“Fiberstars”). The transaction included cross-licensing of technology and a
commitment by the Company to continue support of fiber optic lighting research and development. The
Company paid $3,000, of which $2,300 is represented by a note payable in January 2002, to obtain the
remaining interest in Unison. As consideration for the transferred assets to Fiberstars, the Company
received four warrants to purchase a total of 1,000,000 shares of Fiberstars common stock for nominal
consideration. These warrants are exercisable based on stock price and sales of products using Unison
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D. Fiber Optics Joint Venture and Transactions with Unison and Fiberstars, Inc. (continued)

technology, but may be converted into at least 674,375 shares of Fiberstars common stock at any time.
The Company also owns approximately 1,023,000 common shares of Fiberstars, or 24% of Fiberstars’
shares outstanding, and accounts for its investment on the equity method.

E. Investment in Joint Venture

On April 2, 1997, the Company invested approximately $3,800 of cash in exchange for a 30% common
stock interest in Koto Luminous Co., Ltd. (“Koto”), the Company’s sole agent in Japan. Subsequent to
the date of investment, Koto, a marketer and distributor of metal halide lamps, began doing business
under the name Venture Lighting Japan. Using the proceeds of the investment and an additional
investment by an affiliate, Venture Lighting Japan has equipped and is operating a metal halide lamp
manufacturing facility in Japan. During the second quarter of fiscal 1999, the Company exchanged its
common stock interest for nonvoting preferred stock and also purchased additional nonvoting preferred
stock in Koto. As a result, the Company changed its method of accounting for its investment in Venture
Lighting Japan from the equity method to the lower of cost or net realizable value.

F. Financing Arrangements

Short-term debt consisted of the following:

June 30,
2001 2000
Trade facility $ 549 $ 538
Current portion of long-term debt 8,309 6,559

$ 8,858 $ 7,097

The Company, on behalf of a foreign subsidiary, maintains a multi-option borrowing facility with a
foreign bank that includes a trade facility with borrowing capacity of $561 as of June 30, 2001. The
trade facility, along with other borrowings with a foreign bank, is collateralized with substantially all the
assets of the subsidiary. This facility allows the foreign subsidiary to issue documentary letters of credit
for imports and term-trade finance for importing its inventory. The interest rate of this facility varies,
depending upon the denomination of the currency advanced, and ranged from 7.1% to 8.5% in fiscal
2001. The weighted average interest rate on the trade facility was approximately 8.0% and 8.3% during
fiscal 2001 and fiscal 2000, respectively.
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F. Financing Arrangements (continued)
Long-term debt consisted of the following:
June 30,
2001 2000
Senior unsecured 8% notes, due March 2008 $ 100,000 $ 100,000
Bank Credit Facility -- revolving credit loan 16,034 21,836
Bank Credit Facility -- term loan 25,000 17,619
Mortgage notes payable 15,380 16,546
Term loan 3,023 4,030
Promissory note 2,300 2,300
Obligations under capital leases 230 670
Other 1,256 1,668
163,223 164,669
Less current portion 8,309 6,559
$ 154,914 $ 158,110

The Company’s Credit Facility consists of a $40,000 revolving credit loan and a $25,000 term loan
provided by several financial institutions (“Bank Credit Facility”). In fiscal 2001, the Company amended
the Bank Credit Facility to increase the term loan to $25,000 from $20,000 and extended the maturity to
July 1, 2004 for both loans.

Interest rates on loans outstanding, under the revolving credit loan, are based, at the Company’s option,
on LIBOR plus 2.25% or the agent bank’s prime rate (6.75% at June 30, 2001). The weighted average
interest rates on the revolving credit loan were 6.32% at June 30, 2001 and 9.49% at June 30, 2000. The
Company is also obligated to pay a commitment fee of .375% on the unused portion of the loan.
Auvailability of borrowings under the revolving credit loan is determined by the Company’s eligible
accounts receivable and inventories.

Under the term loan, the Company pays monthly principal payments that total $3,576 annually, with the
unpaid balance due at maturity. Interest rates on the term loan are based, at the Company’s option, on
LIBOR plus 2.75% or the agent bank’s prime rate. The weighted average interest rates on the term loan
were 6.61% at June 30, 2001 and 9.50% at June 30, 2000. The Bank Credit Facility contains certain
affirmative and negative covenants customary for this type of agreement, prohibits cash dividends, and
includes a financial covenant with respect to the coverage of certain fixed charges. The principal
security for the revolving credit loan is substantially all of the personal property of the Company and
each of its North American and United Kingdom subsidiaries. The term loan is secured by substantially
all the Company’s machinery and equipment and is cross collateralized and secured with the revolving
credit loan.

The Company sold $100,000 of Senior Notes due March 2008, resulting in net proceeds of
approximately $96,150. The Notes are redeemable at the Company’s option, in whole or in part, on or
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F. Financing Arrangements (continued)

after March 15, 2003 at certain preset redemption prices. Interest on the Notes is payable semiannually
on March 15 and September 15 of each year. During August 2000, the Company completed an exchange
offer to existing noteholders, which resulted in reducing the interest rate on the Notes to 8.0% from
8.5%. There are no sinking fund requirements. Approximately $76,300 of the net proceeds from the
Notes were used to repay amounts outstanding under an existing credit facility, thereby lengthening the
term of the Company’s debt, most of which had been incurred to finance the acquisitions of Ruud
Lighting, Inc. and DSI. The Notes Indenture contains covenants that, among other things, limit the
ability of the Company and its Restricted Subsidiaries (as defined therein) to incur indebtedness, pay
dividends, prepay subordinated indebtedness, repurchase capital stock, make investments, create liens,
engage in transactions with stockholders and affiliates, sell assets and, with respect to the Company,
engage in mergers and consolidations.

Mortgage notes payable consisted of six separate notes at various rates of interest, ranging from 6.88% to
9.5%, and at June 30, 2001 were collateralized by land and buildings with a net carrying value of
$25,063.

In connection with the Company’s investment in Venture Lighting India Limited., the Company assumed
a term loan with a balance at June 30, 2001 of $3,023 that bears interest at LIBOR plus 3% and matures
January 10, 2004. The loan is secured by the subsidiary’s facility, machinery and equipment, and
inventory.

As part of the purchase price for Rohm and Haas Company’s 50% interest in Unison Fiber Optic Systems
LLC (“Unison”), the Company entered into a $2,300 promissory note to Rohm and Haas that bears
interest at 6.65% compounded quarterly. The note matures January 31, 2002. In partial consideration for
the Company’s initial purchase of a 50% interest in Unison, the Company executed an 8% promissory
note in the amount of $3,000 that was paid in January 2600.

The Company leases certain equipment under agreements that are classified as capital leases. The lease
agreements have varying terms and the leased assets, with a net carrying value of $1,104 at June 30,
2001, are included in the consolidated balance sheet as machinery and equipment and furniture and
fixtures.

Aggregate maturities of long-term debt (including capital lease obligations) for the five fiscal years
subsequent to June 30, 2001, were as follows: 2002 -- $8,309; 2003 -- $5,894; 2004 -- $12,681;
2005 -- $30,912; and 2006 -- $4,543.

The fair value of the Company’s Senior Notes at June 30, 2001 and 2000 approximated $69,000 and

$70,000, respectively. The estimated fair value of the Company’s remaining debt at June 30, 2001 and
2000 approximated carrying value, as the effective rates for this debt were comparable to market rates.
Debt issuance costs, classified with other assets, are being amortized over the terms of the related debt.
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F. Financing Arrangements (continued)

During fiscal 1999, the Company entered into an interest rate swap agreement for a notional amount of
$10,000 with a fixed pay rate of 6.63% and a receive rate of LIBOR. The swap agreement is a contract
to exchange floating rate for fixed interest payments quarterly over the life of the agreement without the
exchange of the underlying notional amounts. The notional amount of the interest rate agreement is used
to measure interest to be paid or received and does not represent the amount of exposure to credit loss.
The net cash amounts paid or received on the agreement are recognized as an adjustment to interest
expense. During fiscal 2000, the Company early-terminated the interest rate swap agreement which
resulted in a realized gain of $120.

The Company uses standby letters of credit to satisfy certain security deposits with service providers, to
make borrowings, and as security for a loan to a foreign investee. These letters are irrevocable and
expire within 12 months of issuance. Standby letters of credit outstanding as of June 30, 2001 were
$1,535. Historically, the Company has not experienced any significant claims against these financial
instruments. Management does not expect any material losses to result from these off-balance-sheet
instruments because performance is not expected to be required, and therefore, is of the opinion that the
fair value of these instruments is zero.

G. Shareholders’ Equity
Issuance of Common Stock

On August 31, 2000, the Company completed a public offering of 1,700,000 shares of its common stock
at a price of $15.00 per share under a $300,000 shelf registration filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission that became effective in July 2000.

The public offering reduced the amount available for the issuance of various debt and equity securities
under the shelf registration statement to approximately $274,500. The Company used the net proceeds
from the public offering of approximately $22,900 to repay revolving credit loan borrowings. The
Company expects to borrow a similar amount (including amounts already borrowed since the offering)
under its revolving credit loan facility to fund capital improvements, including optical coating production
equipment, filter testing and measurement equipment and production facilities, and on research and
development in its telecommunications business unit at DSL.

In addition to the $300,000 shelf registration discussed above, in July 2000 a $100,000 shelf registration
became effective under which the Company may from time-to-time issue various debt and equity
securities to acquire assets, businesses or securities. The Company has no outstanding securities issued
under this registration statement.
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G. Shareholders’ Equity (continued)
General Electric Company Investment

In October 1999, General Electric Company (“GE”) completed an investment in the Company of
$20,554. In exchange for the investment, GE received 761,250 shares of the Company’s newly created
Series A Preferred Stock convertible at any time into 3,045,000 shares of Company Common Stock
(subject to adjustment). GE also received a Warrant (the “Initial Warrant”) to purchase an additional
1,600,000 shares of Company Common Stock (subject to adjustment), which GE has fully exercised to
acquire 998,703 shares of Common Stock of the Company. GE now holds 1,429,590 shares of Company
Common Stock. The Series A Stock and the Common Stock held by GE represent approximately 17.0%
of the voting power and equity ownership of the Company at June 30, 2001. The proceeds of the
transaction were applied principally to the reduction of short-term liabilities and outstanding amounts
under the Company’s Bank Credit Facility.

The Series A Stock has a liquidation preference of $27 per share, plus an amount equal to 8% per annum
compounded annually from the date of issuance to the date of payment. The Company is required to
redeem any shares of Series A Stock which have not been converted or retired on September 30, 2010.
In addition, GE may, by notice, require the Company to redeem the outstanding Series A Stock, within
one year following either September 30, 2004, or the occurrence of certain corporate events.

If the Company fails to maintain certain financial ratios over certain measurement periods, GE will have
the right to acquire a combination of subscription rights to additional shares and proxies with respect to
shares voted by certain officers of the Company, giving GE the ability to obtain the majority of the voting
power of the Company. The first measurement period was the six months ended December 31, 1999.
Thereafter, the measurement periods are the six months ending on the last day of each successive fiscal
quarter until September 30, 2010 (excluding the six month periods ending on June 30, 2000, September
30, 2000 and June 30, 2001 as amended by agreements between GE and the Company).

The basis for GE’s additional rights will be the failure of the Company to maintain a 2.0 to 1.0 ratio of
EBITDA to Interest Expense, as defined, over the applicable measurement periods. The ratio for the six
months ended June 30, 2001, was 1.84 to 1.0 (1.65 to 1.0 for the quarter ended June 30, 2001 and 2.01 to
1.0 for the quarter ended March 31, 2001).

A measurement period for which the Company fails to maintain the required ratio is referred to as an
“Occurrence,” however, if the Company maintains a 2.0 to 1.0 ratio in the three fiscal quarters
immediately prior to a failure, a “Second Occurrence” or “Third Occurrence,” as the case may be, would
not be effective. The “First Occurrence” was effective in the six-month measurement period ended
December 31, 1999.
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G. Shareholders’ Equity (continued)

A Second Occurrence would: (i) give GE the ability to vote the number of shares currently voted by the
Chief Executive Officer (“CEQO”) of the Company, approximately 3.3 million shares, (ii) give GE the
option to purchase shares from the CEO and the President of the Company which, together with the
shares owned by GE, would represent 25% of the voting power of the Company, and (iii) require the
Company to grant GE an additional warrant to purchase shares, at the then current market price,
approximating 3.5 million shares at June 30, 2001. The ability to vote the shares, purchase shares or
obtain the warrant would be dependent upon compliance with antitrust laws. GE is not required to
purchase additional shares of the Company. If GE owns and/or obtains the immediate right to acquire
and/or vote in excess of 35% of the voting power of the Company, the terms of the Indenture relating to
the Company’s Senior Notes would require that the Company offer to repurchase the $100,000 principal
amount of outstanding Senior Notes due 2008 at a price of 101% of the principal amount thereof, plus
accrued interest, and the Company’s banks will have the ability to demand payment of the Bank Credit
Facility. Upon a Third Occurrence, GE would have the right to vote shares currently voted by the
President and be granted a warrant to purchase (at the then current market price) additional shares of
Common Stock sufficient in number to give GE 50% plus one vote of the voting power of the Company.

As described above, the terms of the Series A Preferred Stock permit the holder to require the Company
to redeem the Series A Preferred Stock, in whole or in part, if the Company authorizes or issues common
stock or warrants or options to purchase common stock, with certain exceptions. The holder has 90 days
to exercise its right. Pursuant to the terms of the Series A Preferred Stock, if the holder exercises the
right to require redemption, the Company is not required to redeem the Series A Preferred Stock for a
period of one year, or thereafter, so long as the redemption would cause an event of default under the
Company’s indebtedness, including its Bank Credit Facility and its Indenture relating to its 8% Senior
Notes due 2008. The Bank Credit Facility and Indenture restrictions on redemption of stock are similar
to the restrictions on payment of dividends.

ADLT Stock Option Plans

The Company’s 1995 Incentive Award Plan and 1998 Incentive Award Plan provide for the granting of
“A” and “B” incentive stock options to purchase common stock of the Company. The “A” options
become exercisable based on stock price or over one-to-five years from the date of grant depending on
the Company’s operating performance. The “B” options become exercisable at the rate of 25% after one
year, 35% after two years, and 40% after three years. The Company’s 1997 Billion Dollar Market
Capitalization Incentive Award Plan provides for the granting of incentive stock options to purchase
common stock of the Company. The options become exercisable when the Company’s market
capitalization, excluding the impact of stock issued in completing acquisitions, reaches one billion
dollars or after six years, whichever comes first. All options have been granted at market value on the
date of grant and expire ten years from the date of grant. At June 30, 2001, the Company had 3,800,471
shares reserved for future issuance upon exercise of stock options granted under the option plans.
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G. Shareholders’ Equity (continued)

Information related to stock options for the years ended June 30 are as follows:

2001 2000 1999
Weighted- Weighted- Weiglhted-
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Options Price Options Price Options Price
Cutstanding, beginning of year 3,445,137 § 1458 2,751,866 § 1636 2,601,347 § 1824
Granted 562,997 5.59 1,038,000 9.71 682,600 10.18
Exercised (12,704) 9.72 (70,365) 10.56 (18,590) 15.13
Forfeited (456,661) 15.30 (274,364) 15.09 (513,491) 17.68
Cutstanding, end of year 3,538,769 13.01 3,445,137 1458 2,751,866 16.36
Weighted -average fair value
of options granted during
the year $ 347 - $ 5.14 - $ 4.69 -

The following table summarizes additional information concerning outstanding and exercisable
options at June 30, 2001:

Options Qutstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted-
Average Weighted- Weighted-
Range of Remaining Average Average
Exercise Contractual  Exercise Exercise
Prices Options Life Price Options Price
$ 4.40to 9.99 1,499,262 9.4 years $ 6.44 114,632 $ 7.00
10.00 to 15.99 526,537 9.0 years 12.75 192,416 11.76
16.00 to 22.99 1,273,197 7.4 years 18.97 868,967 19.15
23.00 to 26.00 239,773 7.8 years 23.97 215,633 23.98
3,538,769 1,391,648

DSI Stock Option Plan

Deposition Sciences, Inc. (“DSI”), a non-public subsidiary of ADLT, adopted the 2001 Equity Incentive
Plan. DSI currently has 100,000,000 shares authorized and 50,000,000 shares outstanding, all of which
are owned by ADLT. The 2001 Equity Incentive Plan initially provides for the granting of stock options
to purchase up to 10,000,000 shares of common stock of DSI. The number of shares available will be
increased by 18% of DSI shares issued, up to a maximum of 16,200,000 shares. The vesting terms of the
options vary, including vesting based on a change in control or public offering of DSI or on a vesting
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G. Shareholders’ Equity (continued)

schedule no more than five years from the date of grant. The options have been granted at fair value on
the date of grant of $.46 per share and expire ten years from the date of grant. A total of 7,885,000
options were granted under the Plan and 13,000 of these options were exercised in fiscal 2001. Options
for 2,344,000 shares are exercisable at June 30, 2001. The fair values of the stock options issued by DSI
and included in the calculation of the pro forma net income and pro forma earnings per share below were
estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following weighted-average
assumptions used for grants: expected volatility of 80%; risk-free interest rate of 4.60%; and expected
life of 4 years with no dividend yield.

Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation

If the Company had elected to report compensation expense for the ADLT Incentive Award Plans and the
DSI Equity Incentive Plan based on the fair value at the grant dates for all awards consistent with the
methodology prescribed by Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation”, net income and earnings per share would be as follows:

Year Ended June 30,
2001 2000 1999
Net income (loss) as reported $ 271 $ 1,928 $ (83,753)
Pro forma (1,417) (321) (85,763)
Earnings (loss) per share as reported $ (34) $% .01 $ 414
Pro forma (.41) (.10) (4.24)

The fair values of the ADLT stock options issued by the Company and included in the calculation of the
pro forma net income and pro forma earnings per share were estimated using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model with the following weighted-average assumptions used for grants in fiscal 2001, 2000 and
1999, respectively: expected volatility of 71%, 61%, and 54%; risk-free interest rates of 5.17%, 6.54%,
and 5.61%; and expected lives of 4 years, 4 years, and 4 years with no dividend yield.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Company’s 1997 Employee Stock Purchase Plan authorized and made available for sale to
employees, at a discount of 15%, a total of 100,000 shares of the Company’s Common Stock. All of the
shares authorized under the 1997 Plan have been issued. The Company’s 2001 Employee Stock Purchase
Plan authorized and made available for sale to employees, at a discount of 15%, a total of 250,000 shares
of the Company’s Common Stock. The Plan provides substantially all employees who have completed
six months of service an opportunity to purchase shares through payroll deductions, up to 10% of eligible
compensation.
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G. Shareholders’ Equity (comtinued)

The purchase price of each share is 85% of the month-end closing market price of the Company’s Common
Stock. Employees purchased 28,167 shares in fiscal 2001, 28,967 shares in fiscal 2000 and 41,233 shares
of stock in fiscal 1999. At June 30, 2001, there were 242,056 shares available for future purchases.

Shares Issued Pursuant to Defined Contribution Plan

Beginning in February 1999, pursuant to the terms of the Company’s 401(k) Retirement and Savings Plan,
the Company partially matches, with its Common Stock, the contributions made by employees to their plan
accounts. The Company has authorized and made available for contribution a total of 200,000 shares of
Common Stock, and contributed 67,474 shares in fiscal 2001, 64,318 shares in fiscal 2000 and 28,107
shares in fiscal 1999. At June 30, 2001, there were 40,101 shares available for future contributions.

H. Employee Benefits

The Company has defined contribution elective savings and retirement plans that cover substantially all
full-time employees in its domestic and foreign subsidiaries. The Company matches the contributions of
participating employees on the basis of the percentages specified in the respective plans, ranging from 1%
to 4% of eligible employee earnings. Contributions charged to income for the defined contribution plans,
including expense associated with the Common Stock issuances related to the 401 (k) Retirement and
Savings Plan described in Note G, were $1,526 in fiscal 2001, $1,215 in fiscal 2000 and $1,218 in fiscal
1999.

I. Income Taxes

Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes, minority interest, extraordinary charges and
accounting change were attributable to the following sources:

Year Ended Jume 30,

2001 2000 1999
United States $ (1,7200 $ 2,372 $ (73,795)
Foreign 2,607 216 (5,663)
Totals § 887 $§ 2,588 $ (79,458)

The provision for income taxes is computed using the liability method and is based on applicable federal
and state statutory rates adjusted for permanent differences between financial and taxable income.
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1. Imcome Taxes (comtinued)

Income taxes have been provided as follows:
Year Ended June 30,

2001 2000 1999
Current
Federal $ (162) $ 19 $ 669
State and local (131) (172) 219
Foreign 269 305 (253)
24 152 635
Deferred
Federal - - (352)
State and local - - (94)
Foreign 540 483 2,092
540 483 1,646

§ 516 § 635 $ 2,281

Deferred income taxes reflect the tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes.

Significant components of the Company’s net deferred tax assets and liabilities at June 30, 2001 and

2000 are as follows:
Year Ended Jumne 30,
2001 2000
Deferred tax assets:
Net operating loss carryforwards $ 30,226 § 24,295
Research and development tax credits 3,818 3,196
Tax under financial reporting special charges
and equity write-down » 2,938 7,402
Other 3,778 1,040
40,760 35,933
Deferred tax liabilities:
Tax over financial reporting depreciation and amortization 8,191 6,090
8,191 6,090
Net deferred tax assets before valuation allowance 32,569 29,843
Valuation allowance (32,569) (29,843)
Net deferred tax assets $ - $ -

Due to the uncertainty of the ultimate realization of a portion of the deferred tax asset, valuation
allowances of $32,569 and $29,843 were recorded by the Company for the years ended June 30, 2001
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I. Income Taxes (continued)

and 2000, respectively. The net change in the valuation allowance for fiscal 2001 and fiscal 2000 was
$2,726 and $(479), respectively.

The statutory federal income tax rate and the effective income tax rate are reconciled as follows:
Year Ended June 30,

2001 2000 1999
Statutory tax rate 35.0% 35.0% (35.0)%
State and local income taxes, net of federal benefit (9.6) (4.4) 0.2
Research and development tax credit (70.1) (7.3) (0.9)
Effect of foreign taxes (11.7) 6.9 2.7
Nondeductible permanent items 447 8.1 -
Valuation allowance (reversal) 92.0 (18.5) 38.2
Prior year overaccrual (18.2) - -
Other (3.9 4.8 (2.3)

Effective tax rate 58.2% 24.6% 2.9%

Income taxes paid (net of refunds) were $302 in fiscal 2001, $(23) in fiscal 2000 and $(1,660) in fiscal
1999.

At June 30, 2001, the Company had net operating loss carryforwards (“NOLs”) of $88,901 available to
reduce future United States federal taxable income, which expire 2008 through 2021.

The Company also had research and development credit carryforwards for tax purposes of approximately
$3,818, which expire 2008 through 2015. Additionally, in conjunction with the Alternative Minimum
Tax (“AMT”) rules, the Company had available AMT credit carryforwards for tax purposes of
approximately $259, which may be used indefinitely to reduce regular federal income taxes.

Also, at June 30, 2001, the Company had foreign net operating loss carryforwards for tax purposes
totaling $1,698 that expire in 2002 to 2007 and $8,053 that have no expiration dates.

J. Special Charges and Terminated Equipment Contracts

During the year ended June 30, 1999, the Company recorded special charges related to significant changes
in its operations, which accelerated and intensified the Company’s focus on its metal halide products.

The special charges principally relate to the execution of the Company’s shift in strategic direction and
include: limiting Pacific Rim expansion; changing global lamp manufacturing strategy; restructuring
marketing operations in North America and Europe; accelerating an exit from noncore product lines;
reducing excess overhead including staffing reductions; consolidating an equipment manufacturing
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J. Special Charges and Terminated Equipment Contracts (continued)

operation into the Company’s Solon, Chio facility and significantly reducing the size of the operation; and,
reducing capital expenditures.

The special charges were determined in accordance with formal plans developed by the Company’s
management and approved by the Company’s Board of Directors using the best information available to
it at the time. All actions required by the plans were substantially completed by the end of fiscal 2000.
Employees were terminated enterprise-wide from almost all areas and units of the Company. Assets
related to the above actions are no longer in use and have been sold or were written-down to their
estimated fair values.

Details of the actions and related special charges recorded during fiscal 1999 and 2000 are summarized
as follows:

Year Ended June 30, 1999 Balance Reclassifications Balance
Charged te  Charges June 30, and (Credits) Charges Jumne 38,
Description Cash/Noncash Operations Utilized 1999  to Operations Utilized 2000
Lease/contract cancelations Cash/Noncash $ 4,324 3 635 $ 3,689 $ (641) $3,018 $ 30
Staffing reductions Cash/Noncash 3,549 2,868 681 (131) 533 17
Program cancelation Cash 128 0 128 2N 107 -
Terminate management
benefit program Cash/Noncash 1,516 1,430 86 - 86 -

Shut-down costs of facilities Cash 1,615 1,537 78 10 88 -
Asset write-downs Cash/Noncash 17,051 17,002 49 308 357 -
Exit non-core inventories Noncash 261 261 - - - -
Other Cash 373 230 143 - 94 49

$ 28,817 $ 23,963 $ 4,854 $ (475) $4,283 $ 96

The special charges for fiscal 1999 included costs related to the actions described above and also include
$6,246 related to the wind-down of portable fixture manufacturing operations, which are described in
Note K “Discontinued Operations Subsequently Retained.” Total special charges for fiscal 1999 of
$35,063 are classified in the consolidated statement of operations as cost of goods sold ($3,956) and
special charges ($31,107). The Company incurred additional costs of $596 and $764, as described in
Note M, related to the above actions.

At June 30, 2000, all actions required by the plans were substantially completed and the $96 balance, as
of June 30, 2000, was utilized during fiscal 2001. During fiscal 2000, the Company revised certain
estimates related to its plans and reversed $475 of previously recorded special charges that were no
longer deemed necessary. The reversal results primarily from the settlement of a lease cancellation for
less than the estimated amount and revised estimates for severance and related costs.
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J. Special Charges and Terminated Equipment Contracts (continued)

In conjunction with limiting its Pacific Rim expansion, the Company terminated production equipment
contracts related to the completion of four lamp manufacturing equipment groups. Accordingly, in the
quarter ended December 31, 1998, the Company reversed previously recognized sales of $14,961 and
cost of sales of $6,413 related to these contracts, which were accounted for under the percentage-of-
completion method.

These special charges reduced net income by $43,611, or $2.16 diluted earnings per share for fiscal 1999.
K. Discontinued Operations Subsequently Retained

Microsun Technologies, Inc. (“Microsun”) was identified in March 1998 for disposition through a plan to
distribute to ADLT shareholders all of the ownership of Microsun in a tax-free spin-off transaction
estimated to be completed by December 1998. Because of the deterioration of the capital markets and the
inability to raise capital necessary to spin-off the Microsun business, the Company concluded that it
would wind-down the operations, close the manufacturing facilities and liquidate the assets of Microsun.
At June 30, 1999, the plan of wind-down had been accomplished, the manufacturing facilities closed and
substantially all assets had been disposed. Accordingly, there were no remaining discontinued operations
accrued losses associated with Microsun at June 30, 1999.

In October 1999, management decided, with the approval of the Board of Directors, to retain the
Microsun business -- the portable lighting fixture products business that uses metal halide lighting
technology -- as part of the Company’s continuing operation. The decision to retain the business was
based on management’s belief that, among other reasons, the market demand for Microsun products
remains substantial; the market potential will be expanded as the Microsun portable lighting fixtures will
be marketed and sold along with other existing lines of products for residential use in an e-commerce
format (“Microsun.com’™); and the Microsun business will use the fulfillment capabilities and
infrastructure of existing ADLT businesses.

In retaining the Microsun business, the Company concentrates on assembling fixtures produced by
subcontractors, thereby eliminating the need for the machinery, equipment and facilities that were used in
the previous operation. The assembly process is performed at existing ADLT businesses utilizing
existing facilities and operations. The Company utilizes the customer service systems and personnel of
an existing ADLT business, as well as the Internet, to receive, process and fill orders. Therefore, the
Microsun business has been retained but without the use of the manufacturing processes or assets used in
the previous operations.

In accordance with the accounting requirements for recontinuance, the accompanying financial
statements have been reclassified to present Microsun within continuing operations. At June 30, 1999,
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K. Discontinued Operations Subsequently Retained (comtinued)

substantially all assets had been disposed and no remaining accrued losses associated with discontinued
operations remained. The revenues and the net amount charged to the income statement for the year
ended June 30, 1999, the last year during which the business was reported as discontinued operations
consisted of the following:

Net sales ' $ 4,719
Reclassification of discontinued

operations to continuing operations $ 10,374
Discontinued operations provision (9,043)
Recontinuance of previously discontinued operations $ 1,331

The $10,374 reclassified to continuing operations for the year ended June 30, 1999 consisted of a loss
from operations of $4,128; write-downs of assets to net realizable value of $5,533 in connection with the
decision in November 1998 to wind-down the Microsun business related to inventory ($2,448), fixed
assets ($1,690), and other assets ($1,395); and costs related to severance, lease/contract cancellations and
facility shut-down costs of $713. These costs and write-downs are classified in special charges ($3,798)
and cost of sales ($2,448).
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L. Earnings Per Share

——

Earnings (loss) per share is computed as follows:

Year Ended June 30,
2001 2000 1999

Income available to common shareholders:
Income (loss) from continuing operations before minority
interest, extraordinary charge and accounting change $ 371 $ 1,953 $ (81,739)
Less: Minority interest in income of consolidated subsidiary (100) (25) -
Preferred shares accretion (2,555) (1,796) -
Additional preferred shares accretion from
cumulative effect of accounting change for
beneficial conversion option (5,329) - -
Income (loss) from continuing operations before minority

interest, extraordinary charge and accounting change

attributable to common shareholders $ (7,613) $ 132 $ (81,739)
Net income (loss) $ 271 $ 1,928 $ (83,753)
Less: Preferred shares accretion - total (7,884) (1,796) -
Net income (loss) attributable to common shareholders $ (7,613) § 132 $ (83,753)

Weighted average shares -- Basic:

_ Outstanding at beginning of period 20,482 20,278 20,189
- Issued pursuant to public offering 1,388 - -
- Issued in acquisitions - 30 2
Issued for exercise of warrant 530 - -

Issued for exercise of stock options 11 18 17
Issued pursuant to employee stock purchase plan 10 16 19
Issued pursuant to 401(k) plan 25 30 5
Basic weighted average shares 22,446 20,372 20,232

Weighted average shares -- Diluted:

Basic from above 22,446 20,372 20,232
Effect of stock options and warrant - 959 -
Diluted weighted average shares 22,446 21,331 20,232

Earnings (loss) per share -- Basic and Diluted:

Income (loss) from continuing operations $ (.10) 3 .01 § (4.04)
Recontinuance of previously discontinued operations - - .07
Extraordinary charge - - (.035)
Cumulative effect of accounting change (.24) - (.12)
Earnings (loss) per share -- Basic and Diluted $ (34) § 0l 3 (4.14)
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M. Related Party Transactions

Pursuant to an agreement dated October 8, 1998, as amended, between the Company and its Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer (the “CEQ”), the Company, following approval by the Company’s Board of
Directors, has loaned a total of $13,140 to its CEQC as of June 30, 2001, at an interest rate of 8%.
Subsequent to June 30, 2001, the Company loaned an additional $970 to its CEO. The proceeds of the
loan have been used by the Company’s CEO to reduce the principal balance outstanding of margin loan
accounts, which are secured by 1,715,042 shares of the Company’s Common Stock owned by the CEO
and a related entity. In connection with the loan, the Company’s Board of Directors obtained the CEQO’s
agreement to an extension of his employment agreement to December 31, 2003. The loan agreement
prohibits the CEO from encumbering his shares of the Company’s Common Stock in any manner except
pursuant to the existing agreements governing the CEQ’s margin accounts, without the consent of the
Company’s Board of Directors.

The CEO has paid accrued interest of $720 on the loan through Cctober 6, 1999. The term of the loan
has been extended by the Board to October 6, 2001. The Board reserved the right to require earlier
repayment if ADLT requires the payment to prevent an unacceptable strain on cash resources.

The Company’s ability to collect amounts due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement is
largely dependent on the ultimate realization from the sale of assets owned by the CEQ, including the
CEQ’s investment in common stock of the Company. When determining the fair value of investments in
common stock, the Company considers both the current market price and also volatility in the stock price
over the period in which the Company estimates it would take to sell those shares into the market.

In connection with the fiscal 1999 actions described in Note J, the Company recognized $596 in cost of
sales for the write-down of specialty inventory and $764 in research and development expenses related to
transactions with affiliates. During fiscal 1999, the Company also recognized a $700 provision for
uncollectible advances and receivables related to transactions with affiliates.

The Company had sales to GE (primarily lamps and lamp components) totaling $7,575 in fiscal 2001,
$7,869 in fiscal 2000 and $4,621 in fiscal 1999. The Company purchased lamps and raw materials from
GE totaling $9,396 in fiscal 2001, $13,928 in fiscal 2000 and $13,498 in fiscal 1999. Included in the
balance sheet caption of trade receivables are receivables from GE in the amount of $1,942 at June 30,
2001 and $1,621 at June 30, 2000. Included in the balance sheet caption of trade payables are payables
to GE of $3,318 at June 30, 2001 and $3,112 at June 30, 2000,

During January 1996, the Company entered into a six-year Aircraft Operating Agreement ("Agreement")
with an unrelated company to charter certain airplanes for service into locations which are not adequately
served by commercial carriers. The unrelated company leased the airplanes from an affiliate of the
Company owned by certain officers of the Company. These officers guaranteed the repayment of
$11,200 of indebtedness incurred by the affiliate to purchase the airplanes. The Company’s minimum
annual commitments under the Agreement were $911. However, the only remaining aircraft under the
Agreement was sold and the leasing activities under the Agreement ceased in December 1998. During
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M. Related Party Transactions (continued)

May 1998, the Company began to charter airplanes from another unrelated company. This unrelated
company also leased the airplanes from an affiliate of the Company owned by certain officers of the
Company. These officers guaranteed the repayment of $6,400 of indebtedness incurred by the affiliate to
purchase an airplane. Both airplanes have been sold and no further costs related thereto are being
incurred. Fees paid by the Company under these arrangements were $56 in fiscal 2001, $474 in fiscal
2000 and $1,616 in fiscal 1999,

The Company paid a director of the Company $108 in fiscal 2001, $104 in fiscal 2000 and $100 in fiscal
1999 for consulting services. The Company also paid another director of the Company $93 in fiscal 2001
and $99 in fiscal 2000 for consulting services.

" The Company sold lamps, lamp components, and lamp production equipment to an overseas company

aggregating $1,373 in fiscal 2001, $1,194 in fiscal 2000 and $625 in fiscal 1999. The Company
purchased lamps from this overseas company aggregating $1,377 in fiscal 2001, $1,108 in fiscal 2000
and $366 in fiscal 1999. An executive officer and director of the overseas company was a Director of the
Company from January 1996 until January 2001.

During fiscal 1996, one of the Company’s subsidiaries sold the assets of its nonlamp product line to an
affiliate of the Company owned principally by certain officers of the Company for an amount equal to the
carrying amount of such assets as of June 30, 1995. As of June 30, 2001 and 2000, the Company had an
8.5% note from the affiliate for $220 related to the sale of the assets of the nonlamp product line which is
recorded as a long-term receivable from related parties in the consolidated balance sheet. Total principal
and accrued interest at June 30, 2001 was $317.

N. Commitments

The Company leases buildings and certain equipment under noncancelable operating lease agreements.
The Company paid $1,150 in April 2001 for a non-refundable option to purchase, at fair value, a building
currently leased by DSI. The cost of the option, if exercised, will be applied to the purchase price of the
building. The option expires in April 2004. Total rent expense was $2,212 in 2001, $1,778 in 2000, and
$1,878 in 1999. Future minimum lease commitments, as of June 30, 2001, were as follows:

Year:

Fiscal 2002 $ 2,867
Fiscal 2003 2,395
Fiscal 2004 1,794
Fiscal 2005 1,707
Fiscal 2006 1,584
Thereafter 6,350
Minimum lease payments $16,697
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0. Quarterly Results of Operations (Unaudited)

The following is a summary of the quarterly results of operations for the years ended June 30, 2001 and
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2000:
Fiscal 2001, Three Months Ended
Jun 3¢ Mar 31 Dee 31 Sep 30

Net sales $ 54,751  § 53,890 $ 57,036 $ 53,771
Gross profit 21,255 22,399 23,406 21,907
Income from operations 3,143 3,220 4,578 3,004
Net income (loss) $ (393) § (75) § 1,260 $  (521)
Earnings (loss) per share -- Basic $ (04 $ (03) $ (21) $ (.05
Earnings (loss) per share -- Diluted § (04 §$§ (03) $ (200 § (.05
Price Range of Common Stock:

High $ 673 § 9.88 $ 1281 $§ 19.94

Low 3.90 4.00 4.00 11.31

Fiscal 2000, Three Months Ended
Jun 30 Mar 31 Dec 31 Sep 30

Net sales $ 54,912 $ 55,717 $ 60,886 $ 57,081
Gross profit 23,521 23,519 24,124 22,318
Income from operations 4,278 4,502 4,175 2,956
Net income (loss) $ 685 $ 1,045 3 980 $  (782)
Earnings (loss) per share -- Basic $ 00 3 02 3 02 3 (.04)
Earnings (loss) per share -- Diluted $ 00 8§ 02 § 02 S (.04)
Price Range of Common Stock:

High $ 22.00 $§ 2375 $ 8.50 $ 9.00

Low 9.13 5.56 4.75 6.88
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P. Segment and Geographic Information

The Company has one reportable business segment: the design, manufacture and sales of metal halide
lighting products including materials, system components, systems and production equipment. The

Company’s telecommunications business unit
been aggregated in the following information.

Net sales by country, based on the location of

does not meet reportable operating segment criteria and has

the business unit, for fiscal 2001, 2000, and 1999 follows:

Year Ended Jume 30,
2001 2000 1999
United States $ 165,698 $ 170,887 $ 144,665
Canada 18,802 22,624 20,524
United Kingdom 20,831 21,450 19,998
Australia 11,864 11,837 10,092
Other 2,253 1,798 1,149
$219,448 $228,596 $ 196,428

Long-lived assets by country, based on the location of the asset, as of June 30, 2001 and 2000 follows:

United States
Canada

United Kingdom
Australia

India

Other

June 30,
2001 2000

$ 101,492 $ 89,344

2,509 2,604
5,044 5,767
1,548 1,764
11,566 9,298
334 386

$ 122,493 $ 109,163

In fiscal 2001, 2000, and 1999, no single customer accounted for 10% or more of the Company’s net sales.
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Q. Contingency

In April and May 1999, three class action suits were filed in the United States District Court, Northern
District of Ohio, by certain alleged shareholders of the Company on behalf of themselves and purported
classes consisting of Company shareholders, other than the defendants and their affiliates, who purchased
stock during the period from December 30, 1997 through September 30, 1998 or various portions thereof.
A First Amended Class Action Complaint, consolidating the three lawsuits, was filed on September 30,
1999, and the action is now pending before a single judge. The named defendants in the case — styled /n
re Advanced Lighting Technologies, Inc. Securities Litigation, Master File No. 1:99CV&36, pending
before the United States District Court, Northern District of Ohio — are the Company and its Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer (CEQ).

The First Amended Class Action Complaint alleges generally that certain disclosures attributed to the
Company contained misstatements and omissions alleged to be violations of Section 10(b) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and Rule 10b-5, including claims for “fraud on the market” arising from
alleged misrepresentations and omissions with respect to the Company’s financial performance and
prospects and alleged violations of generally accepted accounting principles by, among other things,
improperly recognizing revenue and improper inventory accounting. The Complaint seeks certification
of the purported class, unspecified compensatory and punitive damages, pre- and post-judgment interest
and attorneys’ fees and costs. ‘

The Company and the CEO believe that these claims lack merit. The Company and its CEQO filed a
Motion to Dismiss the Complaint, which was denied. The case will now proceed. The Company and the
CEQ intend to continue to vigorously defend against these actions.

The Company, from time to time, is subject to routine litigation incidental to its business. Although there
can be no assurance as to the ultimate disposition of routine litigation, management of the Company
believes, based upon information available at this time, that the ultimate outcome of these matters will
not have a material adverse effect on the operations and financial condition of the Company.

R. Subsequent Event

On September 20, 2001, the Company signed a letter of intent to sell a significant portion of its lamp
fixture business (Ruud Lighting, Kramer Lighting and Ruud Lighting Europe subsidiaries) to a group of
investors led by Alan J. Ruud, the Company’s President and Chief Operating Officer. The letter of intent
is subject to certain conditions including approval of the transaction by the Company’s Board of
Directors, approval by the Company’s lending institutions, and completion of financing arrangements by
the purchasers. The selling price for this business is expected to approximate $38,300, subject to
adjustment for changes in the business through the closing date. As part of this transaction, a $9,000
mortgage note will continue to be the obligation of Ruud Lighting. The Company anticipates a
substantial noncash charge from the transaction based on the current terms of the letter of intent. The
subsidiaries to be sold had sales of approximately $82,000 for fiscal 2001 and total assets of
approximately $123,000 at June 30, 2001.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

PART III

Item 10. Directors and Officers of the Registrant (Amended October 29, 2001 by the attached
Form 10-K/A)

The information required by Item 10 is incorporated herein by reference to the Registrant's definitive Proxy
Statement relating to its 2001 Annual Shareholders Meeting ("Proxy Statement"), under the captions
"Nominees," "Continuing Directors and Executive Officers," and "Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership
Reporting Compliance." This Proxy Statement will be filed with the SEC prior to October 29, 2001.

Item 11. Executive Compensaticn (Amended October 29, 2001 by the attached Form 10-K/A)

The information contained under the caption "Compensation of Executive Officers” in the Proxy Statement
is incorporated by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management (Amended October 29,
2001 by the attached Form 10-K/A)

The information contained under the caption "Certain‘Holders of Voting Securities” in the Proxy Statement
is incorporated by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions (Amended October 29, 2001 by the attached
Form 10-K/A)

The information contained under the caption "Certain Transactions With Directors And Officers" in the
Proxy Statement is incorporated by reference.
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PART IV
Item 14. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K

(a}(1) and (2). The following consolidated financial statements of Advanced Lighting Technologies, Inc.
are included in Item 8:

Report of Grant Thornton LLP, Independent Auditors
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2001 and 2000
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Years Ended
June 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity for the
Years Ended June 30, 2001, 2000, and 1999
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the
Years Ended June 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial Statement Schedules:

(2) The following Financial Statement Schedules are included in Item 14{(d}:

None. All schedules for which provision is made in the applicable accounting regulation of the
Securities and Exchange Commission are not required under the related instructions or are inapplicable

and therefore have been omitted.

(3) List of Exhibits (Exhibits available upon request)

Previous
Filing If
Exhibit Incorporated
Number Description by Reference
3.1 Second Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation filed
September 26, 1995 ... s (2)
32 Certificate of Adoption of Third Amendment to Second Amended
and Restated Articles of Incorporation filed October 6, 1999 (Form
10-Q/A EXRIbIt 3.2) oo %)
33 Certificate of Adoption of Fourth Amendment to Second Amended
and Restated Articles of Incorporation filed March 16, 2000 (Form
1O0-K EXhibit 3.3) ..oeoiiiiiieiiine ettt (12)
34 Code Of REGUIALIONS ......ovvveveceeeeceees s eeeeee s ereras (1)
4.1 Reference is made to Exhibits 3.1, 3.2, 3.3 and 3.4
4.2 Form of Stock Certificate for Common Stock of Advanced Lighting
Technologies, Inc (Form 10-K Exhibit 4.2). ..o, (12)
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Previous

! Filing If
' Exhibit Incorporated
Number Description by Reference
43 Indenture between Advanced Lighting Technologies, Inc. and The
Bank of New York, as Trustee, dated as of March 18, 1998
(Form 10-Q/A Exhibit 4.3) ...coviviriiiicieieeneieree e ¢y
4.4 Registration Rights Agreement between Advanced Lighting
Technologies, Inc. and Morgan Stanley & Co., Incorporated dated
as of March 18, 1998 (Form S-4 Exhibit 4.2)......ccccccovivininnicinennninne 3)
4.5 Form of Security for 8% Senior Notes due 2008 originally issued by
Advanced Lighting Technologies, Inc. on March 18, 1998
(Form S-4 EXhibit 4.3)...ccirieiiieieieeeere st 3)
4.6 Form of Security for 8% Senior Notes due 2008 issued by
Advanced Lighting Technologies, Inc. and registered under the
Securities Act of 1933 (Form S-4 Exhibit 4.4)......cccccovvimvniinnnincnnn, (3)
4.7 First Supplemental Indenture dated September 25, 1998 between
Advanced Lighting Technologies, Inc. and The Bank of New York
amending the Indenture dated March 18, 1998 (Form 10-Q/A No. 2
EXNIDIE 4. 1) oouveiieiieiieiiiiseeeeeee ettt et et ene e eaeas (6)
48 Registration Rights Agreement dated as of September 30, 1999 by
and between Advanced Lighting Technologies, Inc. and General
Electric Company (Form 10-Q/A Exhibit 4.2) ..o )
9.1 Amended and Restated Voting Trust Agreement dated as of October
1, 1999 by and among Wayne R. Hellman, as voting trustee, and the
Shareholders listed on Exhibit A thereto (Form 10-K Exhibit 9.3)....... 12)
9.2 Amended and Restated Voting Trust Agreement dated as of October
1, 1996 among Alan J. Rudd, as voting trustee, and the Shareholders
listed on Exhibit A thereto (Schedule 13D Exhibit 1).................... (17)
10.1 Management Contracts, Compensatory Plans and Arrangements
10.1.1 Employment Agreement dated as of January 2, 1998 among
Ruud Lighting, Inc., Advanced Lighting Technologies, Inc.
and Alan J. Ruud (Form 10-K/A No.2 Exhibit 10.1) ............... (5)
10.1.2 Employment Agreement dated as of February 12, 1998
between Advanced Lighting Technologies, Inc. and
Nicholas R. Sucic (Form 10-Q/A Exhibit 10.5) ....cccoccevcrnenen. 4)
10.1.3 Loan Agreement dated as of October §, 1998 between
Advanced Lighting Technologies, Inc. and Wayne R.
Hellman (Form 10-Q/A Exhibit 10.1) ...coocevviiiieieceieee (7
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Exhibit
Number

10.2

Description

Secured Promissory Note of Wayne R. Hellman dated as of
October 8, 1998 in the amount of $9,000,000 to Advanced
Lighting Technologies, Inc. (Form 10-Q/A Exhibit 10.2) ........

10.1.4

10.1.5 First Amendment to Loan Agreement, Secured Promissory
Note and Security Agreement between Wayne R. Hellman
and Advanced Lighting Technologies, Inc. dated as of

November 22, 2000 (Form 10-Q Exhibit 10.1) ..coocvireeeeniss

10.1.6 Second Amendment to Loan Agreement, Secured Promissory
Note and Security Agreement between Wayne R. Hellman
and Advanced Lighting Technologies, Inc. dated as of March

15, 2001 (Form 10-Q Exhibit 10.1) ..ccocceiviiiiiiiiiiniiiii,

10.1.7 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between
Wayne R. Hellman and Advanced Lighting Technologies,
Inc. dated as of OQOctober 8, 1998 (Form 10-Q/A
Exhibit 10.4)....oiiiiiiieccenie e

10.1.8 Advanced Lighting Technologies, Inc. Amended and
Restated 1695 Incentive Award Plan (Form S-1

Exhibit 10.1 and 10.1/A) ..o

10.1.9 Advanced Lighting Technologies, Inc. 1997 Billion Dollar

Market Capitalization Incentive Award Plan
(Form 10-K/A No. 2 Exhibit 10.11) ..cocoeciiiniiiiiin,
10.1.10 Advanced Lighting Technologies, Inc. Amended and

Restated 1998 Incentive Award Plan (Form 10-K/A No. 2
Exhibit 10.12)..uuiiiiiiiiiiiiiirie e cerirreee e e e e eibvees e s

10.1.11 Deposition Sciences, Inc. 2001 Equity Incentive Plan
(Form 10-Q Exhibit 10.3)...c..ccciiiiiriiiiieii i

10.1.12 Mutual Release and Indemnification Agreement by and
between Advanced Lighting Technologies, Inc. and Louis S.
Fisi dated as of December 31, 1999 (Form 10-Q
Exhibit 10.9) ... i,

10.1.13 Consulting Agreement by and between Advanced Lighting
Technologies, Inc. and Louis S. Fisi dated as of
December 31, 1999 (Form10-Q Exhibit 10.10)......cccccernueeenns

Credit Agreement by and among Advanced Lighting Technologies,
Inc. and certain of its subsidiaries and PNC Bank, National
Association, as agent for certain other banks dated as of May 21,
1999 (Form 10-K/A No. 2 Exhibit 10.13) ....coovviiiiviiii,
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Exhibit
Number

16.3

104

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

Description

Market Clearance Side Letter dated May 21, 1999 by and among
PNC Bank, National Association, PNC Capital Markets, Inc.,
Advanced Lighting Technologies, Inc., Ballastronix, Incorporated,
Canadian Lighting Systems Holding Incorporated, Parry Power
Systems Limited and Venture Lighting Europe Ltd.
(Form 10-K/A No.2 Exhibit 10.18)........ccooiiiiiiiiiienns

Side Letter Agreement dated August 5, 1999 by and among
Advanced Lighting Technologies, Inc. and certain of its
subsidiaries, PNC Bank, National Association and BankBoston,
N.A. relating to the Credit Agreement by and among Advanced
Lighting Technologies, Inc. and certain of its subsidiaries and PNC
Bank, National Association, as agent for certain other banks dated
May 21, 1999 (Form 10-Q/A Exhibit 10.1)..cccccoriviiiniieecieeiienine

Assignment of Acceptance Agreement by and among Advanced
Lighting Technologies, Inc., PNC Bank, National Association and
BankBoston, N.A. dated as of August 5, 1999 (Form 10-Q/A
EXRIDIt 10.2) coeoriiiniiiec ettt

First Amendment Agreement by and among Advanced Lighting
Technologies, Inc. and certain of its subsidiaries and PNC Bank,
National Association, as agent for certain other banks dated as of
August 17, 1999, amending the Credit Agreement by and among the
same parties dated as of May 21, 1999 (Form 10-Q/A Exhibit 10.3)....

Second Amendment Agreement by and among Advanced Lighting
Technologies, Inc. and certain of its subsidiaries and PNC Bank,
National Association, as agent for certain other banks dated as of
August 18, 1999, amending the Credit Agreement by and among the
same parties dated as of May 21, 1999 (Form 10-Q/A Exhibit 10.4)....

Assignment and Acceptance Agreement by and among Advanced
Lighting Technologies, Inc., PNC Bank, National Association and
National City Commercial Finance, Inc. dated as of November 2,
1998 (Form 10-Q Exhibit 10.1) ...cocciiiiiiiiiiiiiee e

Assignment and Acceptance Agreement by and among Advanced
Lighting Technologies, Inc., PNC Bank, National Association and
Sovereign Bank dated as of November 2, 1999 (Form 10-Q
EXRIDIt 10.2) oottt et

Third Amendment Agreement by and among Advanced Lighting
Technologies, Inc. and certain of its subsidiaries and PNC Bank,
National Association, as agent for certain other banks dated as of
November 2, 1999, amending the Credit Agreement by and among
the same parties dated as of May 21, 1999 (Form10-Q Exhibit 10.3)...
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Exhibit

Number

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

Descriptiom

Fourth Amendment Agreement by and among Advanced Lighting
Technologies, Inc. and certain of its subsidiaries and PNC Bank,
National Association, as agent for certain other banks dated as of
February 28, 2000, amending the Credit Agreement by and among
the same parties dated as of May 21, 1999 (Form 10-Q/A
EXRIDIt 10.1) cuieiiiiieiiieece ettt eta s st e e

Fifth Amendment Agreement by and among Advanced Lighting
Technologies, Inc. and certain of its subsidiaries and PNC Bank,
National Association, as agent for certain other banks dated as of
May 8, 2000, amending the Credit Agreement by and among the
same parties dated as of May 21, 1999 (Form 10-K Exhibit 10.19} .....

Sixth Amendment Agreement by and among Advanced Lighting
Technologies, Inc. and certain of its subsidiaries and PNC Bank,
National Association, as agent for certain other banks dated as of
July 1, 2000, amending the Credit Agreement by and among the
same parties dated as of May 21, 1999 (Form 10-Q Exhibit 10.1)........

Seventh Amendment Agreement by and among Advanced Lighting
Technologies, Inc. and certain of its subsidiaries and PNC Bank,
National Association, as agent for certain other banks dated as of
March 27, 2001, amending the Credit Agreement by and among the
same parties dated as of May 21, 1999 (Form 10-Q Exhibit 10.2)........

Eighth Amendment Agreement by and among Advanced Lighting
Technologies, Inc. and certain of its subsidiaries and PNC Bank,
National Association, as agent for certain other banks dated as of
June 12, 2001, amending the Credit Agreement by and among the
same parties dated as of May 21, 1999

Lease Agreement by and between Macken Associates and
Deposition Sciences, Incorporated dated March 2, 2001

Agreement dated April 16, 2001 by and between Macken
Associates and Deposition Sciences, Inc. amending the Lease
Agreement by and between the same parties dated March 2, 2001
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Exhibit
Number

10.18

10.19

10.20°

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

Description

Second Amendment to Lease dated June 20, 2001 by and between
Macken Associates and Deposition Sciences, Inc. amending the

Lease Agreement by and between the same parties dated
March 2, 2001

Option Agreement to Purchase Real Property dated March 2, 2001
by and between Macken Associates and Deposition Sciences,
Incorporated with respect to the premises leased by the second party
from the first party pursuant to the Lease Agreement by and between
them dated March 2, 2001

Agreement dated May 29, 2001 by and between Macken Associates
and Deposition Sciences, Inc. amending the Option Agreement to
Purchase Real Property by and between the same parties dated
March 2, 2001

Stock Purchase Agreement by and between Advanced Lighting
Technologies, Inc. and General Electric Company dated as of
September 28, 1999 (Form 10-Q/A Exhibit 10.5)........cccccovviviiiinnins

Contingent Warrant Agreement dated as of September 30, 1999 by
and among Advanced Lighting Technologies, Inc., General Electric
Company, Wayne R. Hellman, individually and as voting trustee
under Voting Trust Agreement dated October 10, 1995, Hellman Ltd.
and Alan J. Ruud, individually and as voting trustee under Voting
Trust Agreement dated January 2, 1998, as subsequently amended
and restated October 1, 2000 (Form 10-Q/A Exhibit 10.6) .................

Amendment to Contingent Warrant Agreement dated as of August

31, 2000 by and among Advanced Lighting Technologies, Inc.,

General Electric Company, Wayne R. Hellman, individually and as
voting trustee under Voting Trust Agreement dated October 10,
1995, Hellman Ltd. and Alan J. Ruud, individually and as voting
trustee under Voting Trust Agreement dated January 2, 1998
(Form 10-Q/A Exhibit 10.6) ..coceeviiiiieiiieieeee et

Second Amendment to Contingent Warrant Agreement dated as of
June 29, 2001 by and among Advanced Lighting Technologies, Inc.,
General Electric Company, Wayne R. Hellman, individually and as
voting trustee under Voting Trust Agreement dated October 10,
1995, Hellman Ltd. and Alan J. Ruud, individually and as voting
trustee under Voting Trust Agreement dated January 2, 1998
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Filing If 1[
Exhibit Incorporated
Number Description by Reference 1
10.25 Lamp Materials Purchase Agreement by and among Advanced
Lighting Technologies, Inc., General Electric Company, acting
through its GE Lighting business and APL Engineered Materials, 1
Inc. dated as of September 30, 1999 (Form 10-Q/A Exhibit 10.8)........ %)
10.26 Patent and Technical Assistance Agreement by and among
Advanced Lighting Technologies, Inc., APL Engineered Materials,
Inc. and General Electric Company, acting through its GE Lighting
business, dated as of September 30, 1999 (Form 10-Q/A
EXhibit 10.9) c.ecuriiiieinie ettt ene s C)
10.27 Series Al Warrant to Purchase Common Shares of Advanced
Lighting Technologies, Inc. issued to General Electric Company i
dated as of October 6, 1999 (Form 10-Q/A Exhibit 10.7)....c..c.cceeeenn... 9
10.28 Agency Agreement dated August 31, 2000 among Advanced
Lighting Technologies, Inc., Raymond James & Associates, Inc. and
Sanders Morris Harris Inc. (Form 8-K Exhibit 1.1} ...ccovveviiiiiinininnns (13)
12 Statement regarding Computation of Ratios
21 Subsidiaries of the Registrant as of June 30, 2001
23 Consent of Grant Thornton LLP
24 Powers of Aftorney
(1) Incorporated by reference to referenced Exhibit in Company’s Registration Statement on

2)

3)

4)

(5)

(6)

Form S-1, Registration No. 33-97902, effective December 11, 1995.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit of same number in Company’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the Quarterly Period ended December 31, 1996 filed on February 14, 1997.

Incorporated by reference to referenced Exhibit in Company’s Registration Statement on
Form S-4 Registration No. 333-58609 filed July 7, 1998.

Incorporated by reference to referenced Exhibit in Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q/A
for the Quarterly Period ended March 31, 1998 filed on March 15, 1999.

Incorporated by reference to referenced Exhibit in Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K/A No. 2 for the Annual Period ended June 30, 1998 filed March 16, 1999.

Incorporated by reference to referenced Exhibit in Company’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q/A No. 2 for the Quarterly Period ended September 30, 1998 filed March 15, 1999.
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(7) Incorporated by reference to referenced Exhibit in Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q/A
for the Quarterly Period ended December 31, 1998 filed March 15, 1999.

(8) Incorporated by reference to referenced Exhibit in Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K/A No. 2 for the Annual Period ended June 30, 1999 filed April 25, 2000.

(9) Incorporated by reference to referenced Exhibit in Company’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q/A for the Quarterly Period ended September 30, 1999 filed January 14, 2000.

(10) Incorporated by reference to referenced Exhibit in Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the Quarterly Period ended December 31, 1999 filed February 14, 2000.

(11) Incorporated by reference to referenced Exhibit in Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q/A
for the Quarterly Period ended March 31, 2000 filed July 11, 2000.

(12) Incorporated by reference to referenced Exhibit in Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the Annual Period ended June 30, 2000 filed September 27, 2000.

(13) Incorporated by reference to referenced Exhibit in Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K
dated August 31, 2000 filed September 1, 2000.

(14) Incorporated by reference to referenced Exhibit in Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the Quarterly Period ended September 30, 2000 filed November 14, 2000.

(15) Incorporated by reference to referenced Exhibit in Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the Quarterly Period ended December 31, 2000 filed February 14, 2001.

(16) Incorporated by reference to referenced Exhibit in Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the Quarterly Period ended March 31, 2001 filed May 15, 2001.

(17) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1 to Schedule 13D filed by Alan Ruud, et al.,
March 15, 2000.

(b).  Reports on Form §-K.

No reports on Form 8-K have been filed during the quarter ended June 30, 2001.

(c). Exhibits.

The exhibits to this Form 10-K are submitted as a separate section of this Report. See Exhibit Index.
(d). Financial Statement Schedules

None.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly
caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

ADVANCED LIGHTING TECHNCLOGIES, INC.

Date: September 28, 2001 By: /s/ Wayne R. Hellman
Wayne R. Hellman
Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

SIGNATURE TITLE DATE

/s/ Wayne R. Hellman Chief Executive Officer September 28, 2001

Wayne R. Hellman and Director

/s/ Steven C. Potts Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer September 28, 2001

Steven C. Potts (Chief Accounting Cfficer)

/s/ Francis H. Beam Director September 28, 2001 ’
Francis H. Beam

/s/ John E. Breen Director September 28, 2001

John E. Breen

/s/ John R. Buerkle Director September 28, 2001

John R. Buerkle 1
/s/ Theodore A. Filson Director September 28, 2001 '
Theodore A. Filson

/s/ Louis S. Fisi Director September 28, 2001

Louis S. Fisi

{s/ John Gonzalez Director September 28, 2001

John Gonzalez

{8/ Thomas K. Lime Director September 28, 2001

Thomas K. Lime

/s/ Alan J. Ruud Director September 28, 2001

Alan J. Ruud

/s/ A Gordon Tunstall Director September 28, 2001

A Gordon Tunstall

*The undersigned, by signing his name hereto, does hereby execute this Report on behalf of the above indicated
directors of Advanced Lighting Technologies, Inc. pursuant to Powers of Attorney executed by each such director
appointing the undersigned as attorney-in-fact and filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

By: /s/ Steven C. Potts
Steven C. Potts
Attorney-in-Fact
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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20545

FORM 10-K/A
(Mark One)
X ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended __ June 30, 2001
or
TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from to

Commission file number 0-27202

ADVANCED LIGHTING TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Ohio 34-1803229
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)
32000 Aurora Road, Solon, Ghio 44139
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

440 / 519-0500
(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code)

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act: None
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: Common Stock, $.001 Par Value

Indicate by check (\) whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was
required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.

Yes__ X No

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein,
and will not be contained, to the best of the Registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements
incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K [X ]

The aggregate market value of the voting stock held by nonaffiliates of the Registrant as of August 31, 2001 was
$51,477,506.

There were 23,314,078 shares of the Registrant’s Common Stock, $.001 par value per share, outstanding as of
August 31, 2001.




EXPLANATORY NOTE

This Form 10-K/A amends Part I to include information regarding officers and directors. Pursuant to
General Instruction G(3) of Form 10-K, the amendment includes information originally incorporated by
reference to the Registrant's definitive proxy materials. This Form 10-K/A does not amend any other Parts
or Items of the Form 10-K as originally filed.
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PART II1
Item 10, Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant
DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The Board of Directors has fixed the number of directors at ten. The following table sets forth certain
information regarding each of the directors, as well as the Company's other executive officer:

Director’s Term

Name Age Pgsition Expires
Wayne R. Hellman 55 Chief Executive Officer and 2001
Chairman of the Board

Theodore A. Filson 62 Director 2001
Thomas K. Lime 63 Director 2001
John E. Breen 56 Director 2002
John Gonzalez 70 Director 2002
A Gordon Tunstall 57 Director 2002
Francis H. Beam 65 Director 2003
John R. Buerkle 53 Director 2003
Louis S. Fisi ' 66 Director 2003
AlanJ. Ruud 54 Vice Chairman, Chief Gperating 2003
. Officer and Director

Steven C. Potts* 48 Chief Financial Officer

And Treasurer
*Executive Officer Only
Wayne R. Hellman has served as the chief executive and a director of the Company since 1995 and as

chief executive or other senior officer of each of the Company's predecessor companies since 1983. From
1968 to 1983 he was employed by the lighting division ("GE Lighting") of General Electric Company.
While at General Electric, Mr. Hellman served as Manager of Strategy Analysis for the Lighting Business
Group; Manager of Engineering for the Photo Lamp Department; Halarc Project Venture Manager;
Manager of Quartz Halogen Engineering and Manager of Metal Halide Engineering. As the Halarc
Project Venture Manager, he was given the responsibility of developing metal halide technology. Mr.
Hellman is also currently a director of Fiberstars, Inc., a manufacturer and marketer of fiber optic lighting
systems. The Company owns approximately 24% of the issued and outstanding shares of Fiberstars, Inc.
In 1998, Mr. Hellman married Diane Mazzola who is Mr. Fisi's step-daughter.

Alan J. Ruud founded Ruud Lighting, Inc. in December of 1982 and has served as its chairman of the
board and chief executive officer since that time. The Company acquired Ruud Lighting on January 2,
1998. At that time, Mr. Ruud was appointed to the Company's Board. He currently serves as vice-
chairman and a member of the Executive Committee. In June 1999, Mr. Ruud was appointed to the
additional positions of President and Chief Operating Cfficer of the Company. Mr. Ruud founded SPI
Lighting, an HID lighting manufacturer, in 1973, which was sold to McGraw Edison in 1978. Mr. Ruud
managed SPI Lighting until 1982. From 1969 through 1979, Mr. Ruud also ran a consulting and lighting
engineering group in Milwaukee, Wisconsin. Mr. Ruud is also currently a director of Fiberstars, Inc.




Francis H. Beam has served as a director of the Company since 1995. From 1988 to 1999, Mr. Beam
served as President of Pepper Capital Corp., a venture capital firm which he formed. Mr. Beam retired
from Pepper Capital effective at the end of 1999. Mr. Beam is also a director of The Lamson & Sessions
Co., a manufacturer of thermoplastic conduit and pipe, enclosures, wiring devices and accessories. From
1659 to 1988 he was employed by Ernst & Young LLP (and its predecessors). Beginning in 1967 he held
various partnership positions with that firm until his retirement in 1988 as Vice Chairman and Regional
Managing Partner.

John E. Breen was appointed to the Company's Board in December 1999. Dr. Breen served as Vice
President of Technology for GE Lighting from 1990 until his retirement in 1998. Dr. Breen spent 26 years
at GE Lighting focused on technology for all lighting applications and on new product introductions.

John R. Buerkle was appointed as a director of the Company in January 1998. From June 2000 to
September 2001, Mr. Buerkle was president of UNext International. UNext International is an Internet
education venture. Previously, Mr. Buerkle spent 28 years in marketing and senior management positions
with S.C. Johnson & Son, Inc., a global leader in consumer household products, where among other
assignments, he was President, Asia-Pacific and Americas, each for five years. Mr. Buerkle is also a
director of Alloyd Company, Inc., a privately-held leading manufacturer of plastic packaging and
packaging equipment.

Theodore A. Filson has been a director of the Company since 1995. Mr. Filson has served as an
independent consultant to the lighting industry since 1994. From 1986 to 1994 he was employed as
president and chief executive officer of Advance Transformer, Inc., the largest manufacturer of lighting
system power supplies in the world.

Louis S. Fisi served as the executive vice president of the Company from 1995 until his retirement in
1999, and has served as a director of the Company since 1995. He has also served as chief financial
officer of the Company from 1995 to November 1996 and chief financial officer of one or more of the
Company's predecessors from 1985 to November 1996, and assisted Mr. Hellman in the founding of the
predecessors. From 1976 to 1985, Mr. Fisi was employed in executive and financial capacities by the
Smithers Company, an international industrial company. From 1967 to 1976, he was employed as a
certified public accountant by an international accounting and consulting firm currently known as Ernst &
Young LLP.

John Gonzalez retired as Vice Chairman of Lincoln Electric Company in 1994, a position which he had
held since 1991. Prior to his appointment as Vice Chairman Mr. Gonzalez had held various management
positions with Lincoln Electric since joining that company in 1953. Following his retirement, Mr.
Gonzalez has been an executive consultant to public and private companies. Mr. Gonzalez joined the
Board in January 2001, to fill the unexpired term of Mr. Harada.

Thomas K. Lime was appointed to the Company's Board in December 1999. Mr. Lime retired from GE
Lighting in 1998 after 37 years in sales and marketing positions at GE Lighting. From 1995 to 1998, Mr.
Lime served as General Manager-World Wide Strategic Accounts Sales and from 1984 to 1994 as
General Manager-Consumer Sales US/Canada.




A Gordon Tunstall has served as a director of the Company since June 1996. He is the founder of, and for
more than 20 years has served as President of Tunstall Consulting, Inc., a provider of strategic consulting
and financial planning services. Mr. Tunstall is also currently a director of Kforce Inc., a professional and
technical placement firm; JLM Industries, Inc., a manufacturer and marketer of performance chemicals
and specialty plastics, and Horizon Medical Products, a medical device manufacturer and distributor.

Steven C. Potts joined the Company as Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer in October 2000. Before
joining the Company, Mr. Potts served in several financial positions for General Dynamics, Inc. from
1975 until 1999. From 1995 to 1999, Mr. Potts served as Vice President of Finance and Controller of
General Dynamics, Land Systems Division. In this position, Mr. Potts was responsible for directing
financial operations and information resource management for Land Systems and played a key role in
domestic and international acquisitions for General Dynamics.

Composition of the Board of Directors

Pursuant to the terms of the Company's Articles of Incorporation and Code of Regulations (By-Laws), the
Board of Directors has the power to change the number of directors by resolution. The number of
directors is currently set at ten members. The directors are divided into three classes. Each director in a
particular class is elected to serve a three-year term or until his or her successor is duly elected and
qualified. The classes are staggered so that their terms expire in successive years resulting in the election
of only one class of directors each year. During fiscal year 2001, Mr. Gonzalez joined the Board to
replace Mr. Susumu-Harada upon his resignation. '

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”) requires the Company’s
executive officers and directors, and persons who own more than ten percent of a registered class of the
Company’s equity securities, to file reports of ownership with the Securities and Exchange Commission
and the Nasdaq National Market. Specific due dates for these reports have been established, and the
Company is required to report in this Report any failure to file by these dates during fiscal 2001. All of
these filing requirements were satisfied by the Company’s Executive Officers and directors, and persons
who own more than ten percent of a registered class of the Company’s equity securities.




Item 11.

Executive Compensation

COMPENSATION OF EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The following tables set forth certain information with respect to all compensation paid or earned for
services rendered to the Company in all capacities for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2001, June 30,
2000 and June 30, 1999 by the Company's Executive Officers. The Company has not granted any stock
appreciation rights. The Company has no defined benefit employee pension plan.

Name and Principal Position

Wayne R. Hellman
Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer

Alan J. Ruud
Vice-Chairman, President and
Chief Operating Officer

Steven C. Potts (3)

Chief Financial Officer and
Treasurer

Name and Principal Position

Wayne R. Hellman
Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer

Alan J. Ruud
Vice-Chairman, President and
Chief Operating Cfficer

Steven C. Potts (5)
Chief Financial Officer and
Treasurer

Summary Compensation Table

Anmnual Compensation

Salary Bomnus
Year [63)] ®
2001 $ 237,061 -0-
2000 $218,514 (1) -0-
1999 $ 200,000 (1) -0-
2001 $ 232,692 -0-
2000 $ 200,260 -0-
1999 $ 192,500 -0-
2001 $ 114,423 -0-
Long-Term Compensation
Awards
Restricted Securities
Stock Underlying LTIP
Award(s) QOptions Payouts
Year 6} # [63)
2001 -- 750,000(4) --
2000 - 200,000 --
1999 - -- --
2001 - 500,000(4) --
2000 - 100,000 --
1999 -- -- -
2001 - 50,000/ -
15,000(4)

Other Annual
Compensation

e
e
~ @)

)
)
)

$ 135,877 (3)

Payouts

All Other

Compensation
®

$ 4,918 (6)
$ 2,986 (6)
$ 233,764 (6)
$§ 5,.817(6)
$ 2,503 (6)
$ 5,065(6)

(1) Mr. Hellman is a party to an Employment Agreement with the Company. The Employment
Agreement had an initial term expiring December 31, 1998. In fiscal 1999, Mr. Hellman's
Employment Agreement was extended through December 31, 2003. Through this Employment




@

3)

“4)

)

(6)

Agreement, Mr. Hellman is entitled to receive annual base compensation of $195,000. In
addition, Mr. Hellman is entitled to receive a bonus in amounts determined by the Compensation
Committee. This Employment Agreement provides for annual increases in annual base
compensation in amounts determined by the Compensation Committee during the term of this
Employment Agreement. During fiscal 2001, Mr. Hellman’s annual base compensation was set
at $250,000. The Compensation Committee has not yet determined whether there will be an
increase in compensation for Mr. Hellman in fiscal 2002. Also includes compensation deferred
pursuant to the Company's 401(k) deferred compensation plan. Under the Employment
Agreement, Mr. Hellman participates in Company sponsored life, health, and disability insurance
coverage.

Perquisites provided to these executive officers consisted primarily of life, dental and medical
insurance costs, the total of which did not exceed 10% of the person's salary and bonus.

Perquisites included relocation expenses of $131,251, and life, dental and medical insurance
costs.

Options to purchase shares of common stock of Deposition Sciences, Inc., a subsidiary of the
Company.

Mr. Potts was elected to the office of Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer effective on
October 20, 2000.

From 1993 to 1999, the Company and its predecessors maintained split dollar life insurance
policies with respect to certain key employees. In order to reduce expenses, the split dollar life
insurance program was terminated effective June 30, 1999. This program applied to
approximately 25 employees, including Mr. Hellman. This program provided life insurance
benefits and a cash value benefit which vested over a ten year period and was to be received upon
termination of employment or retirement from the Company. In connection with the termination
of this program the Company accelerated the vesting of the cash value benefits, providing full
vesting as to the cash value in each policy. For fiscal year 1999, the amount indicated represents
the incremental value of the cash value benefits Mr. Hellman received as a result of normal and
accelerated vesting. For fiscal 1999 the amounts include Company contributions to the 401(k)
plan in the amounts of $4,271 and $5,065 for Messrs. Hellman and Ruud, respectively. For fiscal
2000, the amounts include Company contributions to the 401(k) plan in the amounts of $2,986
and $2,503 for Messrs. Hellman and Ruud, respectively. For fiscal 2001, the amount include
Company contributions to the 401(k) plan in the amounts of $4,918 and $5,817 for Messrs.
Hellman and Ruud, respectively.




Company Option Grants in Last Fiscal Year

Individual Gramnts

Number of Percemnt of
Securities Total Opticns
Underlying Granted to Exercise or
Options Granted Employees In Base Price Expiration Grant Date
Name # Fiscal Year ($/Sh) Date Present Value
Wayne R. Hellman -- -- - - -
Alan J. Ruud 1,120(1) 0.2% $4.40 6/29/2011 $ 2,800 (4)
1,220(2) 0.2% $4.40 6/29/2011 $ 3,611(5
Steven C. Potts 50,000(3) 8.9% $7.00 12/1/2010 $200,000(6)
€)) The options granted vest on their sixth anniversary. Vesting of these options may be accelerated

upon the following events: 10% of the grant will become exercisable when the market price of the
Company’s Common Stock reaches $8.80 per share on the last trading day of any month
(“Market Price”); 20% will become exercisable when the Market Price exceeds $13.20 per share;
30% will become exercisable when the Market Price exceeds $17.60 per share and 40% will
become exercisable when the Market Price exceeds $22.00 per share.

2) The options granted vest on their sixth anniversary. Vesting of these options may be accelerated
when the Company’s market capitalization, subject to certain adjustments, exceeds $1 billion.

3 The options granted include incentive options and non-qualified options, in the aggregate these
options will vest 25% after one year, 35% after two years and 40% after three years.

4 The grant date value of the stock options was estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing
model with the following assumptions: expected volatility — 71%; risk-free interest rate — 4.85%;
time of exercise - 4 years; and no dividend yield.

(5) The grant date value of the stock options was estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing
model with the following assumptions: expected volatility — 71%; risk-free interest rate — 5.15%;
time of exercise — 6 years; and no dividend yield.

(6) The grant date value of the stock options was estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing
model with the following assumptions: expected volatility — 71%; risk-free interest rate — 5.60%;
time of exercise — 4 years; and no dividend yield.




Deposition Sciences, Inc. Option Grants in Last Fiscal Year

Individual Gramnts

Number of Percent of

Securities Total Options

Underlying Granted to Exercise or

Option Employees In Base Price Expiration Grant Date
Name Granted (#) Fiscal Year ($/Sh) Date Present Value
Wayne R. Hellman 750,000 (1) 9.5% $ 0.46 4/13/2011 $ 210,000 (2)
Alan J. Ruud 500,000 (1) 6.3% $ 046 4/13/2011 $ 140,000 (2)
Steven C. Potts 15,000 (1) 0.2% $ 046 4/13/2011 $ 42002
I The options vest on their fifth anniversary. The vesting may be accelerated on the following

events: a change of control of DSI, a qualifying initial public offering of common stock of DSI or
a sale of substantially all of DSI’s assets to an unrelated party.

)] The grant date value of the stock options was estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing
model with the following assumptions: expected volatility - 80%; risk-free interest rate — 4.60%;
time of exercise — 4 years; and no dividend yield.

Aggregated Company Option Exercises in Last Fiscal Year
and 2001 Fiscal Year End Company Option Values

Number of Securities

Underlying
Unexercised Options
at Fiscal Year-End (#)

Value of Unexercised
In-the-Money Options at
Fiscal Year-End ($)

Shares Acquired Value Exercisable/ Exercisable/
Name on Exercise (#) Realized ($) Unexercisable Unexercisable
Wayne R. Hellman -0- -0- 20,000/180,000 Not Applicable
Alan J. Ruud -0- -0- 10,000/90,000 Not Applicable
Steven C. Potts -0- -0- 12,500/37,500 Not Applicable

Deposition Sciences, Inc. Option Exercises in Last Fiscal Year and
2001 Fiscal Year End Deposition Sciences Inc. Option Values

Number of Securities
Underlying
Unexercised Options
at Fiscal Year-End (#)

Value of Unexercised
In-the-Money Options at
Fiscal Year-End ($)

Shares Acquired Value Exercisable/ Exercisable/
Name on Exercise (#) Realized ($) Unexercisable Unexercisable
Wayne R. Heliman -0- -0- 0/750,000 Not Applicable
Alan J. Ruud -0- -0- 0/500,000 Not Applicable
Steven C. Potts -0- -0- 0/15,000 Not Applicable




Compensation of Directors

All directors of the Company receive reimbursement for reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred in
connection with meetings of the Board of Directors. In addition, the nonemployee directors are
compensated $2,500 for each meeting of the full Board attended. Such directors are entitled to a minimum
of $10,000 if they attend 75% or more meetings of the Board and committees to which they belong. No
director who is an employee of the Company will receive separate compensation for services rendered as

a director. Each of the nonemployee directors of the Company was granted options to purchase 15,000
shares of Company Common Stock in 1995 and 1996. Also, upon appointment or reelection, each of the
nonemployee directors of the Company will receive option grants equal to 5,600 shares for each year in a
director’s term under the 1998 Incentive Award Plan.

In December 1995, the Company granted options to purchase 9,600 shares of Common Stock at $10.00
per share under the Incentive Award Plan to each of its nonemployee directors (including Messrs. Beam
and Filson), all of which are currently exercisable. In June 1996, the Company granted options to
purchase 15,000 shares of Common Stock at $17.00 per share under the Incentive Award Plan to Mr.
Tunstall upon appointment to the Board of Directors, all of which options are currently exercisable. In
June 1996, each nonemployee director other than Mr. Harada and Mr. Tunstall (Messrs. Beam and Filson)
was granted options to purchase an additional 5,400 shares at an exercise price of $17.00 per share. All of
these options are currently exercisable. In September 1997, Mr. Filson was granted an option to purchase
30,000 shares of Common Stock at $23.75 per share, all of which are currently exercisable. In January
1998, the Company granted options to purchase 15,000 shares of Common Stock at $22.63 per share to
Mr. Buerkle, upon his appointment to the Board of Directors, all of which are currently exercisable. In
February, 2000, Messrs. Breen and Lime each were granted options to purchase 15,0600 shares of
Common Stock at $6.50 per share, 3,750 of which are currently exercisable; Mr. Fisi was granted an
option to purchase 5,000 shares at $6.50 per share, 5,000 of which are currently exercisable; Mr. Beam
was granted an option to purchase 5,000 shares of Common Stock at $6.50 per share, 1,250 of which are
currently exercisable and Messrs. Buerkle and Tunstall were granted options to purchase 15,000 shares of
Common Stock at $6.50 per share, 3,750 of which are currently exercisable. In January 2001, Messrs.
Beam and Fisi were each granted options to purchase 15,000 shares of Common Stock at $6.094 per
share, none of which are currently exercisable. No additional options are exercisable within 60 days of
this Report. Each grant was made at the market price of the Company's Common Stock on the date of
grant. Each option will vest 25% in the first year, 35% in the second year, and 40% in the third year from
the date of grant.

In fiscal 2001, Mr. Filson provided consulting services to the Company and received fees in the amount
of $107.886. Mr. Filson continues to provide consulting services to the Company. In fiscal 2001, Mr.
Fisi provided consulting services to the Company and received fees in the amount of $93,000. In fiscal
2002, Mr. Fisi has agreed to provide consulting services to the Company for a fee of $93,000.




Employment Agreements

Mr. Hellman is a party to an Employment Agreement with the Company. The Employment Agreement
had an initial term expiring December 31, 1998 but was extended through December 31, 2003 in fiscal
1999. Through this Employment Agreement, Mr. Hellman is entitled to receive annual base
compensation of $195,000. In addition, Mr. Hellman will be entitled to receive a bonus in amounts
determined by the Compensation Committee. This Employment Agreement provides for annual increases
in the annual base compensation as determined by the Compensation Committee during the term of this
Employment Agreement. During fiscal 2001, Mr. Hellman’s annual base compensation was set at
$250,000. The Compensation Committee has not yet determined whether there will be an increase in
compensation for Mr. Hellman in fiscal 2002. Under this Employment Agreement, Mr. Hellman
participates in Company sponsored life, health and disability insurance coverage. Pursuant to this
Employment Agreement, Mr. Hellman has agreed not to compete with the Company for a period of two
years after termination of employment.

Compensation Comumittee Interlocks and Insider Participation

The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors requires a majority to be independent directors.
During fiscal 2001, this Committee consisted of Messrs. Buerkle, Filson and Lime. Mr. Filson is a
consultant to the Company and during fiscal 2001 received consultant's fees of $107,886.

The Compensation Committee also serves as the Incentive Award Plan Committee. The Incentive Award
Plan Committee administers the 1995 Incentive Award Plan, the 1997 Billion Dollar Market
Capitalization Incentive Award Plan and the 1998 Incentive Award Plan. This committee will make all
determinations as to future grants of stock and stock options under these plans. Awards under the 1997
Billion Dollar Market Capitalization Incentive Award Plan and the 1998 Incentive Award Plan to
members of the Incentive Award Plan Committee are subject to approval by the entire Board of Directors.
Awards to any executive officer or director under the 1995 Incentive Award Plan, the 1997 Billion Dollar
Market Capitalization Plan and the Incentive Award Plan will be approved by the entire Board of
Directors.
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Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management
CERTAIN HOLDERS OF VOTING SECURITIES

The following table sets forth information regarding the ownership of the Company's Common Stock as
of September 30, 2001, by each of the directors and executive officers of the Company, by each person or
group known by the Company to be the beneficial owner of more than five percent of the Company's
outstanding Common Stock, and by all directors and executive officers of the Company as a group.

Shares Beneficially Owned (2)

Percent
Percemnt of Veoting

Name and Address (1) Number of Class Power
Wayne R. Hellman(3) 2,794,859 (6) 12.0% 10.6%
Alan J. Ruud (4) 3,648,021 (6) 15.6% 13.8%
Steven C. Potts 12,500 * *
Francis H. Beam 43,804 * ®
John E. Breen 3,750 * *
John R. Buerkle 34,750 * *
Theodore A. Filson 45,000 * *®
Louis S. Fisi (5) 134,467 * *
John Gonzalez -0- * *
Thomas K. Lime 3,750 * *
A Gordon Tunstall 18,750 * *
All Directors and Executive
Officers as a

Group (3)(4)(11 Persons) 6,606,434 (6) 28.1% 24.9%
General Electric Company (7) 4,475,351 17.0% 17.0%

* Less than one percent
) The business address of each of Messrs. Hellman, Fisi, Potts, Beam, Buerkle, Filson, Gonzalez

and Lime and Dr. Breen is 32000 Aurora Road, Solon, Ohio 44139; Mr. Ruud-Ruud Lighting,
Inc., 9201 Washington Avenue, Racine, Wisconsin 53406; and Mr. Tunstall-Tunstall Consulting,
Inc., 13153 North Dale Mabry, Suite 200, Tampa, Florida, 33618. The business address of
General Electric Company is 3135 Easton Turnpike, Fairfield, CT 06431.

2) Shares beneficially owned include the following shares which may be acquired within 60 days of
the date of this Report by exercise of options granted pursuant to the incentive award plans: Mr.
Hellman - 20,000; Mr. Ruud — 10,000; Mr. Fisi - 1,250; Mr. Potts -12,500; Mr. Beam - 16,250;
Dr. Breen — 3,750; Mr. Buerkle — 18,750; Mr. Filson — 45,000; Mr. Lime — 3,750; and Mr.
Tunstall — 18,750. Shares beneficially owned by General Electric Company include 3,045,761
shares of Common Stock which may be acquired by General Electric Company at any time upon
conversion of the Series A Stock. Percentage ownership is calculated on the basis of shares
outstanding, plus shares which may be acquired within 60 days of the date of this Report upon
exercise or conversion by the named holder of options, warrants and Series A Stock. Percentage
voting power is calculated on the same basis as percentage ownership, except the calculation
includes for all holders the voting power of the Series A Stock.
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3)

©)

&)
(6)

)

Includes 1,140,170 shares owned by Mr. Hellman individually; 125,000 shares owned by a
limited liability company ("Hellman Ltd.") of which Mr. Hellman is the manager and as to which
Mr. Hellman has sole voting and investment power; 50,000 shares owned by a private charitable
foundation established by Mr. Hellman and as to which Mr. Hellman has sole voting and
investment power; 1,395,581 shares beneficially owned by certain shareholders of the Company
formerly held under a voting trust which expires in 2009 (the "Trust") and as to which Mr.
Hellman holds an irrevocable proxy. These shares are referred to herein as the "Trust Shares.”
The Trust Shares include all shares individually owned by Mr. Louis S. Fisi, Mr. Robert S.
Roller, and Mr. Juris Sulcs, Ms. Christine Hellman and Ms. Lisa Barry, Ms. Mary Sarver, and
trusts for the benefit of Mr. Roller's children. The Trust Shares also include shares owned by Mr.
Brian Hellman. Pursuant to the terms of the Trust and the irrevocable proxies, Mr. Wayne
Hellman is empowered to vote the Trust Shares for all purposes at his sole discretion, but is not
provided with investment power with respect to the Trust Shares. Beneficial owners of the Trust
Shares may remove the shares from the Trust or release the shares from the irrevocable proxy, as
the case may be, to effect a bona fide sale free of the restrictions of the Trust. All share
distributions on account of the Trust Shares become subject to the Trust, and all cash and other
nonshare distributions on account of the Trust Shares are to be paid over to the grantors of the
Trust. The expiration of the Trust may be accelerated under certain circumstances. Mr. Hellman
does not receive any compensation for serving as voting trustee of the Trust. Mr. Hellman has
granted to the General Electric Company (“GE”) irrevocable proxies with respect to shares
owned by him individually and by Hellman, Ltd. and with respect to the Trust Shares. The
proxies will be effective only if the Company fails to maintain a ratio of earnings before interest,
taxes, depreciation and amortization to interest charges of 2:1 for any two-quarter measurement
period and if certain other conditions are met. Also includes shares beneficially owned by Mr.
Hellman's wife as to which Mr. Hellman disclaims beneficial ownership, consisting of 25,861
shares owned and 10,000 shares subject to options exercisable within 60 days of the date of this
Report.

Includes 2,139,857 shares of Common Stock owned by Mr. Ruud individually and 1,497,143
shares of Common Stock which are subject to the terms of a voting trust agreement dated January
2, 1998 (the "Voting Trust") or an irrevocable proxy similar to the irrevocable proxies held by
Mr. Hellman, discussed above (collectively, the "Voting Trust Shares"). The purpose of the
Voting Trust Agreement and proxies is to provide Mr. Ruud with the power to vote all of the
1,497,143 shares of Common Stock held by the signatories to the Voting Trust Agreement. The
Voting Trust Shares include all shares individually owned by Messrs. Donald Wandler, Theodore
0. Sokoly, Christopher A. Ruud, and Ms. Cynthia A. Johnson. Mr. Ruud has granted to GE
proxies with respect to shares owned by him individually and with respect to the Voting Trust
Shares. These proxies will be effective only if the Company fails to maintain a ratio of earnings
before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization to interest charges of 2:1 for any two-quarter
measurement period and if certain other conditions are met.

133,217 individually owned shares are Trust Shares subject to voting control by Mr. Hellman.

Includes 935 and 1,021 shares received pursuant to the Company 401(k) plan for Messrs.
Hellman and Ruud, respectively.

Includes 1,429,590 shares of Common Stock held by General Electric Company, 3,045,761
shares issuable upon conversion of the Series A Stock held by General Electric. General Electric
owns 100% of the issued and outstanding shares of Series A Stock.
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Iitem 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions
CERTAIN TRANSACTIONS WITH DIRECTORS, OFFICERS AND SHAREHOLDERS

The Company was formed on May 19, 1995, and acquired ownership, primarily by merger (the
"Combination") of 17 affiliated operating corporations that were previously under common ownership
and management (the "Predecessors”). On September 15, 1995, one of the Predecessors transferred its
nonlamp assets to H&F Five, Inc., a company owned by Messrs. Hellman, Fisi and certain other
employees of the Company, for a demand promissory note from H&F Five, Inc. in the amount of
$200,000 bearing interest at 8.5% per annum. Total principal and accrued interest at June 30, 2001 was
$317,000, which was the largest amount outstanding at any time during fiscal 2001.

In fiscal 2001, Mr. Filson provided consulting services to the Company and received fees in the amount
of $107,886. Mr. Filson's consulting services included taking an active role in sales/marketing through
the development of key customer relationships, obtaining commitments from customer companies to
introduce new lighting products that include ADLT components and the establishment of major sales
agreements. Mr. Filson's services during fiscal 2001 also encompassed other activities, including joint
venture activities and recruitment of key personnel. In calendar 2001, Mr. Filson has agreed to provide
consulting services to the Company.

In fiscal 2001, Mr. Fisi provided consulting services to the Company and received fees in the amount of
$93,000. In fiscal 2002, Mr. Fisi has agreed to provide consulting services to the Company for a fee of
$93,000. The consulting services have consisted of assistance to the Company on special projects.

The Company has utilized a Saab 340 Aircraft (the"Saab Aircraft”) on an hourly rental basis. The Saab
Aircraft was originally owned by LightAir Ltd. (“LightAir”), an Ghio limited liability company owned by
Mr. Hellman (80%) and Mr. Fisi (20%), and was subsequently transferred to LightAir IT Ltd. (“LightAir
II”’}, an Ohio limited liability company owned by Mr. Hellman (50%) and Mr. Ruud (50%). Messrs.
Hellman and Fisi guaranteed the repayment of $3.0 million of indebtedness to purchase the Saab Aircraft.
All agreements with LightAir were effectively terminated by the transfer by LightAir of all of its aircraft
in fiscal 1999. At June 30, 2001, the Company had $50,000 receivable from LightAir.

On May 20, 1998, LightAir IT acquired a 1988 Cessna Citation III aircraft. The Citation I was chartered
to the Company at an average of $2,000 per hour prior to January 1999 and $2,400 per hour thereafter.
Scott Air Charter of Milwaukee, Wisconsin was the charter broker for the plane. Messrs. Hellman and
Ruud guaranteed the repayment of $6.4 million of indebtedness incurred to purchase the Citation III.
Following transfer to LightAir II of the Saab Aircraft, LightAir II made the Saab Aircraft available to the
Company on the same terms as were made available by LightAir. Commencing in January 1999 the
arrangements with LightAir II were changed to provide for minimum payments of $55,000 per month for
the Saab Aircraft. The hourly usage rates for the plane were reduced from $2,000 per hour to $1,100 per
hour for the Saab Aircraft. LightAir I sold both of its aircraft and the minimum payment was reduced to
$33,500 with respect to the Saab Aircraft until the aircraft was sold. Payments to LightAir I during fiscal
1999 totaled approximately $1,030,000; and approximately $474,000 in fiscal 2000. In addition, during
fiscal 2001, the Company paid $56,000 to LightAir II. The arrangements with LightAir IT have been
effectively terminated by the sale of its aircraft in fiscal 2000 and 2001.

Pursuant to a loan agreement dated October 8, 1998 between the Company and Mr. Hellman, its
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (the "Hellman Loan Agreement"), the Company loaned
$9,000,000 to Mr. Hellman for a one-year term at the rate of 8%. The loan was made following approval
by the Company's Board of Directors (Messrs. Hellman and Fisi did not participate in the deliberations).
The proceeds of the loan were used to reduce the outstanding principal balance of a margin account loan,
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which was then secured by 2,053,070 shares of Company Common Stock owned by Mr. Hellman and
Hellman Ltd. (the "Hellman Personal Shares"). In connection with the loan, the Board asked for and
received Mr. Hellman's agreement to extend the term of his employment agreement to December 31,
2003. The Hellman Loan Agreement prohibits Mr. Hellman from encumbering the Hellman Personal
Shares in any manner except pursuant to existing agreements governing Mr. Hellman's margin account,
without consent of the Board's representative. Mr. Hellman has paid accrued interest of $720,000 on the
loan through October 6, 1999. The principal on the loan was due on October 6, 1999. On January 25,
2000, the Board of Directors agreed that Mr. Hellman would not be required to repay the loan until
October 6, 2000. The term of the loan was subsequently extended by the Board of Directors to October 6,
2001. Since the loan was not paid on October 6, 2001, it has become a demand obligation.
Representatives of the Board of Directors are developing a comprehensive payment plan with respect to
the loan. During fiscal 2001, the Company loaned Mr. Hellman an additional $2,785,000 to reduce
margin loans secured by shares of Company Common Stock. At June 30, 2001, the total amount of the
loan, including accrued interest was $13,140,000. Since June 30, 2001, the Company has loaned Mr.
Hellman an additional $1,004,350 to reduce the margin loans. The Board of Directors have informed Mr.
Hellman that the Company may require immediate payment of the loan if the Company requires the
payment to prevent an unacceptable strain on cash resources.

Christopher Ruud, Mr. Ruud's son, has served the Company since 1998, served Ruud Lighting in various
positions since 1986, and currently serves as Vice President of Human Resources of the Company. In
fiscal 2001, Christopher Ruud's salary, benefits and perquisites were $142,437. Diane Hellman, Mr.
Hellman's wife, has served the Company in various marketing positions since 1985, and currently serves
as Executive Vice President of Sales and Logistics. In fiscal 2001, Mrs. Hellman's salary, benefits and
perquisites were $123,870. Brian Hellman, Mr. Hellman’s son, served the Company from 1992 to June
2001, most recently as Senior Business Analyst for Venture Lighting, Inc. In fiscal 2001, Brian
Hellman’s salary, benefits and perquisites were $87,821. Deborah Rogers, Mr. Hellman's sister-in-law,
served the Company in various positions from 1994 to March 2001, and most recently served as Regional
Sales Manager of Venture Lighting International, Inc. In fiscal 2001, Ms. Rogers' salary and sales
commissions and benefits and perquisites were $77,851. Josh Barry, Mr. Hellman’s son-in-law, serves the
Company as Manager of Product Engineering for Venture Lighting International, Inc. In fiscal 2001, Mr.
Barry’s salary, benefits and perquisites were $67,608.

The Company had sales to General Electric Company, which holds a beneficial interest in the Common
Stock of the Company in excess of 5% and 100% of the Company’s Series A Stock. The sales consisted
primarily of lamps and lamp components, totaling $7,575,000 in fiscal 2001, $7,869,000 in fiscal 2000
and $4,621,000 in fiscal 1999. The Company purchased lamps and raw materials from GE totaling
$9,396,000 in fiscal 2001, $13,928,000 in fiscal 2000 and $13,498,000 in fiscal 1999.

The Company does not intend to enter into any material transaction with officers or directors, or their
family members, without the approval of a majority of the disinterested directors in the future. All above-
described transactions since March 1997 were approved by a majority of disinterested directors except
Mr. Filson's consulting service fees and the employment and compensation of the Hellman and Ruud
family members.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
Registrant has duly caused this Report on Form 10-K/A to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned,
thereunto duly authorized.

ADVANCED LIGHTING TECHNGLOGIES, INC.

By: /s/ Steven C. Potts
Steven C. Potts
Chief Financial Officer

Date: October 29, 2001
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